
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday, 30th July, 2020 at 2.00 pm.

A G E N D A

1.  VIRTUAL MEETING - Link to view Live Stream via YouTube

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in 
physical location following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the 
Coronavirus Act 2020.

Note: The Council will be live streaming the meeting to the Barrow 
Borough Council YouTube Channel which can be viewed live via the link 
below.

The whole of the meeting will be recorded, except where there are 
confidential or exempt items.

To view the meeting online click this link

PART ONE 

2.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members  

3.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

4.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

5.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

6.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBYFa9sjxuGwCW5BQwu9mlw/live


Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

7.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 18th December, 2019.

5 - 12

8.  Public Participation

Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting. Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
(srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by telephone on (01229 876321).
 
(1) Questions and Representations

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public

 
(2) Deputations and Petitions

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public.

FOR DECISION 

(D) 9.  Terms of Reference 
 

13 - 18

(D) 10.  Work Plan 
 

19 - 22

(D) 11.  Internal Audit Final Reports 
 

23 - 38

(D) 12.  Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

39 - 54

(D) 13.  Internal Audit Annual Report 
 

55 - 74

(D) 14.  Internal Audit Annual Plan 
 

75 - 80

(D) 15.  Restricted Assurance Monitoring 
 

81 - 82

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


(D) 16.  Risk Management Report 
 

83 - 90

(D) 17.  Local Code of Corporate Governance 
 

91 - 120

(D) 18.  Update on Local Audit 
 

121 - 132

(D) 19.  External Progress Report and Sector Update 
 

133 - 150

(D) 20.  External Audit Plan 
 

151 - 174

(D) 21.  Consultation Model Member Code of Conduct 
 

175 - 212

(D) 22.  Going Concern 
 

213 - 220

(D) 23.  Accounting Policies 
 

221 - 238

(D) 24.  Assurance 
 

239 - 254

(D) 25.  2019-2020 Accounts Update 
 

255 - 258

PART TWO 

26.  Internal Audit Report Updates

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 3 OF PART
ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006

27.  Internal Audit Final Reports

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 3 OF PART
ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

Membership of Committee

Councillors Burns (Chairman)
Callister
Ronson
Shirley
M. A. Thomson
Assouad (Vice-Chair)

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Sharron Rushton
Democratic Services Officer
01229 876321
srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Wednesday 22nd July, 2020



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT COMMITTEE

Meeting: Wednesday 18th December, 2019
at 10.00 am. (Committee Room No. 4)

PRESENT:- Councillors Burns (Chair), Morgan and M. A. Thomson.

Officers Present:- Susan Roberts (Director of Resources), Keith Jackson (Head of 
Internal Audit), John Penfold (Corporate Support Manager), Michael Barry (Interim 
Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built Environment), Brooke Parsons 
(Corporate Support Assistant) and Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer - 
Member Support).

Also present were Hebe Dyson and Richard Anderson from Grant Thornton.

32 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006

Discussion arising hereon it was

RESOLVED:- That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 3 (Minute No. 44) of Part One of Schedule 12A of the said act.

33 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Assouad (Vice-
Chairman), Callister, Ronson and Shirley.  Councillor Morgan had attended as a 
substitute for Councillor Assouad for this meeting only.

34 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 19th September, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

35 – Work Plan

The Director of Resources submitted a report regarding the Audit Committee Work 
Plan in order to provide Members with a forward plan of the agendas.

A copy of the Work Plan for 2019-2020 had been appended to her report and she 
highlighted that some revisions had been made as follows:-

 Housing Benefit Assurance Process – formerly called Claims and Returns 
Annual Report;

 Progress Report and Sector Update – formerly called Audit Committee 
Update;

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



 Assurance Monitoring – reports would be presented where required rather 
than every time; and

 Restricted Assurance Monitoring – formerly called Monitoring Internal Audit 
Reports.

RESOLVED:- To note the changes to the Work Plan.

36 – Annual Audit Letter for the Year Ended 31st March, 2019

The Director of Resources advised the Committee that the External Auditors had 
produced the Annual Audit Letter for the year ended 31st March, 2019.  The letter 
was a summary of the 2018-2019 Audit Findings Report received at the Audit 
Committee in September.  A copy of the letter had been appended to the report and 
published on the Council’s website.

Richard Anderson of Grant Thornton attended the meeting to present the letter to 
Members.

The External Auditors had given an unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial 
statements on 19th September, 2019.

The External Auditors had been satisfied that the Council had put in place proper 
arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources with the exception for its arrangements for ensuring policies and 
procedures in relation to procurement and contract management.

The External Auditors wished to place on record their appreciation for the assistance 
and co-operation provided by the Council staff during their audit.  This had been 
echoed by the Chairman.

RESOLVED:- To receive the Annual Audit letter.

37 – Housing Benefit Assurance Process 2019

The Director of Resources reported that the Housing Benefit Assurance Process 
(HBAP) for the DWP Housing Benefit subsidy claim for the year ended 31st March, 
2019 had produced an amended claim, a qualification letter and Reporting 
Accountant’s report.  It was noted that the HBAP had been undertaken by Grant 
Thornton on the Council’s behalf.  The process had produced an amended claim and 
a qualification, details of which had been contained within the appendix to the report.

Richard Anderson of Grant Thornton attended the meeting and presented the report 
to Members.  It had been noted that historically there had been a number of issues 
relating to classification of Housing Benefit which could impact on the subsidy 
provided to the Council.  Extensive testing had been carried out regarding 
classification of overpayments.

The Director of Resources advised the Committee that two lots of review work had 
been ongoing during the year and she very much hoped to see improvements going 
forward.

Page 6

Agenda Item 7



RESOLVED:- To receive the Housing Benefit Assurance Process report.

38 – Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

The Director of Resources reported that the External Auditors had produced a 
Progress Report and Sector Update for the Audit Committee.  Their report had been 
included as an appendix and had been presented to the Committee by Hebe Dyson 
of Grant Thornton.

The report provided the Committee with details of the Auditor’s progress in delivering 
their responsibilities as External Auditors.  This had also included a summary of 
emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to the Council.

A table of progress as at December 2019 had been presented as follows:-

2018/19 Deliverables  Planned Date        Status

Audit Findings Report
The Audit Findings Report had been reported to the July   July 2019         Complete
Audit Committee.

Auditors Report
This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual   September 2019     Complete
governance statement and value for money conclusion.

Annual Audit Letter
This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.   December 2019      Complete

2019/20 Deliverables  Planned Date        Status
Fee Letter
Confirming audit fee for 2019/20   September 2019     Complete

Accounts Audit Plan
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the   March 2020         Not yet due
Audit Committee setting out our proposed approach in order to
give an opinion on the Council’s 2019-20 financial statements.

Interim Audit Findings
We will report to you the findings from our interim audit   March 2020         Not yet due
within our Progress Report.

Audit Findings Report
The Audit Findings Report had been reported to the July   July 2020         Not Yet due
Audit Committee.

Auditor’s Report
This is the opinion on the Council’s financial statement, annual   July 2020         Not yet due
governance statement and value for money conclusion.

Annual Audit Letter
This letter communicates the key issues arising from External   August 2020         Not yet due
Auditor’s work.

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



Richard Anderson advised the Committee that the National Audit Office - Code of 
Audit Practice is refreshed every five years, the next refresh would be in April 2020.  
He advised that the National Audit Office had produced a consultation document 
which highlighted the key changes to each chapter of the draft Code.  The most 
significant changes were in relation to the Value for Money arrangements.  Rather 
than requiring Auditors to focus on delivering an overall, binary, conclusion about 
whether or not proper arrangements were in place during the previous financial year, 
the draft Code required Auditors to issue a commentary on each of the criteria.  That 
would allow Auditors to tailor their commentaries to local circumstances. 

RESOLVED:- To receive the Audit Progress Report and Sector Update.

39 – Internal Audit Final Reports

The Director of Resources reported that Internal Audit had completed a number of 
audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan.  The final reports since the last 
meeting of the Committee had been presented in this report. 

The Head of Internal Audit had attended the meeting to present the report to 
Members.

There had been eight final reports appended for consideration.  The reports included 
and their assurance levels were as follows:-

1. Wireless Networks – Substantial Assurance;
2. Car Park Meter Income – Substantial Assurance;
3. Housing 2019/23 Disabled Adaptations – Substantial Assurance; 
4. Housing 2019/23 Rewires – Substantial Assurance;
5. Housing 2019/23 Greengate Roofing – Substantial Assurance;
6. Housing 2019/23 Hindpool Roofing – Substantial Assurance;
7. Housing 2019/23 Walney Rendering – Substantial Assurance; and
8. Housing 2019/23 Windows – Unqualified Assurance.

RESOLVED:- To note the Internal Audit final reports.

40 – Internal Audit Progress Report

The Director of Resources reported that the Internal Audit Progress report for the 
period 1st April, 2019 to 30th November, 2019 had been produced.  The report set 
out the year to date progress against the agreed Internal Audit Plan. 

The Head of Internal Audit attended the meeting to present the report to Members.

There had been seven Priority 1 recommendations made since the previous Audit 
Committee, all the recommendations were contained within the two reports both of 
which had been classified as Part Two agenda items (Minute No. 44 refers).

The report contained a statistical summary of the number of audit recommendations 
(94).  It was noted that all 94 recommendations had been fully accepted.  Each of the 
recommendations had been assigned a priority grade 1-3, 1 being major issues and 

Page 8

Agenda Item 7



3 being minor issues.  20 had been rated Priority 1, 50 had been rated Priority 2 and 
24 had been rated Priority 3.

In respect of performance it was noted that the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAs) required Internal Audit to be measured in terms of performance.    
For 2019-2020 only 45% of management responses had been received within 20 
working days of issue of the draft report, which had raised concerns amongst 
Members.  The Chair signed a letter to Management Group raising concern and 
expecting the target to be met.

RESOLVED:- To note the report.

41 – Restricted Assurance Monitoring

The Corporate Support Manager provided an update on the implementation of 
recommendations from Internal Audit reports where the Audit Conclusion had been 
Restricted Assurance.  

It was noted that the audit conclusion may be Restricted Assurance where significant 
weaknesses had been identified.  That may be as a result of a Priority 1 
Recommendation or because the Audit Conclusion may also have been Restricted 
Assurance if there was a significant number of important issues.

At the last meeting of this Committee there had been one Audit Report where the 
Audit Conclusion had been Restricted Assurance which related to the Maritime streets 
landscaping design.  That report had been restricted due to two Priority 1 
recommendations as follows:-

1. The Contract Management Checklist had not been completed fully and submitted 
in a timely manner with all relevant information; and

2. There had been a significant overspend which was not formally reported and 
additional payments were not authorised and fully documented in a timely 
manner.

He reported that the recommendations had been accepted and dealt with and it was 
anticipated that the creation of a Corporate Procurement Board would provide 
additional controls to prevent this from reoccurring.

RESOLVED:- To note the report and the support from the Audit Committee for 
additional resource to support tendering, contracting and procurement.

42 – Risk Management

The Corporate Support Manager reported that the Council’s Risk Register had been 
reviewed by Management Team at the annual risk review meeting on 4th September, 
2019.  The revised Risk Register had been appended to his report.  He advised that 
the Council’s Risk Policy had also been revised to reflect changes to the format of 
the Risk Register.  It was noted that the Policy and the Register had been approved 
by the Executive Committee at their meeting on 27th November, 2019.

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



RESOLVED:- To note the changes to the Risk Register and continue to monitor the 
Council’s Risk Management process.

43 – Audit Committee Update

The Director of Resources submitted a report providing an update for Members on 
governance and associated matters that had occurred since the Audit Committee in 
September 2019 as follows:-

Establishment Changes

The Executive Director had been retitled to Chief Executive and the senior 
management structure had been amended to have two Directors; Director of 
Resources and, Director of People and Place.

Establishment Matters

Delegation had been given to the Executive Director and the Director of Resources 
regarding the staff establishment apart from Chief Officers.

South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Plan

The Council fulfilled its Community Safety Partnership (CSP) statutory duty by 
collaborating with South Lakeland District Council and other agencies in the 
Partnership.  The Community Safety Plan had been presented to the Executive 
Committee in November 2019.

The Council Plan 2020-2024

The Council Plan had been updated with Officer and Member input to ensure that 
there was focus on the right priorities and outcomes throughout the given period to 
improve the Borough as a whole.

The vision was for the Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit, and would 
be achieved through the three Council priorities:-

1. People – Enabling Residents to live happy, healthy, productive lives;
2. Place – Creating vibrant, safe and welcoming places where people wanted to 

live; and
3. Prosperity – Supporting the Boroughs economy to thrive and benefit all 

Residents.

The Plan would be finalised and formatted for circulation ahead of the Full Council 
meeting in January, 2020.

Annual Audit – Action Plan

The audit of 2018-2019 had identified three areas for improvement.  Progress 
against these had been noted as follows:-

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



1. Ensure that the purchasing and contract management standing orders are 
followed in all procurement decisions.

The Corporate Procurement Board had been created to add a further control to 
contracting and purchasing.  Terms of reference had been established and the 
initial meeting had taken place.  The Board would assess procurement 
generally; tendering exercises; and review the resources around procurement 
as part of their remit.

2. Consider valuing all dwellings as at 31 March to ensure carrying values 
are not materially different from current value.

Dwellings would be valued as at 31st March from 2020.

3. Consider valuing all specialised assets annually to ensure carrying values 
were not materially different from current value.

Specialised assets would be valued as at 31 March from 2020 unless the 
particular indices for a specific asset type had not materially risen; subject to 
evidence and confirmation.

CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker 2019

The Council participates in CIPFA’s fraud and corruption tracker in order to 
contribute to the national picture which helps set and focus counter fraud and 
corruption strategies, and share good practice.  The information returned was 
concerned with detected or prevented instances of fraud and corruption.  These were 
those where, following an investigation, action had taken place or a payment had 
been prevented and, on the balance of probabilities, fraud or corruption had 
occurred.  The action could be internal or external, for example, prosecution.  There 
had been no instances of fraud and corruption to report for 2018-2019.

RESOLVED:- To note the report.

44 – Internal Audit Final Reports

The Head of Internal Audit attended the meeting to present the report to Members.  
The report contained two final reports relating to existing leases for properties owned 
by the Council.  The Chair signed a letter requesting compliance with the lease 
conditions.

RESOLVED:- To agree the management responses in the Audit Reports.  

The meeting closed at 11.11 am.

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020

Terms of Reference

 
Report from:  Director of Resources

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 This committee is now titled as the Audit and Governance Committee with terms 

of reference set out in the Council’s Constitution.

1.2 The terms of reference provide the framework of the business covered by this 
committee and are presented for information.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

terms of reference.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 Following a review of the Council’s Constitution, this committee is now titled as 

the Audit and Governance Committee.

3.2 The terms of reference (Appendix 1) are set out in the Council’s Constitution 
and are reported here to provide Members with the framework of the 
Committee’s business.

3.3 There are two insertions within the Regulatory/Standards Framework which are 
delegated to the Monitoring Officer.

 
4.0 Consultation 
4.1 The review of the Constitution was presented to the Executive Committee and 

Full Council.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 9



6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 

information.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
The Committee does not fulfil 
the terms of reference 
assigned by Full Council.

The Council cannot 
demonstrate good 
governance.

Audit and Governance 
Committee work plan.

Contact Officers 
S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Audit and Governance Committee

Terms of Reference

Page 14

Agenda Item 9



 

Part 3(1) Version 9 (June 2020) Page 8 
 

 

Audit and Governance Committee 

Membership Terms of Reference Delegation of Functions 

6 members of 
the authority  
 

Audit Activity 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 To consider the head of internal audit’s 

annual report and opinion, and a 
summary of internal audit activity (actual 
and planned) and the level of assurance 
it can give over the Council’s corporate 
governance arrangements. 

 
 To consider summaries of specific 

internal audit reports. 
 
 To consider the annual internal audit 

plan. 
 
 To consider reports dealing with the 

management and performance of the 
internal audit provider. 

 
 To consider reports from internal audit 

on agreed recommendations not 
implemented within reasonable 
timescale. 

 
 To consider the external auditor’s 

annual letter and relevant reports. 
 
 To consider specific reports as agreed 

with the external auditor. 
 
 To comment on the scope and depth of 

external audit work and to ensure it 
gives value for money. 

 
 To consider the appointment of the 

external auditor where appropriate. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(1) Version 9 (June 2020) Page 9 
 

 
 Regulatory/Standards Framework 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Delegated to Monitoring 
Officer, in consultation with 
the Independent Person, by 
full Council on 15 May, 2012 
 
 
 
Delegation to Monitoring 
Officer as set out in the 
Constitution. 

 
 To maintain an overview of the Council’s 

Constitution in respect of contract 
standing order, financial regulations. 

 
 To promote and maintain high standards 

of conduct for elected and co-opted 
members in accordance with the 
relevant provisions of the Localism Act. 

 
 To determine whether a member of the 

Council or a member of a town or parish 
council within the Borough has failed to 
comply with the relevant Code of 
Conduct. Where it finds that a failure to 
comply with the code of conduct has 
occurred to determine what action, if 
any, to take. 

 
 To determine any request for a 

dispensation under s.33 of the Localism 
Act 2011. 

 
 To review any issue referred to it by the 

Chief Executive, Director of Resources, 
Monitoring Officer or any Council body. 

 
 To monitor the effective development 

and operation of risk management and 
corporate governance in the Council. 

 
 To monitor Council policies on the anti-

fraud and anti-corruption strategy and 
the Council’s complaints process. 

 
 To approve the production of the 

authority’s Annual Governance 
Statement and to recommend its 
adoption. 

 
 To consider the Council’s arrangement 

for corporate governance and agreeing 
necessary actions to ensure compliance 
with best practice. 

 
 To consider the Council’s compliance 

with its own and other published 
standards and controls. 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Part 3(1) Version 9 (June 2020) Page 10 
 

 
 

Accounts 
 

 
 To review and approve the annual 

statement of accounts.  Specifically, to 
consider whether appropriate 
accounting policies have been followed 
and whether there are concerns arising 
from the financial statements or from 
the audit that need to be brought to the 
attention of the Council. 

 
 To consider the external auditor’s 

report to those charged with 
governance on issues arising from the 
audit of the accounts. 

 

The quorum for the Audit and Governance Committee is 3. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020
Work Plan

 
Report from:  Director of Resources

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 The work plan sets out the business of the Audit and Governance Committee to 

provide a forward plan and to demonstrate that the terms of reference are 
covered.

1.2 The work plan is presented for information.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the work 

plan.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The work plan (Appendix 1) is presented at each Audit and Governance 

Committee meeting to provide a forward plan of business.

3.2 The work plan is intended to demonstrate that the terms of reference are 
covered.  The specific wording within the terms of reference column of the work 
plan requires updating.

3.3 The work plan reflects the changes to the timeframe for closing the 2019-2020 
accounts.

3.4 The reports of the Monitoring Officer will be incorporated into the work plan.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 The review of the Constitution was presented to the Executive Committee and 

Full Council and the work plan is derived from that.

5.0 Alternative Options 

Page 19

Agenda Item 10



5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 

information.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
The Committee does not fulfil 
the terms of reference 
assigned by Full Council.

The Council cannot 
demonstrate good 
governance.

Audit and Governance 
Committee work plan.

Contact Officers 
S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Audit and Governance Committee

Work Plan

Page 20

Agenda Item 10



Audit and Governance (A&G) Committee Work Plan

MeetingTerms of 
Reference

Reporting 
Officer Report Jul Sep Nov Mar

To approve the 
Internal Audit 
planned activity for 
the year.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit

Annual Plan  

Final Reports    
To consider 
progress reports 
and summaries of 
Internal Audit 
reports and 
outstanding actions.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit Progress Report    

To consider the 
annual report and 
opinion of the Head 
of Internal Audit.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit

Annual Report 

To consider the 
External Audit 
Annual Governance 
Report.

Appointed 
Auditor

Audit Findings 
Report 

Audit Plan  
Housing Benefit 
Assurance 
Process 
(Upon completion of 
work)



Annual Audit 
Letter 

To consider External 
Audit reports.

Appointed 
Auditor

Progress Report 
and Sector 
Update
(Where required)



To receive the 
External Audit fee 
letter.

Appointed 
Auditor

Planned audit 
fee letter 

A&G Committee 
Update
(Where required)



Going Concern  
Accounting 
Policies  

Statement of 
Accounts 

To review and 
approve the 
Statement of 
Accounts.

Director of 
Resources

Letter of 
Representation 

Page 21

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



Audit and Governance (A&G) Committee Work Plan

MeetingTerms of Reference Reporting 
Officer Report Jul Sep Nov Mar

To maintain an overview 
of Financial Regulations 
and Contract Standing 
Orders.

Director of 
Resources

Annual 
Review 

To monitor anti-fraud and 
corruption strategy.

Director of 
Resources

Annual 
Review 

To consider a report on 
the Internal Audit 
function.

Director of 
Resources

Annual 
Review 

Annual 
Review of 
A&G 
Committee 
Effectiveness



A&G 
Committee 
Work Plan

   

To review the 
effectiveness of the A&G 
Committee.

Director of 
Resources

A&G 
Committee 
Terms of 
Reference



To consider and approve 
the Annual Governance 
Statement.

Corporate 
Support 
Manager

Annual 
Governance 
Statement



To support the Annual 
Governance Statement.

Corporate 
Support 
Manager

Assurance 
Monitoring
(Where required)



Code of 
Corporate 
Governance

 To consider and monitor 
corporate governance 
arrangements.

Corporate 
Support 
Manager Restricted 

Assurance 
Monitoring

   

To monitor and review 
risk management 
arrangements.

Corporate 
Support 
Manager

Risk 
Management    

To monitor the Councils’ 
complaints process.

Monitoring 
Officer

Annual 
Report 

A&G Committee briefing As required As required  

Page 22

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020

Internal Audit Final Reports

 
Report from:  Head of Internal Audit

Report Author: Head of Internal Audit

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 Internal Audit performs audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan 

which is based on a risk assessment of the internal control environment.

1.2 The final reports completed since the last meeting of the Committee are 
presented in this report.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Internal Audit final reports.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 This report presents the Internal Audit final reports completed since the last 

meeting of the Committee.

3.2 There are 6 final reports for presentation and a further 4 reports are contained in 
the contract audit report in Part Two of this agenda.  All recommendations have 
been accepted by management unless otherwise stated.

3.3 IT-73 IT Infrastructure Management, Appendix 1; substantial assurance.  This 
report contains one important issue and two minor issues.

3.4 19-02 Housing Benefits, Appendix 2; substantial assurance.  This report 
contains two important issues, two minor issues and two previous 
recommendations that have been implemented immediately by the Revenues & 
Benefits Service Manager.

3.5 19-03 Council Tax and Council Tax Support, Appendix 3; substantial assurance.  
This report contains four important issues, one minor issue and two previous 

Page 23

Agenda Item 11



recommendations that have been implemented immediately by the Revenues & 
Benefits Service Manager.

3.6 19-04 National Non-Domestic Rates, Appendix 4; substantial assurance.  This 
report contains one important issue, three minor issues and one previous 
recommendation that has been implemented immediately by the Revenues & 
Benefits Service Manager.

3.7 19-10 Budgetary Control, Appendix 5; unqualified assurance.  This report 
contains no recommendations.

3.8 19-11 Treasury Management; Appendix 6; substantial assurance.  This report 
contains one important issue.

3.9 The assurance levels are: 

 None – control is weak, causing the system to be vulnerable to error and abuse. 
 Restricted – significant weaknesses have been identified in the system of 

control, which put the system objectives at risk. 
 Substantial – while there is a reasonable system of control, there are 

weaknesses, which may put the system objectives at risk.
 Unqualified – there is an adequate system of control designed to achieve the 

system objectives.

3.10 The recommendation levels assigned to issues identified are: 

 Priority 1 – major issues that Internal Audit considers need to be brought to the 
attention of senior management. 

 Priority 2 – important issues which should be addressed by management in their 
areas of responsibility. 

 Priority 3 – minor issues which provide scope for operational improvement. 
 Previous issues – are issues identified in a previous audit report that have not 

been entirely implemented at the time of this latest audit.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 The Internal Audit annual plan is agreed by the Audit and Governance 

Committee.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

Page 24

Agenda Item 11



7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 

information.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Internal controls are 
inadequate.

Compliance cannot be 
demonstrated and 
assurance cannot be 
given.

Internal Audit annual 
plan.

Contact Officers 
K Jackson audit@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 IT Infrastructure Management
2 Housing Benefits
3 Council Tax and Council Tax Support
4 National Non-Domestic Rates
5 Budgetary Control
6 Treasury Management

Page 25

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



February 2020
Page 1

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL REPORT IT 73

INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT 

Executive Summary

Introduction

In accordance with the 2019/20 Audit Plan, a review of the Council’s Infrastructure 
Management arrangements was commenced in November 2019.
An appropriately configured and well managed IT Infrastructure is essential for the 
Council to ensure the effectiveness and resilience of its operations and services.  
 

Audit Objectives

The audit was agreed with management as part of the 2019/20 
IT Audit coverage.  The main objective of the audit is to provide 
reasonable assurance that adequate controls exist over the 
Council’s management of the IT Infrastructure.

The scope of the audit was discussed and agreed with the IT 
Manager, and the IT Operations and Infrastructure Leader, 
before the start of the audit.

Audit Conclusion – Substantial Assurance

As a result of the audit we have concluded that there are weaknesses which place 
some of the system objectives at risk.  We have identified one important issue 
regarding the management of assets, and two minor issues relating to performance 
monitoring and change control.  These concerns apart, we found there to be sound 
arrangements for the management of the Council’s IT Infrastructure and are therefore, 
able to provide a substantial assurance. 

We have made one Priority 2 recommendation relating to:

 IT Management introducing arrangements to ensure that asset audit activity is 
formally recorded and regularly checked to identify gaps.

We have also made two Priority 3 recommendations, as follows: 

 Subject to discussion with senior management, IT Services should consider 
whether the use of monitoring tools should be investigated; and

 IT Management should agree a simplified change control process for minor or 
repetitive tasks, with a relevant recording mechanism put in place.

Key Points

Substantial 
Assurance

One Important Issues

Two Minor Issues

Page 27

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



Barrow Borough Council       Final Report IT 73

February 2020
Page 2

Management Response
We have received a constructive management response from the IT Manager, 
accepting each of the recommendations.
 

Acknowledgement
Internal Audit would like to thank the IT Services and other staff for their co-operation 
and assistance during the review.

Page 28

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 1



February 2020
Page 1

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL REPORT 19-02

HOUSING BENEFITS

Executive Summary

Introduction

The Council’s Housing Benefit service was brought back in-house from 1st October 
2018 being located within a portion of the Forum Arts building on Duke Street.  The 
service continues to use Northgate’s iWorld benefits and Anite document 
management systems to process and record claims.  

At the time of the audit review, there were over 3,500 live Housing Benefit claims 
being managed by the service; most of the total benefit expenditure of around £18 
million relating to these claims is met by subsidy from Central Government.  

Audit Objectives
An audit of this system forms part of the agreed 2019/20 
programme.  The audit objectives were to evaluate and test 
the internal controls over the Housing Benefits system.  The 
scope and objectives of the audit were discussed and 
agreed in advance with the Revenues and Benefits 
Manager.

Audit work included a control evaluation of the system 
design and testing of the operation of  key controls.  

Audit Conclusion – Substantial Assurance

As a result of the audit we have concluded that while there is a basically sound system 
of control, there are weaknesses, which may put the system objectives at risk.  We 
have made two Priority 2 recommendations, which relate to the Council ensuring:

 any changes in a Housing Benefit claimant’s circumstances are processed on 
a timely basis;

 that claims for housing benefit to be backdated are awarded for the correct 
period; and

We have also made two Priority 3 recommendations, which relate to the Council 
ensuring:

 that claim forms submitted for housing benefit are consistently and accurately 
date stamped on receipt; and

 that where an overpayment in housing benefit is identified, the overpayment is 
recovered in a timely manner.

Key Points

Substantial Assurance

Two important issues

Two minor issues

Two previous 
recommendations

Page 29

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



Barrow Borough Council        Final Report Number 19-02

February 2020
Page 2

Internal Audit reviewed the agreed five recommendations made in Audit Report 18-02, 
dated May 2019.  Three recommendations have been implemented, and two 
recommendations remain outstanding which concern the Council ensuring:

 for all new claims, copies of original documentation submitted to support a 
claim for housing benefit are stamped ‘original seen’ and  the stamp is initialled 
and dated; and

 that for each new claim benefit entitlement is determined on a timely basis 
(within 14 days of all information being received) and payment is made 
promptly.

Management Response
We have received a constructive management response from the Revenues and 
Benefits Manager accepting each of the recommendations.

Acknowledgement
Internal Audit would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the 
review.

Page 30

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



February 2020
Page 1

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL REPORT 19-03

COUNCIL TAX AND COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT

Executive Summary

Introduction

The Council’s Council Tax service was brought back in-house from 1st October 2018 
being located within a portion of the Forum Arts building on Duke Street.  The gross 
Council Tax liability for the financial year 2019/20 is approximately £48.4m, which 
relates to 33,639 properties.  
The Department for Communities and Local Government has outlined the basis of 
Localising Support for Council Tax, requiring billing authorities to adopt a Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme to replace the Council Tax Benefit System, which ended on 31st 
March 2013.  The Council adopted the Government’s prescribed default scheme from 
1st April 2013, which is broadly similar to the previous Council Tax benefits scheme in 
terms of who receives benefit, when and how.  The scheme is required to be set 
annually and approved by Members, the scheme for 2019/20 was approved by 
Council on 25th July 2018.

Audit Objectives
An audit of this system forms part of the agreed 2019/20 
programme.  The audit objectives were to evaluate and test 
the internal controls over the Council Tax system.  The 
scope and objectives of the audit were discussed and 
agreed in advance with the Revenues & Benefits Manager.

Audit work included a control evaluation of the system 
design, and testing of the operation of  key controls. 

Audit Conclusion – Substantial Assurance

As a result of the audit we have concluded that, while there is a basically sound 
system, there are weaknesses which put some of the system objectives at risk.  We 
have made four Priority 2 recommendations, which concern the Council ensuring:

 all relevant reconciliations (“cash” and “refund”) are formally and consistently 
evidenced by the preparer with a date and signature;

 a formal reconciliation is performed of Council Tax liable properties, in relation 
to the VO list, bills produced and bills posted;

 all checks performed relating to system parameters are properly evidenced 
confirming these are up to date and accurate; and

Key Points

Substantial Assurance

Four important issues

One minor issue

Two previous 
recommendations

Page 31

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 3



Barrow Borough Council        Final Report Number 19-03

February 2020
Page 2

 new claims for Council Tax Support are determined on a timely basis.

In addition we have made one Priority 3 recommendation, which concerns the Council 
ensuring that:

 items posted to the Council Tax Suspense Account are cleared on a timely 
basis.

Internal Audit reviewed the agreed five recommendations made in Audit Report 18-03, 
dated May 2019.  Three recommendations have been implemented, however, two 
recommendations remain outstanding, which concern the Council ensuring:

 each new claim for Council Tax Support entitlement is correctly calculated 
(Priority 2); and

 Council Tax Suspense Account reconciliations are performed on a regular and 
timely basis (Priority 3).

Management Response
We have received a constructive management response from the Revenues and 
Benefits Manager and the Revenues Manager, accepting each of the 
recommendations.

Acknowledgement
Internal Audit would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the 
review.

Page 32

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 3



January 2020
Page 1

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL REPORT 19-04

NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC RATES

Executive Summary

Introduction

The Council’s National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) service was brought back in-
house from 1st October 2018 being located within a portion of the Forum Arts building 
on Duke Street.  The total rateable value for the 2,359 non-domestic properties within 
the Borough is around £54m, which produces a gross liability of approximately £27m 
for the financial year 2019/20.

Audit Objectives
An audit of this system forms part of the agreed 2019/20 
programme.  The audit objectives were to review the 
internal controls over the National Non Domestic Rates 
system.  The scope and objectives of the audit were 
discussed and agreed in advance with the Revenues and 
Benefits Manager

Audit work included a control evaluation of the system 
design, and testing of the operation of  key controls.  

Audit Conclusion – Substantial Assurance

As a result of the audit we have concluded that while there is a basically sound 
system, there are weaknesses, which may put some of the system objectives at risk.  

We have made one Priority 2 recommendation which concerns: 

 ensuring that a formal reconciliation is performed of NNDR liable properties 
according to the VO list, bills produced and bills posted.

In addition we have made three Priority 3 recommendations which relates to ensuring:

 items posted to the NNDR Suspense Account are cleared on a regular and 
timely basis;

 all reconciliations are formally evidenced with a date and signature by the 
preparer; and

 a full listing of write offs is produced for approval by the Director of Resources 
to ensure all write off amounts are within their authorised approval limits.

Internal Audit also reviewed the agreed recommendation made in Audit Report 18-04, 
dated May 2019.  The recommendation remains outstanding and concerns ensuring:

Key Points

Substantial Assurance

One important issue

Three minor issues

One previous 
recommendation

Page 33

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 4



Barrow Borough Council       Final Report Number 19-04

January 2020
Page 2

 NNDR Suspense Account reconciliations are performed on a regular and timely 
basis.  (Priority 3).

Management Response
We have received a constructive management response from the Revenues Manager, 
accepting each of the recommendations .

Acknowledgement
Internal Audit would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the 
review.

Page 34

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 4



March 2020
Page 1

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL REPORT 19-10

BUDGETARY CONTROL

Executive Summary

Introduction

The Council’s Budgetary Control function is managed by the Financial Services 
Department.  Budget preparation and control processes are documented in a detailed 
timetable together with written procedures.  Responsibility for individual cost centre 
budgets is allocated to the relevant budget holder.  Each Accountant monitors a 
number of specified cost centres and liaises with the budget holders to ensure the 
efficient and effective management of Council funds.  

Budget and actual transactions are recorded and controlled at cost centre level via the 
Council’s Oracle Financial System.  Approved headline budgets for the financial year 
2019/20 total:

 General Fund Revenue - £10,343,330

 Capital Programme - £3,988,000

 Housing Revenue Account expenditure/income - £8,754,080/£11,355,670.

Audit Objectives
An audit of this system forms part of the agreed 2019/20 
programme.  The audit objectives were to evaluate and test 
the internal controls over the Budgetary Control function.  
The scope and objectives of the audit were discussed and 
agreed in advance with the Accountancy Services Manager.

Audit work included a control evaluation of the system 
design and testing of the operation of  key controls.  

Audit Conclusion – Unqualified Assurance

As a result of the audit we have concluded that there is a basically sound system of 
control, and as such we have not raised any new recommendations.
Management Response
We have received a constructive management response from the Accountancy 
Services Manager, accepting the report.

Acknowledgement
Internal Audit would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the 
review.
 

Key Points

Unqualified Assurance

No Recommendations

Page 35

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 5



This page is intentionally left blank



November 2019
Page 1

BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL REPORT 19-11

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

Executive Summary

Introduction

The Council defines Treasury Management as “the management of the Council’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the 
pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”.  Responsibility for 
treasury transactions is delegated to the Director of Resources, the Accountancy 
Services Manager and Financial Services Manager.  

The Council’s treasury function is subject to a degree of self-regulation, a key element 
being the Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20, which was approved by 
Council on 19 March 2019.  This includes a framework of borrowing limits and 
prudential indicators designed to ensure that treasury and capital investment decisions 
are prudent and affordable.  The Strategy is supplemented by detailed Treasury 
Management Practices which are aimed to demonstrate compliance with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice for Treasury Management.

The Council currently has £37.5m of long-term borrowing from the Public Works Loan 
Board, with maturity dates between 2020 and 2053.  No short-term loans have been 
taken out to date in 2019/20.  

During the year, surplus funds have been invested either directly with approved 
counterparties or in an interest bearing deposit account with the Council’s bankers, 
HSBC plc.  

Audit Objectives

An audit of this system forms part of the agreed 2019/20 
programme.  The audit objectives were to evaluate and test 
the internal controls over the Treasury Management 
process.  The scope and objectives of the audit were 
discussed and agreed in advance with the Accountancy 
Services Manager.

Our audit coverage excludes any activities on the part of the 
Council involving the use of derivatives or complex financial instruments.  

Audit work included a control evaluation of the system design, and testing the 
operation of key controls.  

Key Points

Substantial Assurance

One important issue

Page 37

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



Barrow Borough Council        Final Report Number 19-11

November 2019
Page 2

Audit Conclusion – Substantial Assurance

As a result of the audit we have concluded that while there is a basically sound system 
of control, there are weaknesses, which may put the system objectives at risk.  

Internal Audit have made one Priority 2 recommendation which relates to the 
Accountancy Services Manager ensuring that the Treasury Manual incorporating the 
Treasury Management Practices is regularly reviewed and updated.

Internal Audit reviewed the agreed recommendation made in audit report 18-11, dated 
October 2018, which has now been implemented.

Management Response

We have received a constructive management response from the Accountancy 
Services Manager accepting the report.

Acknowledgement
Internal Audit would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the 
review.

Page 38

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 6



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020

Internal Audit Progress Report

 
Report from:  Head of Internal Audit

Report Author: Head of Internal Audit

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 Internal Audit performs audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan 

which is based on a risk assessment of the internal control environment.

1.2 The progress report for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 is presented in 
this report.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Internal Audit progress report.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 This report presents the Internal Audit progress report for the period 1 April 2019 

to 31 March 2020.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 The Internal Audit annual plan is agreed by the Audit and Governance 

Committee.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

7.0 Implications 

Page 39

Agenda Item 12



Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 

information.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Internal controls are 
inadequate.

Compliance cannot be 
demonstrated and 
assurance cannot be 
given.

Internal Audit annual 
plan.

Contact Officers 
K Jackson audit@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Internal Audit

Progress Report

Page 40

Agenda Item 12



BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

April to March 2020

2019/20

Page 41

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



2

CONTENTS Page

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 3

1. STATISTICAL SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 4

2. ACCEPTED PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 5

3. REJECTED RECOMMENDATIONS 6

4. INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE: 7

5. CONTRACT AUDIT 9

6. CLASSIFICATIONS 10

7. PERFORMANCE 11

8. DRAFT REPORTS ISSUED 11

APPENDIX 1 – RESTRICTED ASSURANCE AUDITS 12

APPENDIX 2 – NO ASSURANCE AUDITS 13

Page 42

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



3

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Purpose
The purpose of the report is to update Members of the Council’s Audit Committee on:

 Internal Audit work performed up to 31st March 2020, including final reports issued 
relating to a previous reporting period; and

 Significant issues that have arisen during this period as a result of our work.

Content
The information is presented in the following schedules:
1. A Statistical Summary of Recommendations

This schedule includes all audit recommendations to which Council 
management have responded between 1st April 2019 and 31st March 2020.  
The figures are analysed according to the ‘priority’ of the recommendations, 
and the extent to which each has been accepted by management for action.

2. Accepted Priority 1 Recommendations

This schedule provides details of all major recommendations which have been 
accepted by management.

3. Rejected Recommendations

This schedule provides details of major and significant (i.e. Priority 1 and 
Priority 2) recommendations, which have been rejected by Council 
Management.

4. Audit Coverage

Details of audit assignments carried out in the period, including any checks on 
external partner organisations.

5. Classifications of Assurance and Recommendations

An explanation of the classifications used for prioritising recommendations and 
assessing levels of assurance.

Page 43

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



4

1. STATISTICAL SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS
The following table summarises the number of audit recommendations we have made 
in our final reports issued up to 31st March 2020; analysed by their priority, including 
whether accepted by management.

Recommendations Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3

Made 134 26 75 33

Fully Accepted 129 25 71 33

Partly Accepted 5 1 4 -

Not Accepted 0 - - -

Page 44

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



5

2. ACCEPTED PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS
There have been six Priority One recommendations made since the previous Audit 
Committee.  All of the recommendations are contained within reports which are 
classified as Part II agenda items 

Page 45

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



6

3. REJECTED RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 PRIORITY ONE RECOMMENDATIONS

There have been no rejected Priority One recommendations during the reporting 
period.

3.2 PRIORITY TWO RECOMMENDATIONS

There have been no rejected Priority Two recommendations during the reporting 
period.

Page 46

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



7

4. INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE:

APRIL 2019 – MARCH 2020

Report 
Number Audit Assignment

System 
Significance 

Band
Status Assurance

ANNUAL AUDITS

19-01 Income Collection 1 Carried Forward into 20/21

19-02 Housing Benefits 1 Final Substantial

19-03 Council Tax & Council Tax Support 1 Final Substantial

19-04 Business Rates (NNDR) 1 Final Substantial

19-05 Risk Management 1 Carried Forward into 20/21

19-06 Cash Floats/Receipting Controls - Draft Substantial

19-08 Fraud and Corruption Survey - Complete N/a
19-09 Performance Management 2 Carried Forward into 20/21

19-10 Budgetary Control 2 Final Unqualified

19-11 Treasury Management 2 Final Substantial

19-12 Car Park Meter Income 2 Final Substantial

19-13 Payroll (incl Expenses) 2 Draft Substantial

19-14 Accounts Receivable 2 Draft 

19-15 Corporate Control/Governance 2 Complete N/a

19-16 Main Accounting System and 
Periodic Controls 2 Q3 complete N/a

19-17 Procurement (inc. Ordering) 2 Carried Forward into 20/21

19-18 Accounts Payable 2 Draft

19-19 Housing Rents 2 Complete N/a

19-20 Standing Orders/Financial 
Regs/Council Plans & Policies 2 Complete N/a

19-21 Housing Maintenance (Day to day 
repairs) 2 Complete N/a

19-22 NFI responsibilities - Complete N/a
19-24 Benefit Certification - Complete N/a

19-25
Tenants and Residents 
Association Accounts - Complete N/a

19-27 Grant Funding – The Well - Complete N/a

19-28 Recruitment - Carried Forward into 20/21

Page 47

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



8

Report 
Number Audit Assignment

System 
Significance 

Band
Status Assurance

COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS 
AND MAYOR’S ACCOUNT

- Hawcoat - Complete N/a

- Abbotsvale - Complete N/a

- Dalton Community Association - Complete N/a

19-23 Mayor’s Account - Complete N/a

IT ENVIRONMENT AUDITS

IT72 Wireless Networks - Final Substantial

IT73 Infrastructure Management - Final Substantial

IT74 Implementation Review - Complete N/a

19-07 IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW Complete N/a

Fraud Hotline Calls
Revenues/

Benefit related
Staff Related Other Total

2019/20
(April 19 – 
March 20)

32 1 5 38

2018/19
(Full year)

34 3 0 37

Page 48

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



9

5. CONTRACT AUDIT

Report 
Number Audit Assignment Status Assurance/ 

Comment
CR122 CHP Bathroom Improvements Final Unqualified

CR94 2014 CHP Devonshire Road 
Improvements

Final Substantial

CR97 Maritime Streets Landscaping Design Final Restricted 

CR118 Leisure Outsourcing Final Unqualified

CR124 Housing 2019-23 - Disabled 
Adaptations Final Substantial

CR125 Housing 2019-23 - Heating Final Unqualified

CR126 Housing 2019-23 - Painting Final Unqualified

CR127 Housing 2019-23 - Rewires Final Substantial

CR128 Housing 2019-23 - Roofing 
Greengate St Final Substantial

CR129 Housing 2019-23 - Roofing Hindpool Final Substantial

CR130 Housing 2019-23 - Walney 
Rendering Final Substantial

CR131 Housing 2019-23 - Windows Final Unqualified

CR117 Cavendish Park Changing rooms Final Restricted 

CR115 Refuse, Recycling & Street Cleansing 
2017-24 Final Restricted 

CR121 CHP Heating Improvements Final Unqualified

CR98 Maritime Streets Landscaping Works Final Restricted 

CR119 Crematorium rebuild Ongoing Stages 1-3 findings 
issued

CR120 Building Cleaning Information awaited

CR123 Harding Rise Ongoing Stage 1&2 findings 
issued

CR132 Portland Walk Car Park Maintenance Stage 1-2 findings 
issued Comments received

CR133 Insurance Information awaited 

CR134 Public Conveniences – Cleaning 
contract Information awaited

Page 49

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



10

6.CLASSIFICATIONS
6.1   Classification of Assurance Levels

At the conclusion of each audit, we give an overall opinion on the level of assurance, 
which we consider is provided by the controls in place within the system audited.  The 
following classification of assurance levels has been adopted:

Level Definition
1. Unqualified Assurance The controls appear to be consistently applied.

2. Substantial Assurance Evidence was identified to suggest that the 
level of non-compliance with controls may put 
some of the system objectives at risk.

3. Restricted Assurance The level of non-compliance identified places 
the system objectives at risk.

4. None Significant non-compliance with controls was 
identified leaving the system vulnerable to 
error and abuse.

6.2 Priority of Recommendations

Our audit recommendations are categorised by three priority levels: -

Priority 1 Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention of senior 
management.

Priority 2 Important issues which should be addressed by management in their area 
of responsibility.

Priority 3 Detailed issues of a relatively minor nature.

Page 50

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



11

7. PERFORMANCE
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAs) require Internal Audit to be 
measured in terms of performance.  The indicators below provide information over the 
arrangements and effectiveness of Internal Audit.

Indicator 2019/20

1 Percentage of Draft reports issued within 10 working days 
of completion of audit fieldwork. 100%

2 Percentage of Management Responses received within 
20 working days of issue of the Draft report. 88%

3 Percentage of Final reports issued within 10 working days 
of receipt of management response. 100%

4 Percentage of Priority 1 and Priority 2 Recommendations 
acceptable to the audit client. 100%

8. Draft Reports issued
Ref Audit Date issued
19-13 Payroll 27th February 2020

Page 51

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



12

APPENDIX 1 – RESTRICTED ASSURANCE AUDITS

Recommendations Previous 
Recommendations

Ref Audit P1 P2 P3 P1 P2 P3
Total Date Issued

18-17 Procurement 2 2 13 June 2019

18-26 Markets 6 8 14 17 April 2019

18-35 Recruitment 4 9 9 22 17 April 2019

18-36 Barrow Playing Field Users Association 5 5 2 May 2019

CR97 Maritime Street Landscaping Design 2 3 5 13 June 2019

CR115 Refuse, Recycling & Street Cleansing 2017-24 3 5 8 5 March 2020

CR117 Cavendish Park Changing Rooms 1 6 7 5 March 2020

CR98 Maritime Street Landscaping Works 2 5 1 8 5 March 2020

 

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix 1



13

APPENDIX 2 – NO ASSURANCE AUDITS

Recommendations Previous 
Recommendations

Ref Audit P1 P2 P3 P1 P2 P3
Total Date Issued

16-25 Lease of 6-9 Lawson Street (“The Lodge”) 3 3 2 December 19

16-29 Phoenix Business Centre 4 4 2 December 19

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 12
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020

Internal Audit Annual Report

 
Report from:  Head of Internal Audit

Report Author: Head of Internal Audit

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 Internal Audit performs audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan 

which is based on a risk assessment of the internal control environment.

1.2 The annual report for the period 2019-2020 is presented in this report.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

Internal Audit annual report.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The Head of Internal Audit is required to produce an annual report and provide 

an opinion on the Council’s system of internal control.

3.2 This report presents the Internal Audit annual report (Appendix 1) for 2019-
2020.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 The Internal Audit annual plan is agreed by the Audit and Governance 

Committee.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

Page 55

Agenda Item 13



7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 

information.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Internal controls are 
inadequate.

Compliance cannot be 
demonstrated and 
assurance cannot be 
given.

Internal Audit annual 
plan.

Contact Officers 
K Jackson audit@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Internal Audit

Annual Report

Page 56

Agenda Item 13



BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT

2019/20

July 2020

Page 57

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 1

CONTENTS Page

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 2

1. SERVICE BACKGROUND 5

2. REVIEW OF PERIOD 7

3. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 9

4. RECOMMENDATIONS AND FOLLOW UP IN THE YEAR 10

5. QUALIFICATIONS TO THE OPINION 12

6. PERFORMANCE 13

APPENDIX A: PROGRESS AGAINST AUDIT PLAN 2019/20 14

APPENDIX B: CONTRACT AUDIT 2019/20 16

Page 58

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 2

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Background
The purpose of this report is to meet the Head of Internal Audit’s annual reporting 
requirements set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  The Head 
of Internal Audit’s formal annual report should present an opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment, and:

a) Include an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control;

b) Disclose any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reasons for the 
qualification, including impairment or restriction in scope;

c) Present a summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion, 
including reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies;

d) Draw attention to any issues the Head of Internal Audit judges particularly 
relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement;

e) Compare the work actually undertaken with the work that was planned; and

f) Comment on compliance with these standards and the Internal Audit quality 
assurance programme.

The PSIAS require that the Chief Audit Executive (Head of Internal Audit) should 
deliver an annual report which can be used by the organisation to inform its annual 
governance statement.  Therefore, in setting out how it meets the reporting 
requirements, this report also outlines how the Internal Audit function has supported 
the Council in meeting the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

Scope of Responsibility
The Council is responsible for ensuring its business is conducted in accordance with 
law and proper standards.  In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also 
responsible for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control which 
facilitates the effective exercise of the Council’s functions and which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk.
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather 
than to eliminate risk of failure to achieve polices, aims and objectives; it can therefore 
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  

Quality Assurance
Internal Audit operates in accordance with its Audit Charter which includes a defined 
quality assurance process, involving all documentation being subject to peer review by 
a different Auditor within the team and subsequent sign-off by the Head of Internal 
Audit.  This process has been consistently maintained throughout 2019/20 and 

Page 59

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 3

applied to each individual audit assignment.  Additionally, Internal Audit has met all 
performance measures relevant to the service during the year.

Review of Effectiveness of Internal Control
The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control.  The review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal auditors and the 
senior managers within the Authority who have responsibility for the development and 
maintenance of the internal control environment; and also by comments made by the 
external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates in the annual audit 
letter and other reports.  

Basis of Assurance
We have conducted our audits in accordance with professional standards and good 
practice contained within the PSIAS and additionally from our own internal quality 
assurance systems.  We have not identified any limitations in the scope of our audit 
work in “qualifications to the opinion” within the detail of this report.
In addition, Internal Audit have undertaken a self assessment against the 
requirements of the PSIAS, and can confirm substantial compliance.

Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion Statement
This opinion statement is provided in support of the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement as required under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  The opinion 
is derived from work carried out by Internal Audit during the year as part of the agreed 
Internal Audit Plan.  The Plan for 2019/20 was developed to primarily provide 
management with independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
internal control environment. 

The PSIAS state that the internal control environment comprises three key areas: 
internal control, governance and risk management processes.  My opinion on the 
effectiveness of the internal control environment is based on an assessment of each 
of these key areas.  
As referred to above, there is a requirement for the “system of Internal Control” to 
include an assessment of sources of assurance, beyond just that of Internal Audit 
itself.  As the Council is required to produce an Annual Governance Statement, 
sources of assurance are reflected and reviewed within this process, which Internal 
Audit are a part of; therefore the control environment is reviewed more fully in this 
way.

2019/20 Year Opinion
This report provides reasonable assurance that the organisation’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control predominantly operated satisfactorily 
during 2019/20.

My detailed opinion is that, for the systems reviewed, the Council has basically sound 
systems of control in place, although there are weaknesses which put some of the 

Page 60

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 4

system objectives at risk, these mainly relate to areas of contract management and 
control, leases, procurement and certain areas within Community Services.  The 
profile of assurance is in our experience comparable to other local authorities, with the 
majority of Council systems receiving Substantial Assurance.  

There are, however, five areas where only Restricted Assurance can be provided, 
which relate to the following final reports:

 Maritime Streets Landscaping Design; 

 Procurement;

 Cavendish Park Changing Rooms;

 Refuse Collection, Recycling and Street Cleaning 2017-2024; and

 Maritime Streets Landscaping Works.

There are, two areas where No Assurance can be provided, which relate to the 
following final reports:

 Phoenix Business Centre; and 

 Lawson St

Weaknesses found as a result of our work, together with our recommendations for 
improvement, have been included in our reports to senior management and Members.  
Additionally, any weaknesses identified through the Annual Governance Statement 
process are recorded separately and reflect the assurance provided from all sources 
both internal and external.

Co-operation
The successful achievement of the audit plan is dependent on the contribution of the 
Internal Audit resource and the Council’s staff as audit clients.  I would like to record 
my appreciation for the involvement and commitment of staff, and for their critical 
appraisal of our recommendations during the year.  I would also like to acknowledge 
the support shown by the Audit Committee in the delivery of our Plan.

Keith Jackson
Head of Internal Audit

Page 61

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 5

1. SERVICE BACKGROUND

1.1 Our reporting lines
In 2019/20 the Council’s Internal Audit service has been delivered by an 
internal department within the Council’s structure, under the direction of the 
Director of Resources with access to the Executive Director and elected 
Members if, in exceptional circumstances, we considered this necessary.  

The Head of Internal Audit meets with the Director of Resources, on a regular 
basis to discuss progress; in addition to attendance at External Audit liaison 
meetings as required.  He also attends Audit Committee on a regular basis, 
which includes presentation of progress reports and an analysis of significant 
agreed recommendations.  

1.2 Professional standards
The Service aim is to exceed professional standards, thus providing the internal 
audit service in accordance with the Council’s Internal Audit Charter, which 
incorporates the statements, standards and guidelines published by CIPFA and 
the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (in particular the PSIAS).

1.3 Our audit process
We have adopted a risk-based approach to identify, and evaluate the 
application of, financial and other management controls.

Our process includes a computerised matrix evaluation approach.  This 
approach is a practical process for documenting efficiently, and in an easily 
assimilated form, a rigorous analysis of the potential causes of risk and an 
assessment of the strength of controls against these risks.  In addition, it can be 
used to demonstrate clearly the effect of implementing recommendations to 
address weaknesses.  It allows for ready identification of control weaknesses, 
and of key controls, which are critical for the achievement of the systems 
objectives, as well as unnecessary or excessive controls.  Our methodology 
specifically includes a rigorous quality assurance programme to ensure 
compliance with this process.

1.4 2019/20 Audit Plan
The Audit Plan for 2019/20 was derived from a needs assessment of all agreed 
auditable areas within the Council.  Each area is prioritised by significance band 
of which there are 5, with band 1 being the highest.  This has resulted in an 
annual plan which concentrates on reviewing all significance band 1 and 2 
audits (annual audits) with the remaining time allocated to Housing Benefit 
Subsidy testing and on a risk assessed and cyclical basis.  This assessment 
and resultant plan may be reviewed by Internal Audit during the year as 
required.

Page 62

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 6

During the year, the specific scope and objective of each audit assignment was 
discussed with the relevant Service Manager prior to the commencement of 
each audit.

We will continue to monitor closely any new issues which may arise and will 
work closely with the Director of Resources in rescheduling priorities where 
required.

Page 63

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 7

2. REVIEW OF PERIOD

2.1 Progress against 2019/20 Annual Plan
A detailed analysis of the current situation regarding the 2019/20 Plan is 
provided in Appendix A.

The assessment of auditable areas has identified 74 systems, which cover the 
Council’s operations.  The audit coverage achieved in the period, compared to 
the audit plan, is set out in the table below.  The difference in planned coverage 
compared to actual mainly relates to changes made to the audit plan to 
accommodate requests for an increased number of contract audit reviews (only 
the completed contract audits are included within the statistics) together with 
additional probity exercises.  In addition, significant Housing Benefit Grant 
Certification testing has been completed which is not reflected in these figures, 
all of which were included within regular progress reports issued to the Audit 
Committee.

Percentage of systems 
covered

Percentage of risk 
covered

2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19
Planned 40% 40% 82% 61%

Achieved 32% 45% 66% 76%

2.2 Liaison with External Audit
I have liaised with the External Auditor throughout the year; providing 
documentation to assist in the delivery of their work.  

Our aim is to maximise the benefit from the Internal Audit service by avoiding 
duplication of coverage and facilitating where appropriate the External Auditor’s 
approach, in order to provide maximum assurance; although this may not be 
possible in all instances.  

2.3 Fraud Hotline

As part of the Council’s responsibility to take action against potential fraud and 
corruption, a “Whistle-blowing” facility (or Fraud Hotline/webform) has been 
established since May 1998; for use by Council staff, contractors, suppliers and 
members of the public.  The facility is operated by Internal Audit and call/report 
details are either investigated by Internal Audit, the Council’s Revenues and 
Benefits team, or forwarded to the DWP for Housing Benefit fraud.  A minor 
number are referred in specific instances to Public Protection Services, Housing 
etc.

Page 64

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 8

Calls 
received:

Revenues/
Benefit related

Staff Related Other Total

2019/20 32 1 5 38

2018/19 34 3 0 37

Page 65

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 9

3. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ASSURANCE 
In order to help management evaluate the significance of each assignment, we 
allocate each audit into a significance band which is simply a method of 
assessment and prioritisation.  For example significance band 1 audits have the 
greatest “significance” or priority in terms of audit coverage.  At the conclusion 
of each audit, we give an overall opinion on the level of assurance which we 
consider is provided by the controls in place within the system audited.  The 
following classification of assurance levels has been adopted:

Level Definition
Unqualified Assurance The controls appear to be consistently 

applied.
Substantial Assurance Evidence was identified to suggest 

that the level of non-compliance with 
controls may put some of the system 
objectives at risk.

Restricted Assurance The level of non-compliance identified 
places the system objectives at risk.

No Assurance Significant non-compliance with 
controls was identified leaving the 
system vulnerable to error and abuse.

The following table summarises the assurance levels recorded in final reports 
relating to the years 2019/20 and 2018/19, draft reports are not included.  The 
majority of Council systems have achieved the level of Substantial Assurance, 
see Appendix A: 

Unqualified
Assurance

Substantial 
Assurance

Restricted
Assurance

No
AssuranceFinal 

Reports Total
No. % No. % No. % No. %

2019/20 27 6 22 14 52 5 19 2 7

2018/19 25 2 8 18 72 5 20 0 0

The conclusions and assurance levels specified for each audit are used to 
support the Council’s governance review arrangements, as required by the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards.

Page 66

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 10

4. RECOMMENDATIONS AND FOLLOW UP IN THE YEAR

4.1 Introduction
Our audit recommendations are categorised by three priority levels.  These 
categorisations are described below.

   Priority 1 Major issues that we consider need to be brought to the attention 
of senior management.

   Priority 2 Important issues which should be addressed by management in 
their area of responsibility.

   Priority 3 Detailed issues of a relatively minor nature.

4.2 Recommendations made
The following table summarises the number of audit recommendations made in 
our final reports issued during 2019/20, and the management responses, 
analysed in accordance with the above categories. 

Recommendation
s

Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3

Made 2019/20 71 17 43 11

Fully Accepted 66 16 39 11

Partly Accepted 5 1 4 0

Not Accepted 0 0 0 0

Comparative figures for 2018/19 are as follows:

Recommendation
s

Total Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3

Made 2018/19 107 12 62 33

Fully Accepted 107 12 62 33

Partly Accepted 0 0 0 0

Not Accepted 0 0 0 0

Page 67

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 11

4.3 Implementation of recommendations
During the year we have reported on the implementation of 83 agreed audit 
recommendations made in previous reports.  The results are as follows:

Fully 
Implemented

Not 
Implemented

Overtaken 
By Events

TOTAL

2019/20 29 22 1 52

2018/19 42 25 16 83

For recommendations not fully implemented revised dates have been agreed 
with management for their implementation.  Internal Audit will further review 
progress on their implementation during 2020/21.

Page 68

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 12

5. QUALIFICATIONS TO THE OPINION
Internal Audit has had predominantly unrestricted access to all areas and 
systems across the authority and has received appropriate co-operation from 
officers and Members.

(However, third party access has in some instances been limited, namely, 
Pulse Soccer and Phoenix Business Centre.)

Page 69

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 13

6. PERFORMANCE
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAs) require Internal Audit to be 
measured in terms of performance.  The indicators below provide information over the 
arrangements and effectiveness of Internal Audit.

Indicator 2019/20
1 Percentage of Draft reports issued within 10 working days 

of completion of audit fieldwork. 100%

2 Percentage of Management Responses received within 20 
working days of issue of the Draft report. 88%

3 Percentage of Final reports issued within 10 working days 
of receipt of management response. 100%

4 Percentage of Priority 1 and Priority 2 Recommendations 
acceptable to the audit client. 100%

Page 70

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 14

APPENDIX A: PROGRESS AGAINST AUDIT PLAN 2019/20

Report 
Number Audit Assignment

System 
Significance 

Band
Status Assurance

19-01 Income Collection 1 Carried forward to 20/21 due 
to Covid-19

19-02 Housing Benefits 1 Final Substantial

19-03 Council Tax & Council Tax Support 1 Final Substantial

19-04 Business Rates (NNDR) 1 Final Substantial

19-05 Risk Management 1 Carried forward to 20/21 due 
to Covid-19

19-06 Cash Floats/Receipting Controls 1 Draft Substantial

19-09 Performance Management 2 Carried forward to 20/21 due 
to Covid-19

19-10 Budgetary Control 2 Final Substantial

19-11 Treasury Management 2 Final Substantial

19-12 Car Park Meter Income 2 Final Substantial

19-13 Payroll (incl Expenses) 2 Draft Substantial
19-14 Accounts Receivable 2 Draft Substantial
19-15 Corporate Control/Governance 2 Complete N/a

19-16 Main Accounting System & 
Periodic Controls 2 Q3 complete N/a

19-17 Procurement (inc. Ordering) 2 Carried forward to 20/21 due 
to Covid-19

19-18 Accounts Payable 2 Draft Substantial

19-19 Housing Rents 2 Complete N/a

19-20 Standing Orders/Financial 
Regs/Council Plans & Policies 2 Complete N/a

19-21 Housing Maintenance (Day to day 
repairs) 2 Complete N/a

RISK ASSESSED SYSTEMS

19-08 Fraud and Corruption Survey N/a Complete N/a

19-25 Tenant's and Resident's  
Association Accounts N/a Complete N/a

19-26 Probity (AB, CK) N/a Complete N/a

19-27 Grant Funding - The Well N/a Complete N/a

19-28 Recruitment N/a Carried forward to 20/21 due 
to Covid-19

Page 71

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 15

Report 
Number Audit Assignment

System 
Significance 

Band
Status Assurance

DESIGNATED ANNUAL AUDIT 
ACTIVITY

19-22 NFI Responsibilities Complete N/a

19-23 Mayor’s Account Complete N/a

19-24 Benefit Certification Complete N/a

Community Organisations

- Hawcoat Complete N/a

- Abbotsvale Complete N/a

- Dalton Community Association Complete N/a

IT ENVIRONMENT AUDITS

IT 72 Wireless Networks 1 Final Substantial

IT 73 Infrastructure Management 1 Final Substantial

IT 74 IT Implementation Review 1 Complete N/a

19-07 IMPLEMENTATION REVIEW Complete N/a

Page 72

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



Internal Audit Annual Report – 2019/20 Barrow Borough Council
Page 16

APPENDIX B: CONTRACT AUDIT 2019/20

Report 
Number Audit Assignment STATUS Assurance/ 

Comment

CR122 CHP Bathroom Improvements Final Unqualified

CR94 2014 CHP Devonshire Road 
Improvements Final Substantial

CR97 Maritime Streets Landscaping Design Final Restricted 

CR118 Leisure Outsourcing Final Unqualified

CR124 Housing 2019-23 - Disabled 
Adaptations Final Substantial

CR125 Housing 2019-23 - Heating Final Unqualified

CR126 Housing 2019-23 - Painting Final Unqualified

CR127 Housing 2019-23 - Rewires Final Substantial

CR128 Housing 2019-23 - Roofing 
Greengate St Final Substantial

CR129 Housing 2019-23 - Roofing Hindpool Final Substantial

CR130 Housing 2019-23 - Walney 
Rendering Final Substantial

CR131 Housing 2019-23 - Windows Final Unqualified

CR117 Cavendish Park Changing rooms Final Restricted 

CR115 Refuse, Recycling & Street Cleansing 
2017-24 Final Restricted 

CR121 CHP Heating Improvements Final Unqualified

CR98 Maritime Streets Landscaping Works Final Restricted 

CR119 Crematorium rebuild Ongoing Stages 1-3 findings 
issued

CR120 Building Cleaning Information awaited

CR123 Harding Rise Ongoing Stage 1&2 findings 
issued

CR132 Portland Walk Car Park Maintenance Stage 1-2 findings 
issued Comments received

CR133 Insurance Information awaited 

CR134 Public Conveniences – Cleaning 
contract Information awaited

Page 73

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020

Internal Audit Annual Plan

 
Report from:  Head of Internal Audit

Report Author: Head of Internal Audit/Director of Resources

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 Internal Audit performs audits in accordance with the approved Annual Plan 

which is based on a risk assessment of the internal control environment.

1.2 The proposed Annual Plan for 2020-2021 reflects the impacts of COVID-19 on 
service delivery.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee agrees the 

Internal Audit Annual Plan for 2020-2021.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The purpose of Internal Audit is to provide independent assurance of the 

effectiveness of the Council’s internal controls, governance and risk 
management arrangements.

3.2 The individual final audit reports provide recommendations for Management to 
act upon and consider in order to achieve improvements where potential 
weakness or risk is identified.  

3.3 Internal Audit adds value to the Council and helps to achieve the Council’s 
objectives by designing an annual audit plan through a systematic and risk-
based approach.

3.4 A significant number of days are committed to fulfil the statutory obligations 
around the Department of Works and Pensions housing benefit subsidy claim.  It 
is felt that this subsidy testing and claims re-performance is best segregated 
from business as usual and does not sit within the Benefits Team.  This position 

Page 75

Agenda Item 14



may be reconsidered if the specific knowledge and skills currently within Internal 
Audit cannot be sustained.

3.5 The COVID-19 support package from Government included business support 
grants within a defined scheme and eligibility, and later discretionary business 
support grants, again with eligibility.

3.6 When lockdown commenced, there were resource issues, homeworking was not 
available, and suddenly there were millions of pounds and hundreds of grants to 
administer and award.

3.7 The Director of Resources requested Internal Audit take on the verification and 
award stages of the newly created grant application process.  Internal Audit 
assisted the Director with the design of the process in order to comply with the 
Government requirements.

3.8 The volume and complexity of the business grants process has absorbed all of 
the Internal Audit resource from March to July and this will continue until the final 
discretionary grants are awarded in August 2020.  The original grant schemes 
remain open but the discretionary scheme now requires all of the time available.

3.9 Also when lockdown commenced a recruitment process was underway to add 
further resource into the department to meet the needs of the service; particularly 
the days required for the housing benefit claim assurance work.  That process 
was not concluded.

3.10 During lockdown, a member of the department obtained alternative employment, 
within the Council, further reducing the resources available.

3.11 The housing benefit assurance work is likely to commence at the end of August 
and that work will require all of the remaining resource.  For that reason the gaps 
within the service will be recruited in the autumn rather than immediately as there 
would be no capacity to train or mentor a new starter.

3.12 The annual plan reflects the temporary impact from COVID-19 and the shortfall 
in resources.

3.13 The areas of high significance within the annual plan were last audited towards 
the end of the 2019-2020 annual plan and, once resources are established, will 
be audited towards the beginning of the 2021-2022 annual plan.  This will 
minimise the gap.

3.14 Any major changes proposed to the processes within the areas of high 
significance within the annual plan will be raised with Internal Audit.

4.0 Consultation 

Page 76

Agenda Item 14



4.1 The Internal Audit annual plan is agreed by the Audit and Governance 
Committee.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options proposed.  The internal audit days used for the 

business support grants have passed and the housing benefit assurance work 
follows a statutory deadline.

5.2 It is possible to ask the external auditor to perform the housing benefit assurance 
work.  This option has been discussed with the Director of Resources and is not 
being pursued. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 The staffing resources are within existing budgets.

7.1.2 There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

Legal 
7.1.3 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report concerns 

internal Council business and services, not individuals.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Internal controls are 
inadequate.

Compliance cannot be 
demonstrated and 
assurance cannot be 
given.

Internal Audit annual 
plan.

Contact Officers 
K Jackson audit@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Internal Audit

Annual Plan

Page 77

Agenda Item 14



Page 78

Agenda Item 14



BARROW BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN 2020/21

Audit Significance
Band Division Days

Contract Audit 1 All Divisions 0
Risk Management 1 Corporate Support 0
Budgetary Control 1 Finance 0
Income Collection 1 Finance 0
Main Accounting System & Periodic Controls 1 Finance 0
Business Rates (NNDR) 1 Revenues & Benefits 0
Council Tax & Council Tax Support 1 Revenues & Benefits 0
Housing Benefits 1 Revenues & Benefits 0
Procurement (inc. Ordering) 2 All Divisions 0
Car Park Meter Income 2 Community Services 0
Corporate Control/Governance 2 Corporate Support 0
Performance Management 2 Corporate Support 0
Standing Orders/Financial Regulations/Anti-Fraud/Other
Policies & Procedures 2 Resources Directorate 0

Accounts Payable 2 Finance 0
Accounts Receivable 2 Finance 0
Treasury Management 2 Finance 0
Payroll (inc Expenses) 2 Finance & HR 0
Housing Maintenance (Day to day repairs) 2 Housing 0
Housing Rents 2 Housing 0

IT AUDIT

20Specific IT Audit inc. implementation review 1

Audits identified by their significance rating or agreed with
Senior Management to ensure adequate coverage of the
Council's internal controls. *To also include completion of
2019/20 Audit Plan

1, 2, 3, 4 & 5 All Divisions 20

DESIGNATED ANNUAL AUDIT ACTIVITY
Cash Floats/Receipting Controls - 0
Community Organisations (inc. Mayor's Account) - 2
Financial/Account Reviews - 5
Fraud Hotline - 3
Funding Checks/Grant Claims - 10
Implementation Review - 10
NFI Responsibilities - 5
Probity - 5

AUDIT MANAGEMENT
Audit Administration - 10
Audit Committee - 10
Audit Management/Planning/Reporting - 10
External Audit Liaison - 0

Plan days 110

Benefit Certification Testing (assuming none undertaken by
External Audit) - 208

Business Support Grants - 212

TOTAL AUDIT DAYS 530

Page 79

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee
30th July 2020

Restricted Assurance Monitoring

 
Report from:  Corporate Support Manager

Report Author: Corporate Support Manager

Wards:  All wards may be impacted

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 This report provides Members with an update on the implementation of 

recommendations from Internal Audit reports where the Audit Conclusion was 
Restricted Assurance. 

2.0 Recommendation 
It is recommended that Members note the report. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 Internal Audit undertakes reviews of Council’s systems as defined in the annual 

audit plan. The audit conclusion may be Restricted Assurance where significant 
weaknesses are identified. This may be as a result of Priority 1 recommendations 
or because the Audit Conclusion may also be Restricted Assurance if there are a 
significant number of important issues. 

3.2 At the last meeting of this committee there were no Audit Reports where the Audit 
Conclusion was Restricted Assurance. There were two reports where the audit 
conclusion was no assurance and these are the subject of other reports at this 
meeting.

4.0 Consultation 
Not applicable

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 Not applicable – the report is to note.

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 
6.1 There are no links to the Council’s priorities

Page 81

Agenda Item 15



7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1     There maybe financial implications relating to the no assurance conclusions but 

these will be discussed in with those reports.

Legal 
7.2     There are no legal implications to raise in this report.

 
Equality and Diversity 
7.3     There are no equality or diversity implications related to this report.

Contact Officers 
Corporate Support Manager jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk

Page 82

Agenda Item 15

mailto:jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk


PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee
30th July 2020

Risk Management Report

 
Report from:  Corporate Support Manager

Report Author: Corporate Support Manager

Wards:  All wards may be impacted

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 The Council Risk Register has been updated by Management Team and the 

policy has been updated to reflect changes to the register.. 
2.0   Recommendation 

Members are invited to consider the risk report and determine whether 
further action is required.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The Council’s risk register is submitted to Management Team on a quarterly basis 

to be reviewed and updated. The report is presented to the Audit and Governance 
Committee for them to determine whether the Council is adhering to the Council’s 
Risk Policy. 

3.2 The Risk register was last presented to Management Team in March 2020. During 
the Covid -19 lockdown period, a number of risks had to be assessed and action 
taken in a short time period. This was undertaken by the Barrow Covid -19 
Strategic Co-ordinating Group and it was not appropriate for them to go the 
process defined in the Risk Policy. Now that we are in the recovery phase it is 
appropriate to return to the designated process and transfer all relevant risks into 
the updated register.

4.0 Consultation 
Not applicable..

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 Not applicable – risks should be reviewed and managed

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 
6.1 Risk management underpins Council Plan activity.

Page 83

Agenda Item 16



7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1     There maybe financial implications relating to risk and that will be considered on 

an individual basis.

Legal 
7.2     There maybe legal implications relating to risk and that will be considered on an 

individual basis.

Equality and Diversity 
7.3     There are no equality or diversity implications related to this report.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
None compliance with Risk 
Policy

Risks to the Council and 
local people are not 
considered

Process via Management 
Team and Audit 
Committee

Contact Officers 
Corporate Support Manager jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Corporate and Operational Risk Register 

Page 84

Agenda Item 16

mailto:jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk


Corporate and Operational Risk Register

1

Corporate Risk Register

Reference 
Risk number/year/version

Inherent 
Risk 

Mitigating 
Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Lead Officer

1/20/1

Significant changes 
arising from Central 
Government 
Legislation.

5 5 25

 Regulatory changes
 Changes to service delivery
 Service performance implications
 Resource requirements

Awareness
 Monitoring Officer will receive notification.
 Horizon scanning by Management Team and Heads of 

Service.
 Membership of professional and local government bodies 

aids horizon scanning.
Actions
 Management Team will determine actions to be taken.
 We will create detailed project plans to manage 

implementation of changes.
 We will adopt a management of change approach to mitigate 

against significant impact to the Council and its staff
 Service Manager will be responsible for implementing 

changes.
 Financial and workforce planning will be reviewed.

4 5 20 Monitoring Officer

2/20/1
Poor internal and 
external  
communications.

4 4 16

 Poorly informed direction of resources and lack of support 
for change.

 Providing inaccurate information to the public may result in 
processing errors and reworking.

 Public may have a negative perception of the Council.

Awareness
 Communication strategy on priorities
 Internal & external regular publications
 Regular staff communication from the Chief Executive 

Officer
 Comments, Compliments and Complaints monitoring and 

reporting procedure
Actions
 Regular staff and management meetings
 Key stakeholder networks for consultation
 Co-ordinated press releases
 Access external communication

3 3 9 Head of Paid Service

3/20/1

Failure to achieve 
efficiency saving, 
maximise income, 
or performance 
targets. 

4 4 16

 Greater costs than budgeted for. Awareness
 Performance Management Framework
 Regular reporting to Management team
Actions
 Heightened analysis of budgets and services
 Service transformation
 Business/service planning
 Pursue action to increase income streams
 Budget and performance monitoring

3 3 9 Director of 
Resources

4/20/1 Poor management 
of projects. 4 5 20

 Leads to overruns on time or cost and failure to achieve 
project aims. 

Awareness 
 Managing Contract performance.
 Contract Checklist 
 Service plans
Actions
 Project Management methodology
 Contract Standing Orders and Financial Regulations
 Budgetary control

3 2 6 Director of People 
and Place

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 16
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

2

Reference 
Risk number/year/version

Inherent 
Risk 

Mitigating 
Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Lead Officer

5/20/1

Ineffective 
workforce planning, 
or imposed 
reductions in 
resources. 

4 5 20

 Poor standards of service or disruption to service.  
 Service transformation and commissioning can help build 

resilience.
 Loss of qualified and knowledgeable staff exposing the 

Council to risk of service failure and legal challenge.

Awareness
 Established suite of HR policies and procedures
 Service planning process  
Actions 
 Organisational Development
 Training and development
 Working environment
 Staff surveys/consultation
 Flexible working
 Business continuity plans
 Management training
 Appraisals

2 3 6 Director of 
Resources

6/20/1 Failure to secure 
and manage data. 5 5 25

 Loss of/ corruption of/ inaccuracy of data, results in 
disruption to services and breaches of security.  

 Major IT physical hardware failure or electronic attack, such 
as viruses, hacking or spyware, causes disruption to 
services and breaches of security.  

 Financial penalties and reputational risk.

Awareness
 Data breach reporting
 IT security monitoring
 Awareness of cyber security risks
Actions
 Data protection policy and procedure
 Freedom of Information publication scheme
 Data retention policy and procedure for archive and disposal
 Information breach response plan
 Business continuity plans
 IT system security
 Public Services Network compliance
 IT and data online training modules
 GDPR training and policy
 Data Sharing Agreements
 Data owner central register
 Anti-virus software
 Off-site replicate servers
 Tested disaster recovery plan
 Back-ups off site
 Secondary power supply
 IT security policies
 Critical services’ business continuity plans include manual 

operation
 Clear desk strategy

2 3 6 TBC

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 16
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

3

Reference 
Risk number/year/version

Inherent 
Risk 

Mitigating 
Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Lead Officer

7/20/1 Economic change. 5 5 25

 Imposed savings requirements, the financial settlement and 
Fairer Funding Review; Housing Revenue Account 
restraints; reliance on Council Tax and Business Rate 
income.

 Changes in service demands and levels of income and 
unsustainable costs for the Council.

Awareness
 Council wide efficiency monitoring and reporting
 Budget monitoring
 Debt management policy
Actions 
 Section 151/Chief Finance Officer
 Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders
 Appropriately trained staff
 Medium Term Financial Plan and Budget Strategy
 Political decisions aligned to planned budget strategies and 

available resources
 Review of fees and charges
 Maintaining and contributing to financial reserves
 Strong financial management system
 Capital finance risk management
 Internal Audit review of fundamental systems
 Modelling and monitoring of Business Rates (including 

appeals) and Council Tax
 Spending Review technical assessment

4 4 16 Section 151 Officer

8/20/1

Natural disaster; 
malicious or 
accidental incident.

Covid – 19 second 
wave.

5 4 20

 Affects support required by citizens or disrupts existing 
Council services.

Awareness
 Information provided by external organisations
 Communications Strategy
Actions
 Emergency plan 
 Emergency planning exercises
 Business continuity plans
 Arrangements with partner organisations
 Service arrangements with major contractors

4 4 16 Head of Paid Service

9/20/1 Changes in political 
priorities. 5 4 20

 Resulting in immediate changes that require additional 
resource to achieve and fail to reflect priorities determined 
by consultation.

Actions
 Financial and workforce planning
 Monitoring by Management Team and reporting to the 

Executive Committee
 Clear corporate planning and regular performance 

monitoring
 Effective service planning
 Respond to national consultation on key policy changes
 Membership of the Local Government Association

5 3 15 Head of Paid Service 

10/20/1
Major Health and 
Safety incident at 
the Council. 

4 4 16

 Additional costs for inquiry, disruption to service and 
possible prosecution.

Awareness
 Corporate wide H&S training
Actions
 Health & Safety (H&S) Board
 H&S Management Group
 H&S procedures – addressed at every service area
 H&S audits /peer review
 Specialist H&S advisor
 Insurance

4 3 12 Head of Paid Service

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 16
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

4

Reference 
Risk number/year/version

Inherent 
Risk 

Mitigating 
Risk

Ref. Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Lead Officer

11/20/1

Brexit
Impact of the UK 
exiting the EU with 
or without a 
Withdrawal 
Agreement

4 4 16

 Additional costs for inquiry, disruption to service and 
possible prosecution.

 Impact on the Council of new legislative framework in a 
range of areas.

 Potential civil disruption / product shortages

 The Council has a registered Brexit Lead
 The Council is part of the Cumbria Local Authorities Brexit 

Forum and the Regional Network
 The Council is part of the Cumbria Local Resilience Forum
 Funding has been made available from Central Government 

which is in reserve for any short term activity that may be 
required.

 There is a continued review of the potential implications to 
the Council as the progress towards leaving the EU is 
ongoing.

4 3 12 Assistant Director – 
Community Services

12/20/1
Failure to deliver 
the objectives of the 
Council plan

5 3 15

 Opportunities to deliver improvements for the Borough may 
be missed.

 The Council Plan will be presented to the Executive 
Committee in November.

 The plan contains actions which will deliver the plan’s 
objectives

5 2 10 Chief Executive

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 16
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

5

Operational Risk Register

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherent Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Risk owner

1/20/1

Service provision 
and performance 
affected by 
organisational 
change, industrial 
action and/or staff 
sickness.

4 5 20

 Complaints, poor performance and possible further costs. Awareness
 Established suite of HR policies and procedures
 Organisational culture
 Management training
Actions 
 Working environment
 Staff surveys/consultation
 Flexible working
 Business continuity plans
 Appraisals and professional training
 Performance monitoring and management
 Clear absence management scheme
 Workforce strategy

3 4 12 Section 151 Officer

2/20/1

Failure of contractor 
or partners to deliver 
services or meet 
agreed performance 
targets.

4 5 20

 Additional costs or failed objectives. Awareness
 Project management
Actions 
 Procurement processes – including financial 

aspects/contract standing orders/equality standards
 Contract process – creation of robust contracts
 Accountability and risk ownership documented
 Service Level Agreements
 Contract monitoring
 Trained/skilled staff
 Established governance arrangements

4 3 12 Director of People 
and Place

3/20/1

Potential for fraud, 
corruption, 
malpractice or error, 
by internal or 
external threats.  In 
additional to 
immediate financial 
loss. 

5 3 12

 Could harm reputation and lead to additional inquiry costs 
and penalties.

Awareness
 Appropriate culture and risk awareness
Actions
 Anti-fraud and corruption strategy
 Whistleblowing policy
 National Anti-Fraud Network
 National Fraud Initiative
 Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders
 Codes of conduct
 Appropriately trained staff
 Segregation of duties
 Supported financial management system
 Budget monitoring regime
 Internal Audit review of systems and controls
 Insurance
 Annual Governance Statement

3 1 3 Director of 
Resources

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 16
A

ppendix 1



Corporate and Operational Risk Register

6

Reference 
Risk number/year/version Inherent Risk Mitigating 

Risk

Ref Risks

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Potential consequences Existing control/mitigation

Im
pa

ct

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Sc
or

e

Risk owner

4/20/1

Significant 
infrastructure 
projects aren’t 
properly supported.

5 4 20

 Projects aren’t delivered in a timely manner.
 Additional project cost.
 Loss of reputation.

Awareness
 Monitoring at IT Users Board
 Service delivery plan will establish key milestones.
Actions
 Regular reviews by the Major Projects Board and the Major 

Projects Advisory Board.
 Review resource and skill requirements.
 Realign resources with the Council’s priorities.
 Address skill shortages.

5 2 10 Director of People 
and Place

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 16
A

ppendix 1



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee
30th July 2020

Local Code of Corporate Governance

 
Report from:  Corporate Support Manager

Report Author: Corporate Support Manager

Wards:  All wards may be impacted

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 Provide Members with the Local Code of Corporate Governance for 2020/2021.
 
2.0 Recommendation 

Members are invited to consider and endorse the Local Code of Corporate 
Governance

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The Council produces a local code of corporate governance which is reviewed 

on an annual basis. Guidance for preparing the code is provided by the 
Chartered Institute for Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 

3.2 CIPA revised the framework for good governance in the public sector based on 
the International Framework, Good Governance in the Public Sector. The 
framework is designed as a reference document for those who develop 
governance codes for the public sector when updating and reviewing their own 
codes. The framework provides a shared understanding of what constitutes good 
governance in the public sector. 

3.3 Although the core principles have not changed there have been some 
improvements that have been introduced in the last year and these are 
highlighted.

3.4 The code was circulated to members of Management Team in March 2020. This 
committee is invited to consider and endorse the Code.  

4.0 Consultation 
Not applicable.

5.0 Alternative Options 

Page 91

Agenda Item 17



5.1 The Committee could decide not to endorse the Code, but the Council is 
required to have appropriate governance controls in place and this forms part of 
a suite of documents which are regularly reviewed by the Council.

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 
6.1 Good governance and decision making underpins the delivery of the Council 

Plan and its objectives.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1     There are no financial implications relating to Code of Corporate Governance

Legal 
7.2     There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.3     The Local Code of Corporate Governance has not Equality and Diversity 

implications.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Risks related to the Council’s 
Governance arrangements 
are included in the report

Risks to the Council and 
local people are not 
considered

Process via Management 
Team and Audit and 
Governance Committee

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Local Code prepared that is 
not in line with proper practice

Potential gaps in 
systems of internal 
control

Regular review of Local 
Code, annual review of 
effectiveness, based on 
CIPFA framework

Contact Officers 
Corporate Support Manager jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020/21

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document Where it is available 
1 https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-

guidance/standards/international-framework-good-
governance-in-the-public-sector

Page 92

Agenda Item 17

mailto:jpenfold@barrowbc.gov.uk
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/international-framework-good-governance-in-the-public-sector
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/international-framework-good-governance-in-the-public-sector
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/international-framework-good-governance-in-the-public-sector


Page 93

Agenda Item 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Local Code of Corporate 
Governance

Version Control:

Document Name: Local Code of Corporate Governance

Version: Version 1.0

Author: Corporate Support Manager

Approved by: Audit Committee 

Date Approved: July 2020

Review Date February 2021

Introduction

The Council produces a code of corporate governance which is reviewed on an 

Page 95

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 1

annual basis. Guidance for preparing the code is provided by the Chartered 
Institute for Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).  CIPFA has developed a 
framework for good governance in the public sector based on the International 
Framework, Good Governance in the Public Sector.  The framework comprises 
of seven principles of good governance.  In the framework governance is defined 
as follows:

Governance comprises the arrangements put in place to ensure that 
the intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved.

The framework also states that:

To deliver good governance in the public sector, both governing bodies and 
individuals working for public sector entities must try to achieve the entity’s 
objectives while acting in the public interest at all times.

Acting in the public interest implies primary consideration of the benefits for 
society, which should result in positive outcomes for service users and other 
stakeholders.

In local government the governing body is the full Council. Our Local Code of 
Corporate Governance is the document that sets out the framework within which 
the Council conducts its business and affairs; it is based on seven principles of 
good governance.

The seven principles of good governance set out in the framework are:

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating a strong commitment to ethical values, 
and respecting the rule of law.

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.
C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and 

environmental benefits.
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 

intended outcomes.
E. Developing the entity’s capacity including the capability of its leadership and 

the individuals within it.
F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 

public financial management.
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver 

effective accountability.

Page 96

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 2

Defining the core principles and sub principles of good 
governance

The diagram from the International Framework above illustrates how the various 
principles for good governance in the public sector relate to each other. 

Principles A and B permeate implementation of principles C to G. The diagram 
also illustrates that good governance is dynamic, and that an entity as a whole 
should be committed to improving governance on a continuing basis through a 
process of evaluation and review.
. Bent to ethical

Page 97

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 3

A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating a strong commitment 
to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law.

The Council is responsible for using national resources collected through taxation 
to provide services for our citizens. We are accountable not only for how much 
we spend but also for the way we use the resources with which we have been 
entrusted. This includes accountability for outputs, both positive and negative, 
and for the outcomes they have achieved. In addition, we have an overarching 
responsibility to serve the public interest in adhering to the requirements of 
legislation and government policies. 

Ethical values and standards are defined in the Council’s Constitution and should 
form the basis for all our policies, procedures and actions as well as the 
behaviour of our Members and staff.

It is essential that, as a whole, we can demonstrate the appropriateness of all our 
actions across all activities and have mechanisms in place that encourage and 
enforce adherence to ethical values and to respect the rule of law.

Behaving with integrity

Ensuring members and officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where 
acting in the public interest is visibly and consistently demonstrated thereby 
protecting the reputation of the Council.

 We have put in place arrangements to ensure that Members and staff of 
the Council behave with integrity and are not influenced by prejudice, bias 
or conflicts of interest in dealing with different stakeholders. We have put 
in place appropriate processes to ensure that these arrangements are 
workable including declaration of interests and anti-corruption policies.

 We have adopted formal codes of conduct defining standards of personal 
behaviour for Members and officers.

 Ensuring Members take the lead in establishing specific values for the 
organisation and its staff and that they are communicated and understood.

 The Council maintains shared values including leadership values 
(openness, support and respect) both for the Council and its officers. 
These are defined in the constitution and reflect public expectations about 
the conduct and behaviour of individuals.  

 All staff are expected to attend one of a number of externally facilitated 
workshops which highlight the importance of our values and behaviours in 
delivering our services to the public and working with each other. The 
outputs from the manager’s workshop will be drawn together and an 

Page 98

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 4

implementation plan will be produced.

Ensuring members and officers lead by example and use the above standard 
operating principles or values as a framework for decision making and other 
actions.

 We use shared values as a guide for decision making and as a basis for 
developing positive and trusting relationships within the Council. We 
demonstrate this by adherence to the constitution. Elected members will 
identify and agree the priorities for the Council to ensure they reflect the 
needs and aspirations of residents and businesses. 

 We have a Council plan to communicate our priorities and values to staff, 
Members and the public.

Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the standard operating principles 
or values through appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on a 
regular basis to ensure they operate effectively.

 We ensure that systems and processes for financial administration and 
control together with protection of the Council’s resources and assets, 
comply with ethical standards; and are subject to monitoring of their 
effectiveness.

Demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values

Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the organisation’s ethical 
performance.

 We maintain the Audit and Governance Committee to raise awareness 
and take the lead in ensuring high standards of conduct are embedded 
within the Council’s culture. 

 We are continuing to audit all departments on a rolling basis to give 
assurance that staff are aware of and comply with the Council’s policies. 

 All staff are expected to attend one of a number of externally facilitated 
workshops which highlight the importance of our values and behaviours in 
delivering our services to the public and working with each other.

 We will publish an Annual Governance Statement, signed by the Chief 
Executive and the Chair of the Audit Committee to confirm that we are 
satisfied that we have effective governance arrangements in place.

Page 99

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 5

Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and ensuring they permeate 
all aspects of the organisation’s culture and operation.  

 We have adopted formal codes of conduct defining standards of personal 
behaviour for Members and officers.

 We have put in place effective systems to protect the rights of staff. We 
ensure that policies for whistle-blowing which are accessible to staff and 
those contracting with the Council, and arrangements for the support of 
whistle-blowers, are in place.

Respecting the rule of law

Ensuring Members and staff demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule of the 
law as well as adhering to relevant laws and regulations.

 Members and officers will observe all specific legislative requirements 
placed upon the Council as well as the requirements of general law, and in 
particular integrate the key principles of administrative law – rationality, 
legality and natural justice into the procedures and decision making.

Creating the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers and other key post 
holders are able to fulfil their responsibilities.

 We ensure that professional advice on matters that have legal or financial 
implications is available and recorded well in advance of decision making 
if appropriate. 

 The Council is establishing a Head of Legal and Governance position and 
has appointed an officer.  

 Striving to use the authority’s full powers for the benefit of its citizens, its 
communities and other stakeholders.

 Officers actively recognise the limits of lawful activity placed on them but 
also strive to utilise their powers to the full benefit of their communities.

Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively.

 We ensure that policies for whistle-blowing which are accessible to staff 
and those contracting with the Council, and arrangements for the support 
of whistle-blowers, are in place. The Council has effective disciplinary 
policies in place.

Ensuring corruption and misuse of power are dealt with effectively

Page 100

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 6

 Members and officers will observe all specific legislative requirements 
placed upon the Council as well as the requirements of general law, and in 
particular integrate the key principles of administrative law – rationality, 
legality and natural justice into the procedures and decision making.

 The Council has effective disciplinary policies in place. Non-compliance 
with the Members Code of Conduct can be effectively dealt with through 
the Council’s Audit and Governance Committee.

B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement

Openness

The Council operates for the public good, and ensure openness in our activities. 
We strive to use clear, trusted channels of communication and consultation to 
engage effectively with all groups of stakeholders, such as individual citizens 
and service users, as well as institutional stakeholders.

Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and 
communicating the organisation’s commitment to openness.

We ensure that the Council’s vision, strategic plans, priorities and targets 
are developed through robust mechanisms, and in consultation with 
the local community and other key stakeholders, and that they are 
clearly articulated and disseminated. 

Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, 
outputs and outcomes.

 We maintain a culture of accountability so that Members and Officers 
understand to whom they are accountable and for what.

 We ensure that the Council as a whole is open and accessible to the 
community, service users and staff and we are committed to openness 
and transparency in all dealings. We will attempt to publish all committee 
agenda items under “part 1” unless there is the need to preserve 
confidentiality where it is proper and appropriate to do so.

Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records and 
explanations to stakeholders and being explicit about the criteria, rationale and 
considerations used. In due course, that they are clear about the impact and 
consequences of those decisions.

Page 101

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 7

 We provide clear recommendations to the decision making committees, 
this is by supported reasoning and evidence. We will assess the financial, 
legal, health and safety, equalities and other risks relating to those 
decisions and provide Members with the outputs from those assessments.

 We deliver effective scrutiny of the Council’s business as appropriate and 
produce an annual report on the activities of scrutiny function.

Engaging comprehensively with institutional stakeholders

Effectively engaging with stakeholders to ensure that the purpose, objectives 
intended outcomes are clear so that outcomes are achieved successfully and 
sustainably.

 We will strive to engage with stakeholders on an individual and collective 
basis to demonstrate that we deliver services and outcomes that meet the 
needs and expectations of the public. These arrangements will recognise 
that different sections of the community have different priorities and 
establish robust processes for dealing with these competing demands.

Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be used 
more efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively.

 We contribute to and support initiatives that benefit the residents and 
businesses in the Borough.  

 We ensure that partnerships are based on trust, a shared commitment to 
change and a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among 
partners.

 When supporting stakeholder relationships we will be clear about the 
Terms of Reference and clearly define our role. Our arrangements will 
recognise that different sections of the community have different priorities 
and establish robust processes for dealing with these competing 
demands.

 Engaging with individual citizens and service users effectively

Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the organisation will 
meaningfully consult with or involve  individual citizens, service users and other 
stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision is contributing towards 
the achievement of intended outcomes. 

Page 102

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 8

 We have a customer service strategy which will define how we will engage 
with customers and other stakeholders and involve them in improving our 
services.

Encourage collecting and evaluating the views and experiences of communities, 
citizens, service users and organisations of different backgrounds including 
reference to future needs.

The recent recruitment of an additional Director post with responsibility for 
“People and Place” 

 We have a customer service strategy which will define how we will engage 
with customers and other stakeholders and involve them in improving our 
services.

 In 2019 we carried out an external Customer Service review in order to 
assess whether our service delivery is appropriate. We will be 
implementing a number of the recommendations in the next financial year.

Implementing effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how views 
have been taken into account.

 We publish information on the Council’s financial statements as well as 
information about outcomes, achievements and how they relate to 
stakeholders input. These are reported to Management Team and the 
Executive Committee on a regular basis.

Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other stakeholder 
groups to ensure inclusivity.

 We assess the feedback from all groups and develop a balanced 
approach to delivering improvements.

Taking account of the interests of future generations of tax payers and service 
users to ensure intergenerational equity.

 We will strive to engage with citizens and service users of all ages to 
understand their expectation for future service delivery.

 External communications support has been brought in and we are looking 
to develop our communications support

 We have recruited a Policy and Engagement Officer to strengthen our 
relationship with local partners.

Page 103

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 9

 During 2020 we will be developing a community engagement plan to 
ensure we have a continued productive dialogue with our residents.

 
C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, 
and environmental benefits.

The Council has prepared and published a plan which sets out the Council’s 
priorities; a Medium Term Financial Plan which is a financial representation of the 
Council’s Vision and supports the priorities and a Workforce Strategy which 
demonstrates how we will develop the capability and capacity to deliver the 
priorities. We will review these documents on a regular basis to ensure they 
reflect the vision of the Council.

Defining outcomes

We have a clear vision and an agreed formal statement of the Council’s purpose 
and intended outcomes, which contains appropriate performance indicators, to 
provide the basis for the Council’s overall strategy, planning and other decisions.

 We make a clear statement of the Council’s purpose and vision and use it 
as a basis for corporate and service planning. The Council’s Plan will 
inform Service Delivery Plans to ensure all departments are working 
towards delivering the Council’s objectives.

 We identify and monitor service performance indicators which 
demonstrate how the quality of service for users is to be measured. This 
will include a phased introduction of an effective data collection system for 
all priority services.

We specify the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including 
individual citizens and service users. It could be immediately or over the course 
of a year or longer.

We aim to deliver defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources 
that will be available.

 We ensure that those making decisions are provided with financial and 
non-financial information that is fit for the purpose – relevant, timely and 
gives clear explanations of technical issues and their implications. 

 We maintain a prudential financial framework, balance commitments with 
available resources; and monitor income and expenditure levels to ensure 
this balance is achieved. 

Page 104

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 10

Identifying and managing risks to the achievement of outcomes.

 The Council has an effective risk management system which is regularly 
reviewed by senior managers and the Executive Commitee and monitored 
by the Audit and Governance Committee.

Managing service user’s expectations effectively with regard to determining 
priorities and making the best use of the resources available.

 We clearly define the level of service that we provide in the Customer 
Services Strategy.

 We carry out a biennial survey of staff to understand their views on how 
we deliver services and how the Council functions.

Sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

Considering and balancing the combined economic, social and environmental 
impact of policies, plans and decisions when taking decisions about service 
provision.

 One of the Key drivers in the Customer Service Strategy is ensuring all 
customers are treated consistently and fairly.

 We will assess the equalities risks relating to those decisions and provide 
Members with the outputs from those assessments.

Taking a longer-term view with regard to decision making, taking account of risk 
and acting transparently where there are potential conflicts between the 
authority’s intended outcomes and short-term factors such as the political cycle 
or financial constraints.

 The Council takes longer term view and publishes these so the Public are 
aware of our intended outcomes. This information can also be found 
published documents including the Budget Strategy, the Council’s 
Priorities and the Council Plan.

Determining the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting 
interests between achieving the various economic, social and environmental 
benefits, through consultation where possible, in order to ensure appropriate 
trade offs.

 The Council consults the public on significant financial choices including 
the Budget Strategy, the Council Plan and the Annual Budget.

Page 105

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 11

D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 
intended outcomes.

The Council clearly defines its priorities and plans which are aimed at delivering 
the outcomes that the Council intends. These will focus on delivering effective 
and efficient services for the residents. We assess the risks of not achieving 
those outcomes and ensure that there are mitigating actions in place to support 
the achievement of intended outcomes. The Council’s financial management 
arrangements ensure that there is adequate resource available to deliver those 
outcomes. The Council reviews progress against delivering those outcomes 
through its performance management arrangements.

Determining interventions

 Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a 
variety of options indicating how intended outcomes would be 
achieved and associated risks. Therefore ensuring best value is 
achieved however services are provided

We make a clear statement of the Council’s purpose and vision and use it as a 
basis for corporate and service planning.
We have risk management arrangements in place including mitigating actions to 
support the achievement of the Council’s intended outcomes. 
We ensure that budget calculations are robust and reserves are adequate.  

 Considering feedback from citizens and service users when making 
decisions about service improvements or where services are no longer 
required in order to prioritise competing demands within limited 
resources available including people, skills, land and assets and
bearing in mind future impacts.

We strive to engage with citizens and service users of all ages to understand 
their expectation for future service delivery.
We ensure that there are effective arrangements in place to monitor service 
delivery.
We put in place effective arrangements to deal with a failure in service delivery 
and explore options for improving service delivery and outcomes for our 
residents. 

Planning interventions

 Establishing and implementing robust planning and control cycles that 
cover strategic and operational plans, priorities and targets.

We make a clear statement of the Council’s purpose and vision and use it as a 
basis for corporate and service planning.

Page 106

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 12

We provide senior managers and Members with timely financial and performance 
information.
We align financial and performance data to provide an overall understanding of 
performance.

 Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in determining how 
services and other courses of action should be planned and delivered.

 We have established a Town Deal Board, a Major Projects Board, a 
Corporate Procurement Board and an IT Users Board to provide 
direction and support the delivery of our priorities.

We have risk management arrangements in place including mitigating actions to 
support the achievement of the Council’s intended outcomes. We work with our 
contractors to understand our shared risks.

 Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms 
for delivering goods and services can be adapted to changing 
circumstances.

We have prepared contingency arrangements including a disaster recovery plan, 
business continuity plan and arrangements for delivering services during adverse 
weather conditions.

 Establishing appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of 
the planning process in order to identify how the performance of 
services and projects is to be measured.

We provide senior managers and Members with timely financial and performance 
information.
We align financial and performance data to provide an overall understanding of 
performance.

 Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information required to review 
service quality regularly.

Individual departments are responsible for reviewing service delivery on a regular 
basis and there is a process for increasing capacity via Management Board.

 Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies and the 
medium term financial plan.

Page 107

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 13

 We will prepare Service Delivery Plans so that staff and residents are 
clear about what each service is providing.

We ensure that budget calculations are robust and reserves are adequate.
We ensure compliance with the CIPFA codes regarding a Prudential Framework 
for Capital Finance and Treasury Management.

 Informing medium and long term resource planning by drawing up 
realistic estimates of revenue and capital expenditure aimed at 
developing a sustainable funding strategy.

We produce a Medium Term Financial Plan and a budget strategy which 
articulates our projected expenditure.

Optimising achievement of intended outcomes

 Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances 
service priorities, affordability and other resource constraints.

We produce a Medium Term Financial Plan and a budget strategy which 
articulates our projected expenditure.
 

 Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking
into account the full cost of operations over the medium
and longer term.

We maintain a prudential financial framework, balance commitments with 
available resources; and monitor income and expenditure levels to ensure this 
balance is achieved.

 Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets the context for 
ongoing decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to 
changes in the external environment that may arise during the 
budgetary period in order for outcomes to be achieved while optimising 
resource usage.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy is developed to support the Council’s plan 
and priorties.

 Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning 
and commissioning.

The Council strives to achieve social values by specifying its inclusion in the 
contract tendering process.

Page 108

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 14

E: Developing the capacity of the Council including the capability of its 
leadership and the individuals within it.

The Council has developed and retained a management structure that provides 
leadership and creates the opportunity for staff to work effectively and efficiently 
to achieve the Council objectives. We will provide training and support to enable 
staff to develop their skills so they can achieve their full potential.

Developing the entity’s capacity

Barrow has recently been shortlisted for a series of Government funds including 
the Future High Street, Towns Deal and Heritage Action Zone. Together these 
could see up to £52m of new investment focused on economic development 
activity on Barrow.
The strengths and opportunities enjoyed by our economy are clear and partners 
are now working to harness and coordinate to ensure inclusive growth can be 
achieved.  Central to this is the promotion and deepening of partnership working; 
with the Council engaging proactively with Cumbria LEP to secure 
implementation of the Local Industrial Strategy, Cumbria County to align the 
development and delivery of services and with Lancaster City Council and South 
Lakeland District Council with which the exploration of a growth deal in support of 
a Lancaster and South Cumbria City Region is ongoing.  
This focus on partnerships is also reflected locally with a Town Deal Board, 
containing a range of public, private and third sector stakeholders, established to 
oversee development the Barrow Town Deal. 
As well as strengthening our economic prospectus we are working with our 
partners and the Police Crime Commissioner to strengthen arrangements for 
addressing community safety issues and reshaping the role of the South Cumbria 
Community Safety Partnership.  We are also talking a more proactive role in 
shaping governance and prioritisation around health and wellbeing.  This has 
added complexity in Barrow as the Clinical Commissioning Group boundary is 
co-terminus with the Morecambe Bay area and therefore cuts across two county 
councils.
We have also increased our focus on working with and supporting our voluntary 
and community sector.  

 Reviewing operations, performance and use of assets on a regular 
basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness.

We review the requirements of the roles and assess the skills required by officers 
through the appraisal process and address any training gaps, to enable roles to 
be carried out effectively.
We develop skills on a continuing basis to improve performance, including the 
ability to scrutinise and challenge and to recognise when outside expert advice is 
needed.

Page 109

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 15

We ensure that the statutory officers have the skills, resources and support 
necessary to perform effectively in their roles and that these roles are properly 
understood throughout the Council.

 Improving resource use through appropriate application of techniques 
such as benchmarking and other options in order to determine how 
resources are allocated so that defined outcomes are achieved 
effectively and efficiently.

 Recognising the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working 
where added value can be achieved.

 Developing and maintaining an effective workforce plan to enhance 
the strategic allocation of resources.

The Council has produced a Workforce Strategy which supports fostering a 
culture of continuous improvement by embedding transformation and
service redesign within the performance management framework of the Council.

Developing the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals

 The Local Government Association was recently invited by the Council to 
offer an external perspective of the Council’s governance arrangements. A 
number of recommendations came out of this review and an improvement 
plan has recently been agreed by Council.

 The Local Government Association has also recently completed a Peer 
Challenge and we have produced an action plan to implement the 
recommendations from this review.

We have developed protocols to ensure effective communication between 
Council Members and officers in their respective roles.

 Publishing a statement that specifies the types of decisions that are 
delegated and those reserved for the collective decision making of the 
governing body. 

Through the constitution we have set out a clear statement of the respective roles 
and responsibilities of the Council’s Executive Committee and the Members 
individually. 
We have determined a scheme of delegated and reserved powers within the 
constitution and ensure that the scheme is monitored and updated when 
required.
We have set out a clear statement of the respective roles and responsibilities of 

Page 110

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 16

the Council’s other committees and senior officers.

 Ensuring the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive have clearly 
defined and distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby the 
Chief Executive leads in implementing strategy and managing the delivery 
of services and other outputs set by members and each provides a check 
and a balance for each other’s authority

We have established a Leadership Group of Senior Members who meet weekly 
with the Chief Executive to develop their understanding of roles and objectives.
We will ensure that effective management arrangements are in place at the top of 
the organisation.
The Chief Executive is responsible and accountable to the Council for all aspects 
of operational management.

 Developing the capabilities of members and senior management to 
achieve effective leadership and to enable the organisation to respond 
successfully to changing legal and policy demands as well as economic, 
political and environmental changes and risks by:

– ensuring members and staff have access to appropriate induction 
tailored to their role and that ongoing training and development matching 
individual and organisational requirements is available and encouraged.

– ensuring members and officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge, 
resources and support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and ensuring
that they are able to update their knowledge on a continuing basis.

– ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through 
shared learning, including lessons learnt from governance weaknesses 
both internal and external.

We assess the skills required by Members including the understanding of 
financial systems. We will agree a personal development plan to develop skills 
and address any training gaps, to enable roles to be carried out effectively.
We will develop skills on a continuing basis to improve performance, including 
the ability to scrutinise and challenge and to recognise when outside expert 
advice is needed. Member Training arrangements have recently been the subject 
of a scrutiny and a number of the recommendations from the review have been 
implemented.

The revised Member Development Strategy was agreed by the Executive 
Committee in February 2020 and by Council in June 2020.

We will ensure that the statutory officers have the skills, resources and support 

Page 111

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 17

necessary to perform effectively in their roles and that these roles are properly 
understood throughout the Council.

 Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public 
participation.

All Council meetings are open to the public and agendas are published and made 
available 5 days in advance of the meeting.
Due to the Covid -19 situation Council meetings are being held virtually and the 
Part 1 items on the agenda are streamed  live on the Council’s YouTube channel. 
We will ensure that the Council as a whole is open and accessible to the 
community, service users and staff and we are committed to openness and 
transparency in all dealings. We attempt to publish all committee agenda items 
under “part 1” unless there is the need to preserve confidentiality where it is 
proper and appropriate to do so.

 Taking steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensuring 
leaders are open to constructive feedback from the governance and peer 
reviews.

We maintain an effective Audit and Governance Committee which is independent 
of the executive and scrutiny functions. The Committee was renamed Audit and 
Governance in June 2020 and its terms of reference reviewed to further reflect 
the standards and governance arrangements.

 Holding staff to account through regular performance reviews which take 
account of training or development needs.

We will review the performance and assess the skills required by officers through 
the appraisal process and address any training gaps, to enable roles to be 
carried out effectively.

 Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing 
of the workforce and support individuals in maintaining their own physical 
and mental wellbeing.

We have a number of health and well-being policies in place and provide a 
number of support packages in place which staff can access.

F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and 
strong public financial management.

The Council recognises the need to implement an effective performance 
management system that will allow us to deliver services effectively and 
efficiently. We understand that risk management, internal control and strong 

Page 112

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 18

financial management are essential for us to achieve our objectives and we have 
put appropriate arrangements in place.
We ensure our arrangements for financial and internal control and management 
of risk are formally addressed within the annual governance reports.

Managing risk

 Recognising that risk management is an integral part of all activities and 
must be considered in all aspects of decision making.

We have risk management arrangements in place including mitigating actions to 
support the achievement of the Council’s intended outcomes. We work with our 
contractors to understand our shared risks.
We ensure that risk management is embedded into the culture of the Council, 
with Members and managers at all levels recognising that risk management is 
part of their job.

 Implementing robust and integrated risk management arrangements and 
ensuring that they are working effectively.

The Council’s risk register is agreed annually by the Executive Committee. The 
register is reviewed on a quarterly basis by Management Team and the output is 
reported to the Audit and Governance Committee.

 Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly 
allocated.

The responsibilities for managing risk are defined in the Council’s risk policy.

Managing performance

 Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning, specification, 
execution and independent post implementation review.

 Making decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice 
pointing out the implications and risks inherent in the organisation’s 
financial, social and environmental position and outlook.

We ensure that those making decisions are provided with financial and non-
financial information that is fit for the purpose – relevant, timely and gives clear 
explanations of technical issues and their implications. 
The Council’s performance framework defines responsibilities for strategic and 
operational performance.

Page 113

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 19

 Ensuring an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which 
provides constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives 
before, during and after decisions are made thereby enhancing the 
organisation’s performance and that of any organisation for which it is 
responsible.

We maintain an effective Audit and Governance Committee and scrutiny function, 
which provides constructive challenge.

 Providing members and senior management with regular reports on 
service delivery plans and on progress towards outcome achievement.

The Council has a performance management framework which was agreed by 
the Executive Committee and performance data is reported to Management 
Board, the Executive Committee and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on a 
quarterly basis. 

 Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages (such as 
budgets) and post implementation reporting (e.g. financial statements).

We will ensure effective internal control arrangements exist for sound financial 
management systems and processes.

Robust internal control

 Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with 
achieving objectives.

We will ensure that those making decisions are provided with financial and non-
financial information that is fit for the purpose – relevant, timely and gives clear 
explanations of technical issues and their implications. 
We ensure that risk management is embedded into the culture of the Council, 
with Members and managers at all levels recognising that risk management is 
part of their job.

 Evaluating and monitoring risk management and internal control on a 
regular basis.

We have an effective Internal Audit function which assess internal control and 
report to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

 Ensuring effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are in 
place.

Page 114

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 20

We ensure that policies for whistle-blowing which are accessible to staff and 
those contracting with the Council, and arrangements for the support of whistle-
blowers, are in place. We have effective counter fraud policies in place.

 Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness 
of the framework of governance, risk management and control is provided 
by the internal auditor.

We maintain an effective Audit and Governance Committee and scrutiny 
functions which provide constructive challenge.

Managing data

 Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, 
storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to safeguard 
personal data.

We have effective Data protection and data management arrangements in place.

 Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively 
when sharing data with other bodies.

We have effective data sharing agreements in place

 Reviewing and auditing regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in 
decision making and performance monitoring.

The quality and accuracy of the data is audited by the Internal Audit function on 
an annual basis.

Strong public financial management

 Ensuring financial management supports both long term achievement of 
outcomes and short-term financial and operational performance.

The Council takes longer term views and publishes these so the public are aware 
of our intended outcomes. This information can be found published documents 
including the Budget Strategy, the Council’s Priorities and the Council Plan.
The Council has prepared and published a plan which sets out the Council’s 
priorities; a Medium Term Financial Plan which is a financial representation of the 
Council’s Vision and supports the priorities.  
We will enable the Chief Financial Officer to bring influence to bear on all material 
decisions and provide advice on the levels of reserves and balances to be 
retained.

Page 115

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 21

 Ensuring well-developed financial management is integrated at all levels of 
planning and control, including management of financial risks and controls

The Section 151 Officer is responsible to the Council for ensuring that 
appropriate advice is given on all financial matters, for keeping proper financial 
records and accounts, and for maintaining an effective system of internal 
financial control.
We have appointed a professionally qualified and experienced Chief Financial 
Officer, who will lead the promotion and delivery of good financial management, 
safeguarding public money and ensuring appropriate, economic, efficient and 
effective use of funds; together with professional accountability for finance staff 
throughout the Council.
We provide the Chief Financial Officer with the resources, expertise and systems 
necessary to perform the role effectively within the Council.

G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to 
deliver effective accountability.

The Council recognises that effective accountability is concerned not only with 
reporting on actions completed but ensuring stakeholders are able to understand 
and respond as the Council plans and carries out its activities in an open manner.

Implementing good practice in transparency

 Writing and communicating reports for the public and other stakeholders in 
a fair, balanced and understandable style appropriate to the intended 
audience and ensuring that they are easy to access and interrogate.

We aim to comply with the local government transparency code and publish all 
required information in a timely manner.

 Striking a balance between providing the right amount of information to 
satisfy transparency demands and enhance public scrutiny while not being 
too onerous to provide and for users to understand.

We have put in place effective transparent and accessible arrangements for 
dealing with complaints. We monitor complaints and would review our 
transparency arrangements if the public indicated that they are too onerous.

Implementing good practices in reporting

 Reporting at least annually on performance, value for money and 
stewardship of resources to stakeholders in a timely and understandable 
way.

Page 116

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 22

At the end of each financial year, the Council formally reviews the governance 
arrangements in place and produces an Annual Governance Statement.

 Ensuring members and senior management own the results reported.

 Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the 
principles contained in this Framework have been applied and publishing 
the results on this assessment, including an action plan for improvement 
and evidence to demonstrate good governance (the annual governance 
statement)

At the end of each financial year, the Council formally reviews the governance 
arrangements in place and produces an Annual Governance Statement.
The Annual Governance Statement is signed by the Chair of the Audit and 
Governance Committee and by the Chief Executive, and is published with the 
Council’s annual Statement of Accounts.

 Ensuring that this Framework is applied to jointly managed or shared 
service organisations as appropriate.

The Council shares its values with partners through the contract tendering 
process.

 Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial 
statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the 
statements allow for comparison with other, similar organisations.

We produce clear, timely, complete and accurate information for budget holders 
and senior officers relating to the budgetary and financial performance of the 
Council.

Assurance and effective accountability

 Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made by external 
audit are acted upon.

All recommendations from external audit are considered by senior managers and 
the Audit and Governance Committee.

 Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct access to members 
is in place, providing assurance with regard to governance arrangements 
and that recommendations are acted upon.

Page 117

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 23

The internal audit function reports to the Audit and Governance Committee on a 
quarterly basis and produces an annual report which states progress against 
previous recommendations.

 Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory 
bodies and implementing recommendations.

The Council welcomes recommendations from external regulatory bodies.

 Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering services through 
third parties and that this is evidenced in the annual governance 
statement.

The risks associated with delivering services through third parties and managed 
as part of our risk management arrangements.

 Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements for 
accountability are clear and the need for wider public accountability has 
been recognised and met.

The Council ensures that accountability is clear when working in partnership.

Annual Review of Corporate Governance

At the end of each financial year, the Council formally reviews the governance 
arrangements in place and produces an Annual Governance Statement.

The Annual Governance Statement includes:

 Scope of responsibility
 The purpose of the governance statement
 The Council’s governance framework
 Review of effectiveness
 A review of assurance by the Governance Group
 Internal Audit’s opinion of the system of internal controls
 Financial management
 Significant governance and internal control issues
 Action plan
 Certification statement

The Annual Governance Statement addresses any actions arising from the 
previous years’ Annual Governance Statement and highlights any actions arising 
from the year being reviewed.

The Annual Governance Statement also assesses the effectiveness and 
application of the Local Code of Governance and identifies any necessary 

Page 118

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



Local Code of Corporate Governance 2020

Page 24

changes and makes any relevant recommendations to the Council.

As part of the Audit Committee’s governance role, the formal annual review will 
be undertaken by the Audit and Governance Committee on behalf of the Council.

The Annual Governance Statement is signed by the Chair of the Audit and 
Governance Committee and by the Chief Executive, and is published with the 
Council’s annual Statement of Accounts.

Page 119

Agenda Item 17
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020

Update on Local Audit

 
Report from:  Director of Resources

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 This report provides a summary of the local audit position in relation to the three 

financial years spanning 2018-2021.

1.2 The assurance work required to be performed has increased nationally.

1.3 There is an additional audit fee, agreed with Public Sector Audit Appointments, to 
be paid for the additional assurance work.

1.4 The budget has been increased by £10,000 from the contingency reserve.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the local 

audit update.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 Members will recall that our Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance 

Statement for 2018-2019 were signed off in September 2019 rather than July 
2019.

3.2 This Council was not alone in that respect and there were a number of emerging 
issues that prompted the delay; in summary greater assurance around key risks 
was required beyond the levels previously expected.  Again, these assurances 
were across the sector and not just for this authority.

3.3 Attached at Appendix 1 is an update from Public Sector Audit Appointments 
Limited (PSAA) which sets out the situation in more detail.  In summary there 
were nearly 80 audits to be concluded at the end of January 2020; the increased 
assurance requirements are an additional burden (to the Council and to the 

Page 121

Agenda Item 18



auditor); expert resources are limited (to the Council and to the auditor); and 
planning the audit is going to be critical all round.

3.4 Grant Thornton has written to the Council to provide a company view and as our 
Appointed Auditors; attached at Appendix 2.  

3.5 The Finance Department will work with the Audit Team to ensure that the 
planning, timing and resources are used to their best effect.

3.6 The additional assurance work performed towards the end of the 2018-2019 
audit will need to be repeated and revisited; there are also areas of work that 
need to be more in-depth for the 2019-2020 audit and there are new 
requirements to incorporate into the annual audit.

3.7 The scale fee for 2019-2020 is £39,362 (this is the tendered fee) and the 
increase of £10,000 has been agreed with Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA).

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 The consultation was open to the sector.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options; the additional assurance work is required. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the Council must be 

financially resilient and have good financial management.  The opinion of the 
appointed auditor informs financial management and the value for money 
conclusion focusses on the Council’s use of resources.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 The budget has been supplemented from the contingency reserve by £10,000. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.  The Council complies 

with the Account and Audit Regulations.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 

information.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 

Page 122

Agenda Item 18



The appointed auditor is 
unable to obtain sufficient 
assurance in relation to the 
Council’s finances and value 
for money arrangements.

The appointed auditors’ 
opinion does not 
adequately reflect the 
Council’s arrangements.

The audit cannot be 
concluded.

The appointed auditors’ 
annual plan is agreed 
and the audit fee reflects 
the resources required.

Contact Officers 
S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 PSAA update on audit matters
2 Grant Thornton audit scope letter

Page 123

Agenda Item 18



This page is intentionally left blank



From: PSAA - Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 
To: Susan Roberts 
Subject: Update on audit matters 
Date: 02 March 2020 09:35:09 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Dear S151 officer, 
 
Given all the turbulence within the audit industry at the moment, it may be helpful to 
summarise the local audit position in relation to the three financial years spanning 2018-21. 
By this time of the year we would normally expect the vast majority of audits of 2018/19 
accounts to be a matter of record and consigned to history. However, at the end of January 
there remain nearly 80 opinions still outstanding. That is an incredibly unsatisfactory 
position, particularly for all the bodies and auditors concerned, and a significant concern 
going forward. 
 
In response to the significant challenges, PSAA has recently commissioned independent 
research into the sustainability of the audit market which we plan to publish soon. As well as 
informing our own forward planning, we are keen to ensure that this and other research is 
available to support the work of the Redmond Review. 
 
One of the consequences of the multiple pressures and challenges which have arisen in 
2018/19 audits is an increase in the number of proposed fee variations for additional audit 
work. In previous years the level of such variations has remained relatively stable at around 
5% of the sector’s aggregate audit fees.  However, while PSAA is still awaiting submission 
of some of the relevant proposals, it is already clear that a higher level of variations is likely 
to be proposed for 2018/19 than previously. 
 
Meantime, audits of 2019/20 accounts are approaching. In planning for this next round, 
PSAA has tried to address two of the concerns which featured most frequently in our 
conversations and exchanges with bodies about their 2018/19 audit experience. Firstly, 
bodies want greater certainty about when their audit will take place and, if for any reason it 
cannot be undertaken in time to meet the 31 July target date for publication of audited 
accounts, they want to know that is the case at the earliest opportunity. Secondly, if there is 
any likelihood of additional audit work being required which may lead to a fee variation 
proposal, again bodies want early information and explanation. 
 
Against this backcloth PSAA has therefore worked with auditors to address both of these 
issues - the planned timetable and any likely fee variations - in their audit planning 
submissions to bodies as part of a concerted effort to strengthen auditor-audited body 
communications. 
 
This theme carries through into preparations for audits of 2020/21 accounts. We are currently 
consulting on the scale of audit fees for this year in accordance with the timetable prescribed 
in statutory regulations, which requires PSAA to fix the scale of fees before the start of the 
relevant year of account.  https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/consultation-on-2020-21-audit-
fee-scale/. This means having to set the fees ahead of the results of the completion of the 
2018/19 round and ahead of the commencement of 2019/20 audits. Additionally, in looking 
ahead to 2020/21, we can also see a series of new developments which are likely to impact on 
the audit including revised auditing and accounting standards as well as a new Code of Audit 

Page 125

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1

https://response.gv-c.com/Mail/Click/507?a=04DEDD107790896FC9931412D07A1986&r=D1A332D8A9DAAFBCE61DC31C2AA960FC&v=
https://response.gv-c.com/Mail/Click/507?a=04DEDD107790896FC9931412D07A1986&r=D1A332D8A9DAAFBCE61DC31C2AA960FC&v=


Practice. Although these developments will affect all bodies, the impact will vary dependent 
on the specific local circumstances of each body. 
 
Again, PSAA is encouraging auditors and local bodies to consider these issues in audit 
planning discussions, to give proper early notice of factors which may require additional 
work and have implications for fees, and also to allow time for actions which might mitigate 
risk to the smooth conduct of the audit. We note that the NAO will be consulting on guidance 
for auditors’ work on the new Code of Audit Practice, and so detailed conclusions about how 
it will affect individual bodies will need to be reserved until the guidance is finalised. 
 
In discussing the fee implications of any factors, whether they relate to developments which 
affect all bodies or are more specific to an individual local audit, we particularly need the 
parties to consider both short and long term implications. Some issues will have a one-off 
impact, affecting a single year. Any resulting variation proposal is for a one-off adjustment. 
Others will have ongoing implications which may or may not be the same as the impact in the 
first year. These are likely to point to a need to vary the body’s scale fee. Note 1 below 
explains PSAA’s approach to fees more fully, and sets out the importance of revising scale 
fees where new developments or other local factors have clear ongoing implications. 
 
It is important to stress that the 2019/20 local discussions on fees are happening at the 
planning stage, which is earlier than has generally been the case in previous years (perhaps 
not until the results of the audit were reported to you). One of the advantages of earlier 
discussion is that it allows more time for scrutiny and reflection. If you are unsure about a 
proposed fee variation, it can be deferred for any relevant information to be collated and 
examined with a view to revisiting the matter at an agreed later date. Please remember that 
PSAA reviews and determines every proposed additional fee, whether agreed or not – this is 
a statutory requirement. 
 
We hope that this information is helpful to you and would be grateful if you would share it 
with members of your Audit Committee and any other relevant members and officers. 
 
Tony Crawley 
Chief Executive 
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 
  
 
 
 
Note 1 
 
PSAA’Ts approach to fees 
 
PSAA’s position is unusual because, as the appointing person for principal local authorities, 
the company is required to set a scale of fees spanning more than 480 audits, each of which is 
unique, reflecting differing levels of size, responsibility, complexity, capacity, capability, 
risk, etc. 
 
The company’s current scale of fees reflects the continuation of a methodology developed by 
the Audit Commission during its tenure. It is intended to reflect a good representation of the 
risks associated with the conduct of each of the individual audits within PSAA’s jurisdiction, 

Page 126

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



assuming the timely production of draft accounts and working papers of an appropriate 
standard. However, PSAA recognises that every fee within the scale is subject to a margin for 
error and is also susceptible to change over time. Accordingly, the company’s arrangements 
in relation to fees are designed to include a number of checks and balances to enable the scale 
to be adjusted as and when appropriate.  These include: 
 
i) Placing the extant scale of fees at the heart of any tender process and inviting suppliers to 
express their bids as a proportion of the current scale; 
 
ii) Pooling winning firms’ bids so that the fees of individual bodies are not linked to the bid 
prices of the individual firm that is appointed as their auditor; 
 
iii) Consulting with bodies, as appropriate, when firms exercise their right to submit 
proposals to charge additional fees for additional audit work over and above that assumed in 
the relevant scale fee; 
 
iv) Similarly consulting with bodies when firms submit proposals to amend the scale fee of 
an individual body to reflect an ongoing change to the level of audit work required. 
 
Each of these arrangements is discussed in more detail below. 
 
i). Linking tender prices to the extant scale of fees 
 
When PSAA goes out to tender for audit services, as it did most recently in 2017, it provides 
suppliers with details of the then current scale of fees and invites firms to price their bids by 
reference to that scale. This is a vital opportunity for firms to bring their own experience and 
judgement to bear about the reasonableness of current scale fees in the context of current and 
expected future market conditions and risks. If the firm considers the current scale to be 
generous, it can bid at say, 70 or 80% of scale. Conversely, if current fees are felt to be too 
low, the firm can bid at say, 120 or 130% of scale. PSAA does not impose any parameters in 
this process - each firm is completely free to reflect its own considered judgement. 
 
Following a rigorous evaluation of tenders, the contracts awarded to successful suppliers 
reflect the specific price at which each individual firm has bid. 
 
ii). Pooling firms ’Tcosts 
 
In setting the overall scale of audit fees, PSAA has regard not only to the payments which 
will be due to firms under the contracts awarded but also the need to fund PSAA’s own costs 
incurred in carrying out its functions - principally letting and managing contracts, appointing 
auditors and setting a scale of fees. 
 
When re-setting the fees of individual bodies within the scale following a procurement, 
PSAA does not reflect the specific costs of the particular audit firm appointed to the body. 
Rather it applies average costs, taking into consideration details of all the contracts awarded 
to successful suppliers – with the result that, for example in 2018/19, all bodies received the 
same proportionate fee adjustment. This shares the risk of price variations between firms 
across the system and also avoids the need to vary a body’s scale fees because it has been 
allocated a new auditor. 
 

Page 127

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



iii). Charging for additional audit work 
 
The nature of an audit is such that it may be necessary for an auditor to carry out more audit 
work than has previously been required or planned. PSAA has the power to determine the fee 
above or below the scale fee where it considers that substantially more or less work was 
required than envisaged by the scale fee.  In such circumstances, the auditor may therefore be 
entitled to charge for the additional work depending upon the specific drivers which have 
given rise to it. If, for example, additional work arises because the auditor has not conducted 
the audit in accordance with expected standards, the auditor must bear the cost. Alternatively, 
if additional work is necessary because the local body has not met its obligations to deliver 
accounts and working papers which enable the auditor to reach the required level of 
assurance, the auditor may be entitled to propose a fee variation to reflect the scale of the 
work concerned. 
 
Additional work may also be required as a result of the introduction of new accounting or 
auditing standards, or new regulatory requirements. Where these have arisen after bids have 
been submitted and could not reasonably have been foreseen, the auditor will usually be 
entitled to propose an appropriate fee variation. 
 
It is important to emphasise that the process for approving one-off fee variations (and/or 
ongoing scale fee adjustments - see para 4 below) is itself subject to careful checks and 
balances. Auditors are required to discuss any relevant proposals with appropriate 
representatives of the body concerned. All such proposals are subject to approval by PSAA. 
In making any submissions to PSAA, auditors are required to confirm that proposals have 
been discussed with the body and to indicate whether or not they have been agreed by the 
body. In turn, PSAA will consider the legitimacy and reasonableness of the proposals and 
advise the parties accordingly. 
 
iv). Amendments to scale fees 
 
The vast majority of fee proposals submitted by auditors in respect of additional audit work 
are limited to one-off fee variations. In some cases it is apparent that this does not reflect 
possible longer term implications. This is an important conversation which will sometimes 
alert the body to potential ongoing work and expected further variations which can be 
avoided by the body taking additional measures or taking other remedial actions. In other 
circumstances it will highlight the need to adjust the scale fee going forward so that the 
additional work concerned is properly reflected as a recurring requirement. 
 
By routinely working through longer term implications and engaging in constructive 
discussions, bodies and firms can play a critically important role in helping PSAA to ensure 
that the scale of fees is subject to continuous review and, where appropriate, updating. 
 
 

Page 128

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 1



 

 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
7th Floor 
Civic Centre 
Rickergate 
Carlisle 
CA3 8QG 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

 
   

   

Chartered Accountants. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. 
Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton 

UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton 
International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. 
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details.  

grantthornton.co.uk 

Commercial in confidence 

Susan Roberts 
Director of Finance 

 

 

Dear Sue 

Audit scope and additional work 2019/20 

In recent conversations, including at Barrow’s Audit Committee, we have discussed the increased 

regulatory focus facing all audit suppliers and the impact this will have on the scope of our work for 

2019/20 and beyond. You will have also recently received a letter via email from Tony Crawley of PSAA 

explaining the changing regulatory landscape. In his letter, Mr Crawley highlights: “significantly greater 

pressure on firms to deliver higher quality audits by requiring auditors to demonstrate greater 

professional scepticism when carrying out their work across all sectors – and this includes local audit. 

This has resulted in auditors needing to exercise greater challenge to the areas where management 

makes judgements or relies upon advisers, for example, in relation to estimates and related assumptions 

within the accounts. As a result, audit firms have updated their work programmes and reinforced their 

internal processes and will continue to do so to enable them to meet the current expectations.” 

I promised I would set out in more detail the likely impact of this on our audit, and I am pleased to do so 

in this letter. Should further matters arise during the course of the audit that have fee and timetable 

implications, we will also address those at that point. 

Across all suppliers, and sectors (public and private), the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has set out 

its expectation of improved financial reporting from organisations and the need for auditors to 

demonstrate increased scepticism and challenge, as well as to undertake additional and more robust 

testing. There is a general ‘raising of the quality bar’ following a number of recent, high-profile company 

failures that have also been attributed to audit performance. Alongside the FRC, other key stakeholders 

including the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) have expressed concern 

about the quality of audit work and the need for improvement. The FRC has been clear to us that it 

expects audit quality in local audit to meet the same standards as in the corporate world and the current 

level of financial risk within local audit bodies supports this position. 

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of the FRC and other key 

stakeholders with regard to audit quality and public sector financial reporting. To ensure the increased 

regulatory focus and expectations are fully met, we anticipate that, as first seen in 2018/19, we will need 

to commit more time in discharging our statutory responsibilities, which will necessitate an increase in 

costs. I set out below the implications of this for your Council’s audit.  

Increased challenge and depth of work – raising the quality bar 

The FRC has raised the threshold of what it assesses as a good quality audit. The FRC currently uses a 

four-point scale to describe the quality of the files it reviews, as follows: 

 

 

 

Borough of Barrow-In-Furness 
Town Hall  
Duke Street 
Barrow-In-Furness 
LA14 2LD 
 
19 February 2020 
 

 
 
 

Page 129

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 2



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 2 

Commercial in confidence 

Score Description 

1 or 2a Acceptable with Limited Improvements Required 

2b Improvements required 

3 Significant Improvements Required   

 

Historically, the FRC’s definition for 2b was ‘acceptable but with improvements required’ and, as such, 

both the Audit Commission and PSAA considered a ‘2b’ to represent an acceptance level of audit quality 

for contract delivery purposes. The FRC has now set a 100% target for all audits (including local audits) 

to achieve a ‘2a’. Its threshold for achieving a ‘2a’ is challenging and failure to achieve this level is 

reputationally damaging for individual engagement leads and their firm. Non-achievement of the 

standard can result in enforcement action, including fines and disqualification, by the FRC. Inevitably, we 

need to increase the managerial oversight to manage this risk. In addition, you should expect the audit 

team to exercise even greater challenge of management in areas that are complex, significant or highly 

judgmental. We will be required to undertake additional work in the following areas, amongst others: 

• use of specialists 

• information provided by the entity (IPE) 

• journals 

• management review of controls 

• revenue 

• accounting estimates 

• financial resilience and going concern 

• related parties and similar areas.  

As a result, you may find the audit process for 2019/20 and beyond even more challenging than 

previous audits. This mirrors the changes we are seeing in the commercial sectors.  

Property, plant and equipment (PPE or ‘Fixed Assets’) 

The FRC has highlighted that auditors need to improve the quality of audit challenge on Property, Plant 

and Equipment (PPE) valuations across the sector. We will therefore increase the volume and scope of 

our audit work to ensure an adequate level of audit scrutiny and challenge over the assumptions that 

underpin PPE valuations.  

Pensions (IAS 19)  

The FRC has highlighted that the quality of work by audit firms in respect of IAS 19 needs to improve 
across local government audits. Specifically, for the following areas, we will increase the granularity, 
depth and scope of coverage, with increased levels of sampling, additional levels of challenge and 
explanation sought, and heightened levels of documentation and reporting. Our planned additional 
procedures include: 

• verification of the accuracy and completeness of the data provided to the actuary by both the 
admitted body and the administering authority.  

• checking the value of the Pension Fund Assets at 31 March per the Council’s financial 
statements against the share of assets in the Pension Fund statements  

• review and assess whether the significant assumptions applied by the actuary are reasonable 
and are followed up on areas identified by either our review or PwC as outliers.  

• ensuring that the instructions from the audit team to the Pension Fund auditor include enquiries 
in respect of service organisation reports as well as testing in respect of material level 3 
pension assets (please note that this is outside the scope of PSAA’s fee variation process).   

Complex accounting issues and new accounting standards 

You are required to respond effectively to new accounting standards and we must ensure our audit work 

in these new areas is robust. This year we will both be responding to the introduction of IFRS16. IFRS16 

requires a leased asset, previously accounted for as an operating lease off balance sheet, to be 

recognised as a ‘right of use’ asset with a corresponding liability on the balance sheet from 1 April 2020. 

Page 130

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 2



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 3 

Commercial in confidence 

There is a requirement, under IAS8, to disclose the expected impact of this change in accounting 

treatment in the 2019/20 financial statements.  

We know the Council has appreciated our responsiveness in the past and we would wish to continue to 

be able to do this in the future.  

Except for Value for Money Conclusion 

In 2018/19 we issued an except for Value for Money Conclusion opinion in relation to the Council’s 

procurement and contract management arrangements. In 2019/20 this will again be a Value for Money 

significant risk. The audit team will require input and moderation from an internal national quality panel to 

determine whether sufficient progress has been made to remove the ‘except for’ Value for Money 

Conclusion.   

Impact on the audit and associated costs 

You will note we did not raise additional fees across the sector as a whole in 2018/19 in respect of the 

additional work required in response to the implementation of IFRS9 and IFRS15. This was a goodwill 

decision we took in support of the strong relationship we have with the sector. However, the volume of 

additional work now being required, as set out above, means we are no longer able to sustain that 

position. This is an issue not just across public services but also in the private sector where fees are 

being increased by all of the major suppliers by more than 20%.  

We benefit from effective and constructive working relationships which we have established during our 

engagement with you to date. This allows us to absorb some of the impact of these changes. Using our 

strong working knowledge of you and efficiencies that we are continuously seeking to implement as part 

of our focus on continued collaborative working with you, we have sought to contain the impact as much 

as possible to below the market average. 

We have assessed the impact of the above as follows for 2019/20, with the comparative position for the 

two previous years shown. Please note these are subject to approval by PSAA in line with PSAA’s 

normal process. Should other risks arise during the course of the audit which we have not envisaged, we 

may need to make a further adjustment to the fee. 

Area  Cost £  

 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 

Scale Fee 39,362 39,362 51,119 

Additional Fee    

Increased challenge and depth of 

work 

2,500 0 0 

PPE 3,000 3,000 0 

Pensions 1,750 3,000 0 

New standards/ developments 750 0 0 

Value for Money Conclusion 2,000 2,000 0 

Total Additional Fee 10,000 8,000 0 

Total 49,362 47,362 51,119 

 

This would give a scale fee for the statutory accounts audit for 2019/20 of £39,362 plus VAT plus a 

variation of £10,000.  

Please note that PSAA's arrangements require a separation of fees and remuneration, which means that 
Grant Thornton does not receive 100% of the current fees charged. 
  

Page 131

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 2



 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP. 4 

Commercial in confidence 

The additional work we are now planning across the whole of our portfolio will inevitably have an impact 

on the audit timetable and whether or not your audit can be delivered to appropriate quality standards. 

Grant Thornton remains the largest trainer of CIPFA qualified accountants in the UK and is committed to 

continue to resource its local audits with suitably specialised and experienced staff but the pool of such 

staff is relatively finite in the short-term. I will be happy to explain the impact of the further work we are 

planning to undertake on our delivery timetable for your audit. 

Future changes to audit scope 

As I have previously mentioned in meetings and at the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee, the 

National Audit Office is currently consulting on revisions to the Code of Audit Practice and has also 

indicated its intention to consult on the accompanying Auditor Guidance Notes. This defines the scope of 

audit work in the public sector. The most significant change is in relation to the Value for Money 

arrangements. Perhaps in addition to auditors delivering an overall, binary, conclusion about whether or 

not proper arrangements were in place during the previous financial year, the draft Code requires 

auditors to issue a commentary on each of the criteria. This will allow auditors to tailor their 

commentaries to local circumstances. The Code proposes three specific criteria: 

a) Financial sustainability: how the body plans and manages its resources to ensure it can 

continue to deliver its services; 

b) Governance: how the body ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its 

risks; and 

c) Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the body uses information about its 

costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services. 

Under each of these criteria, statutory guidance will set out the procedures that auditors will need to 

undertake. An initial review of arrangements will consist of mandatory procedures to be undertaken at 

every local public body plus any local risk-based work. The consultation closed on 22 November 2019. A 

new Code will be laid before Parliament in April 2020 and will apply from audits of local bodies’ 2020/21 

financial statements onwards.  

Until the consultation is finalised and more details emerge of what is expected of auditors, it is difficult to 

cost the impact. However, as soon as the requirements are finalised and it is clear exactly what the 

expectations will be, I will share with you further thoughts on the potential impact on the audit and 

associated costs.       

I hope this is helpful and allows you to plan accordingly for the 2019/20 audit. Should you wish to 

discuss this further, please do not hesitate to contact me. We will be sharing our detailed Audit Plan with 

you in due course.  

We look forward to working with you again this year. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Gareth Kelly 

 

Gareth Kelly 

Engagement Lead and Key Audit Partner 

For and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Page 132

Agenda Item 18
Appendix 2



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020

External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

 
Report from:  Grant Thornton

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 This report presents the External Audit progress report and sector update.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

External Audit progress report and sector update.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The External Audit progress report and sector update, is attached at Appendix 

1.

3.2 Grant Thornton will present the plan to Members.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 The report is not subject to formal consultation.

4.2 The Director of Resources has been consulted.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options to consider, the report is for noting.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 

Page 133

Agenda Item 19



7.1.1 There are no financial, resources or procurement implications arising from this 
report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report concerns the 

external audit process.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
The annual audit cannot be 
performed.

The audit cannot be 
concluded within the 
statutory timeframe.

Progress report provides 
oversight for the Audit 
and Governance 
Committee.

Contact Officers 
S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 External Audit

Progress Report and Sector Update

Page 134

Agenda Item 19



Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council
Year ending 31 March 2020

July 2020

P
age 135

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 3

Progress at July 2020 4

Audit Deliverables 7

Sector Update 8

2

P
age 136

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on progress in 
delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 
The paper also includes:

• a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a local authority; and

• includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the Committee may wish to 
consider (these are a tool to use, if helpful, rather than formal questions requiring responses for audit purposes)

Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a section dedicated 
to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications www.grantthornton.co.uk ..

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 
receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 
Engagement Manager./

Introduction

3

Gareth Kelly

Engagement Lead

T 0141 223 0891
M 07880456154
E Gareth.Kelly@uk.gt.com

Richard Anderson

Engagement Manager

T 0141 223 0753
M 07920021291
E Richard.J.Anderson@uk.gt.com

P
age 137

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

Progress at July 2020

4

Financial Statements Audit
We undertook our initial planning for the 2019/20 audit in December 2019, 
and  interim audit in January to March 2020.

In March we issued a detailed audit plan, setting out our proposed approach 
to the audit of the Council's 2019/20 financial statements.

We will report our work in the Audit Findings Report on completion of the 
financial statements and VfM audits.

Covid-19

In addition to the audit risks communicated in our Audit Plan, the Covid-19 
pandemic led us to update our planning risk assessment and reconsider our 
audit and value for money (VfM) approach to reflect the unprecedented 
global response. We issued an addendum to our audit plan, setting out a 
new significant financial statement risk in relation to Covid-19.

Value for Money
The scope of our work is set out in the guidance issued by the National Audit Office. 
The Code requires auditors to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all significant respects, the 
audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 
and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers 
and local people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a conclusion overall are:

•Informed decision making

•Sustainable resource deployment

•Working with partners and other third parties

Details of our initial risk assessment to determine our approach will be  included in 
our Audit Plan. 

We will report our work in our Audit Findings Report.

The NAO consultation on a new Code of Audit Practice (the “Code”) has finished, 
and the new Code has completed its approval process in Parliament. It therefore 
came into force on 1 April 2020 for audit years 2020/21 and onwards. The new Code 
supersedes the Code of Audit Practice 2015, which was published by the National 
Audit Office (NAO) in April 2015.

The most significant change under the new Code is the introduction of an Auditor’s 
Annual Report, containing a commentary on arrangements to secure value for money 
and any associated recommendations. The NAO public consultation is now underway 
and runs until 2 September 2020. It can be accessed through the NAO website:

https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/agn-03-vfm-consultation/

P
age 138

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

Other areas
Certification of claims and returns
We certify the Council’s annual Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with 
procedures agreed with the Department for Work and Pensions. The certification work 
for the 2018/19 claim was completed on 27 November 2019, in advance of the 30 
November deadline. We reported our findings to the Audit Committee in our 
Certification Letter in December 2019. 

We also certify the Council’s annual Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts return in 
accordance with procedures agreed with the Ministry of Housing, Communities & 
Local Government. (MHCLG). The certification work for the 2018/19 return was 
completed on 30 January 2020, in advance of the 7 February 2020 deadline.

Meetings
We continue to be in discussions with finance staff regarding emerging developments 
and to ensure the audit process is smooth and effective. 

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with network events for members and 
publications to support the Council. Your officers attended our Financial Reporting 
Workshop in February, which helped to ensure that members of your Finance Team 
were up to date with the latest financial reporting requirements for local authority 
accounts.

Further details of the publications that may be of interest to the Council are set out in 
our Sector Update section of this report.

Audit Fees

During 2017, PSAA awarded contracts for audit for a five year period beginning on 1 April 
2018. 2019/20 is the second year of that contract. Since that time, there have been a 
number of developments within the accounting and audit profession. Across all sectors and 
firms, the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has set out its expectation of improved 
financial reporting from organisations and the need for auditors to demonstrate increased 
scepticism and challenge and to undertake additional and more robust testing. 

Our work in the Local Government sector in 2018/19 has highlighted areas where financial 
reporting, in particular, property, plant and equipment and pensions, needs to improve. 
There is also an increase in the complexity of Local Government financial transactions and 
financial reporting. This combined with the FRC requirement that all Local Government 
audits are at or above the “few improvements needed” (2A) rating means that additional 
audit work is required. 

We have reviewed the impact of these changes on both the cost and timing of audits. We 
have discussed this with your s151 Officer including any proposed variations to the Scale 
Fee set by PSAA Limited, and have communicated fully with the Audit Committee. 

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of the FRC with regard 
to audit quality and local government financial reporting. 

Progress at July 2020 (Cont.)

5

P
age 139

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

6

COVID-19 Update

Impact on working arrangements:

• Following the government’s 
announcement on Monday 16 March 
2020, we closed our Grant Thornton 
offices for the foreseeable future and your 
audit team are now working from home.

• We will be working remotely during your 
accounts audit. Although there are some 
audit tasks which are best undertaken in 
person, we will be able to complete the 
majority of the audit remotely. This is 
however likely to make the audit process 
longer. We continue to work closely with 
your finance team to make this different 
way of working as efficient as possible. 

• There may need to be further changes to 
planned audit timings due to potential 
illness within the audit team or the finance 
team and due to the further developments 
of COVID-19. 

Impact on accounts and audit opinions: 

There are a number of key issues which your finance team  will 
have had to consider as part of the year end closedown and 
accounts production: 

• Impact on reserves and financial health and whether the 
Council needs to provide additional disclosures that draw 
attention to a Material Uncertainty around Going Concern 
(this could also impact on the VfM conclusion) or asset 
valuations.

• Valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment and assumptions 
made by valuers, particularly in respect of carrying value to 
current value assessment.

• Impact on collectability of debt and assumptions made in 
bad debt provisions.

• Impact on post-balance sheets events. The consequences 
of the virus post 31 March 2020 will generally be non-
adjusting post balance sheet events but some form of 
disclosure may be needed.

• Disclosure of critical judgements and material estimation 
uncertainties.

• Impact on the content of the Annual Governance Statement, 
particularly with regards to risks, controls and mitigation.

• Considerations in respect of service continuity and disaster 
planning arrangements (this could impact on the VfM
conclusion).

• Impact on reporting to those charged with governance and 
signing arrangements.

Changes to reporting requirements:

• The Secretary of State announced that for the 
2019/20 accounting period he would be 
extending the period for publication of principal 
authority accounts to 30 August 2020.

• For principal authorities, this means that the 
whole chain of publication requirements will be 
amended. The audited financial statements are 
now to be published by 30 November 2020.

• IFRS 16 implementation has been delayed by 1 
year to 1 April 2021.  IAS 8 disclosures in 
respect of new accounting standards which have 
been issued but are not yet effective are still 
required for IFRS 16 (Leases) even though 
implementation is deferred to 2021/22.

P
age 140

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

Audit Deliverables

7

2019/20 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2019/20.

April 2019 Complete

Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed audit plan to the Audit Committee setting out our proposed approach in 
order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2019-20 financial statements and a Conclusion on the Council’s Value 
for Money arrangements.

July 2020 Complete

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported on completion of our financial statements and VfM audits. 

TBC Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

TBC Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

TBC Not yet due

P
age 141

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

Councils continue to try to achieve greater 
efficiency in the delivery of public services, whilst 
facing the challenges to address rising demand, 
ongoing budget pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of emerging 
national issues and developments to support you. We cover areas which 
may have an impact on your organisation, the wider local government 
sector and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to the detailed 
report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research on 
service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest research 
publications in this update. We also include areas of potential interest to 
start conversations within the organisation and with audit committee 
members, as well as any accounting and regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

8

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 
government sections on the Grant Thornton website by clicking on the logos 
below:

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 
specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates

Public Sector
Local 

government

P
age 142

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

In-depth insight into the impact of Covid-19 on 
financial reporting in the local government sector 
– Grant Thornton 
In June Grant Thornton published a report to help officers and 
elected members identify points they should consider when 
assessing and reporting the impact of Covid-19 on their 
authority. Each authority will be impacted in different ways 
and will need to make their own assessment of the impact on 
their financial statements. However, the report identified some 
of the key challenges for the sector, along with the potential 
financial reporting and regulatory impact, to support preparers 
of local authority accounts navigate through some of these 
key issues. The report also included a number of useful links 
to other resources.
The extraordinary events we are living through follow a decade of austerity, triggered by the 
financial crisis of 2008/09, which had already placed considerable strain on local authorities’ 
finances. Increased demand for many local public services, directly related to the outbreak of 
the virus, has placed immediate pressure on authorities’ cash flows and expenditure 
budgets. The longer-term consequences of recession and unemployment on demand for 
services have yet to be experienced.

At the same time, several important sources of local authority income including Council Tax, 
Non-domestic (business) rates, fees and charges, rents and investment returns have, to a 
greater or lesser extent, been subject to reduction or suspension. This perfect storm of 
conditions presents a real threat to the financial sustainability of the sector. Now, more than 
ever, strong political and executive leadership is needed to re-establish priorities, review 
strategies and medium-term financial plans and ensure that public funds are being used as 
efficiently and effectively as possible. A balance has to be struck between responding to the 
needs of residents and businesses in a timely manner, protecting the most vulnerable and 
ensuring appropriate measures and controls around financial management are in place to 
mitigate against future ‘financial shock’. In doing so, iterative scenario planning will help 
officers and elected members to take informed decisions at key stages, revisiting and 
revising plans along the way.

The report considered:

• Operational challenges and the related financial reporting/regulatory impact 

• Government support schemes – considering the accounting implications

• Significant financial reporting issues to consider

• Other sector issues and practicalities to consider

• Impact on audit work/external scrutiny process

• Engagement with experts

In terms of key financial reporting considerations for 2019/20, consideration should be given 
to:

Information published with accounts

• Does the Narrative Report reflect the urgency of the situation, the changes to Council 
services as a result of lockdown, the partnership arrangements in place, the impact of the 
pandemic on income and expenditure and possible future scenarios, the impact on 
savings programmes, the capital programme, treasury management, medium term 
financial plans and the Council’s communications strategy (noting this is not an 
exhaustive list)?

• Does the Annual Governance Statement reflect significant developments between 31 
March 2020 and the finalisation of the accounts? Does the AGS describe emergency 
governance arrangements for decision making, the postponement of elections, the 
transition to virtual meetings and plans for the return to normal democratic processes? 

Non-current asset valuations

• There has been a significant increase in volatility and uncertainty in markets following the 
outbreak of Covid-19. RICS has issued a Valuation Practice Alert following the pandemic, 
and we are aware a significant number of valuers are including ‘material valuation 
uncertainty’ disclosures within their reports. Has the Council assessed the impact of such 
comments, reflected ‘material valuation uncertainty’ disclosures within the financial 
statements and taken account of the requirement of Code paragraph 3.4.2.90 to provide 
appropriate disclosure in their financial statements in relation to major sources of 
estimation uncertainty?

9

P
age 143

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

Non-current asset valuations

• The Council is required to make an assessment at the end of each reporting period as to 
whether there is any indication that assets may be impaired. There are several types of 
event or change in circumstance that could indicate an impairment may have occurred, 
including evidence of obsolescence or physical damage or a commitment to undertake a 
significant reorganisation. Has the Council assessed whether the impact of the pandemic 
may have triggered impairments?

• Has the Council considered these matters in relation to Investment Property held? 
Potentially more so for 2020/21, there may be significant declines in asset carrying 
values, especially for investments in retail or office premises.

Impairment of receivables

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduced an expected credit loss model for financial 
assets which drives earlier recognition of impairments. Has the Council assessed the 
impact of the pandemic on its expectation of credit losses? 

• Impairment of statutory Council Tax and Non-domestic rate debtor balances is also 
possible. Has the Council observed a measurable decrease in estimated future cashflow, 
for example an increase in the number of delayed payments? Has the Council 
considered whether recent historical loss experience across aged debt may also need 
revision where current information indicates the historical experience doesn’t reflect 
current conditions? Experience following the 2008/09 financial crisis may prove to be a 
useful reference point, given the ensuing recession conditions.

Events after the reporting period

• By 31 March 2020 enough was known about the pandemic for accounts preparers and 
market participants to reflect and, if necessary, adjust assumptions and assessments. By 
the end of March 2020, it would be extremely difficult to say that the pandemic was not 
an event that existed and therefore any accounting impact that occurred after this date is 
not an adjusting event. 

• Has the Council distinguished between subsequent events that are adjusting (i.e. those 
that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date) and non-
adjusting (i.e. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date)? 
Has the Council got arrangements in place to assess events up to the date the final 
accounts are authorised for issue?

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Has the Council identified the assumptions required about the future and estimates at the 
end of the current reporting period that have a significant risk of resulting in a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year? 
Have these been appropriately disclosed in accordance with the requirements of IAS 1 paras 
125-133?

2019/20 financial statements are being prepared in an environment of heightened 
uncertainty as a result of the pandemic and the situation is evolving and fast moving. We 
have drawn out some of the key considerations for local authority financial reporting here, 
but further details can be found in our full report available on the Grant Thornton website:

10

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1
.-member-firms/united-
kingdom/pdf/publication/2020/impact-of-
covid19-on-financial-reporting-local-
government-sector.pdf

P
age 144

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

Guide for Audit and Risk Committees on 
Financial Reporting and Management during 
COVID-19 – National Audit Office

In June the National Audit Office (NAO) published a guide 
that “aims to help audit and risk committee members 
discharge their responsibilities and to examine the impacts on 
their organisations of the COVID-19 outbreak. It is part of a 
programme of work undertaken by the NAO to support 
Parliament in its scrutiny of the UK government’s response to 
COVID-19.”
The NAO report notes “Audit and risk committees are integral to the scrutiny and challenge 
process. They advise boards and accounting officers on matters of financial accountability, 
assurance and governance, and can support organisations, providing expert challenge, 
helping organisations focus on what is important, and how best to manage risk.

Each organisation will have existing risk management processes in place, but risk appetite 
may have changed as a result of COVID-19, for the organisation to operate effectively and 
respond in a timely manner. This may result in a weakening of controls in some areas, 
increasing the likelihood of other risks occurring. Organisations will need to consider how 
long this change in risk appetite is sustainable for.”

The NAO comment “This guide aims to help audit and risk committee members discharge 
their responsibilities in several different areas, and to examine the impacts on their 
organisations of the COVID-19 outbreak, including on:

• annual reports;

• financial reporting;

• the control environment; and

• regularity of expenditure.

In each section of the guide we have set out some questions to help audit and risk 
committee members to understand and challenge activities. Each section can be used on its 
own, although we would recommend that audit and risk committee members consider the 
whole guide, as the questions in other sections may be interrelated. Each individual section 
has the questions at the end, but for ease of use all the questions are included in Appendix 
One.

The guide may also be used as organisations and audit and risk committees consider 
reporting in the 2020-21 period.”

11

The full report can be obtained from the NAO website:

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/guidance-for-audit-and-risk-committees-on-
financial-reporting-and-management-during-covid-19/

P
age 145

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

Kickstarting Housing – Grant Thornton and 
Localis

In July Grant Thornton Head of Local Government, Paul 
Dossett, wrote an essay, included as part of a collection in the 
Localis report – “Building for renewal: kickstarting the C19 
housing recovery”. 
Paul asked “So how do we address “the housing crisis” in the context of an existential threat 
to the British economy?  Just as importantly, how do we ensure our key workers, our new 
heroes of the Thursday night applause, are front and centre of such a response.   Paul 
suggested that the housing response needs to move away from the piecemeal towards a 
comprehensive and strategic response, with five key pillars with the key worker demographic 
at its heart: 

• Public housebuilding. This will involve more borrowing, but we need a bold and ambitious 
target to build at least one million new public sector properties at social rents by 2025. This 
should involve a comprehensive and deep partnership between Homes England and local 
authorities and underpinned by a need to minimise the carbon footprint.

• Private sector housing needs a rocket boost with massive Government supported 
investment in modern methods of construction and consideration of required workforce 
needed to meet capacity.  This needs to go hand in hand with a major recruitment drive into 
all facets of the housing industries. This should include national and local training initiatives 
to support workers form the service sectors who are very likely to lose their jobs because of 
the pandemic.

• Strategic authorities based on existing local government footprints across the country 
to remove the inconsistent patchwork quilt of current arrangements so that there is 
consistency between local, county and national strategic priorities. They should be legally 
tasked and funded for development of comprehensive infrastructure plans to support 
housing initiatives in their areas with a strong remit for improving public transport, supporting 
green energy initiatives and developing public realms which create a sense of community 
and belonging. 

• Building on existing initiatives to improve security of tenure and quality of 
accommodation, a new partnership is needed between landlord and tenants that provides a 
consistent national/regional footing to ensure that housing is a shared community 
responsibility. This should, like the response to the pandemic, be part of a shared community 
narrative based on state, business and local people.

• Putting key workers at the heart of the Housing strategy.  The country appears to have 
discovered the importance of key workers. The people that keep the country running and 
whose contribution is never usually recognised financially or in terms of social esteem.  
There are several existing key worker accommodation initiatives, but they are local and 
piecemeal. We need a comprehensive strategy which focuses on key worker needs, 
including quality of accommodation, affordable mortgages/ rents, proximity to workplaces 
and above all , a sense of priority on the housing ladder for those who keep the country 
running in good times and bad and are the best of us in every sense. 

Paul concluded “Housing is a basic need and if key workers feel valued in their place in 
housing priorities, we will have made a giant step forward. 

Key workers are not the only group in need of help of course. Utilising the momentum behind 
keyworkers that their role in COVID-19 has brought into focus, could help kickstart housing 
initiatives that help all those in need.”

12

The full report can be obtained from the 
Grant Thornton website:

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insi
ghts/homes-fit-for-heroes-affordable-
housing-for-all/

P
age 146

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

Place-Based Growth - 'Unleashing counties’ role 
in levelling up England’ – Grant Thornton
In March Grant Thornton launched a new place-based growth 
report ‘Unleashing counties’ role in levelling up England. The 
report, produced in collaboration with the County Councils 
Network, provides evidence and insight into placed-based 
growth through the lens of county authority areas. It unpacks 
the role of county authorities in delivering growth over the 
past decade through: desk-based research, data analysis and 
case study consultations with 10 county authorities (Cheshire 
East, Cornwall, Durham, Essex, Hertfordshire, North 
Yorkshire, Nottinghamshire, Oxfordshire, Staffordshire, 
Surrey).
The report reveals:

• Growth, as measured by Gross Added Value (GVA), in county areas has lagged behind the 
rest of the country by 2.6% over the last five years. GVA in the 36 county areas has grown 
by 14.1% between 2014 and 2018, compared to 16.7% for the rest of England.

• In total, 25 of these counties have grown at a rate slower than the rest of the country. The 
research finds no north-south divide, as the county areas experiencing  some of the smallest 
economic growth are Herefordshire (5.3%), Oxfordshire (5.6%) and Cumbria (8.2%), 
Gloucestershire (9.2%), and Wiltshire (9.7%) – showing that one size fits all policies will not 
work.

• Some 30 of the 36 county authority areas have workplace productivity levels below the 
England average. At the same time, counties have witnesses sluggish business growth, with 
county authorities averaging 7.9% growth over the last five years – almost half of that of the 
rest of the country’s figure of 15.1% over the period 2014 to 2019.

To address these regional disparities in growth and local powers, the report’s key 
recommendations include:

• Rather than a focus on the ‘north-side divide’, government economic and investment 
assessments should identify those places where the economic ‘gap’ is greatest – Either to 
the national average or between different places –and focus investment decisions on closing 
that gap and levelling up local economies.

• The devolution white paper must consider how devolution of powers to county authorities 
could assist in levelling-up the country. This should include devolving significant budgets and 
powers down to councils, shaped around existing county authorities and local leadership but 
recognising the additional complexity in two-tier local authority areas and whether structural 
changes are required.

• Growth boards should be established in every county authority area. As part of this a 
statutory duty should be placed on county authorities to convene and coordinate key 
stakeholders (which could include neighbouring authorities). These growth boards should be 
governed by a national framework which would cover the agreed ‘building blocks’ for growth 
– powers, governance, funding and capacity.

• Planning responsibilities should be reviewed with responsibility for strategic planning given 
to county authorities. In line with the recently published final report of the Building Better, 
Building Beautiful Commission, the government should consider how county authorities, 
along with neighbouring unitary authorities within the county boundary, could take a more 
material role in the strategic and spatial planning process.

13

The full report can be obtained from the Grant 
Thornton website:

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/unle
ashing-counties-role-in-levelling-up-england/

• The National Infrastructure Commission should 
ensure greater consideration of the 
infrastructure requirements in non-metropolitan 
areas. Their national infrastructure assessments 
could consider how better investment in 
infrastructure outside metropolitan areas could 
link to wider growth-related matters that would 
help to level up the economy across the country.

P
age 147

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

CIPFA – Financial Scrutiny Practice Guide

Produced by the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) and 
CIPFA, this guide provides guidance to councils and 
councillors in England on how they might best integrate an 
awareness of council finances into the way that overview and 
scrutiny works.
The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on council finances, uncertainty regarding the 
delayed fair funding review and future operations for social care – on top of a decade of 
progressively more significant financial constraints – has placed local government in a 
hugely challenging position. 

For the foreseeable future, council budgeting will be even more about the language of 
priorities and difficult choices than ever before. 

This guide suggests ways to move budget and finance scrutiny beyond set-piece scrutiny 
‘events’ in December and quarterly financial performance scorecards being reported to 
committee. Effective financial scrutiny is one of the few ways that councils can assure 
themselves that their budget is robust and sustainable, and that it intelligently takes into 
account the needs of residents.

Scrutiny can provide an independent perspective, drawing directly on the insights of local 
people, and can challenge assumptions and preconceptions. It can also provide a 
mechanism to ensure an understanding tough choices that councils are now making.

This paper has been published as the local government sector is seeking to manage the 
unique set of financial circumstances arising from the COVID-19 pandemic. This has 
resulted, through the Coronavirus Act 2020 and other legislation, in changes to local 
authorities’ formal duties around financial systems and procedures.

The approaches set out in this guide reflect CfPS and CIPFA’s thinking on scrutiny’s role on 
financial matters as things stand, but the preparation for the 2021/22 budget might look 
different. CfPS has produced a separate guide to assist scrutineers in understanding 
financial matters during the pandemic

14

The full report can be obtained from 
CIPFA’s website:

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-
guidance/reports/financial-scrutiny-
practice-guide

P
age 148

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | July 2020

Public

Future Procurement and Market Supply Options 
Review – Public Sector Audit Appointments

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) has commissioned 
an independent review of the sustainability of the local 
government audit market. The review was undertaken by an 
independent consultancy, Touchstone Renard. 
PSAA note that the report “draws on the views of audit firms active in the local authority 
market as well as others that are not. In doing so it identifies a number of distinctive 
challenges in the current local audit market. In particular it highlights the unprecedented 
scrutiny and significant regulatory pressure on the auditing profession; the challenges of a 
demanding timetable which expects publication of audited accounts by 31 July each year; 
and the impact of austerity on local public bodies and its effect on both the complexity of the 
issues auditors face and the capacity of local finance teams”. 

Key findings in the report include:

• A lack of experienced local authority auditors as the main threat to the future 
sustainability of the market.

• It will be difficult to bring the non-approved firms into the market.

• Of the nine approved firms, only five have current contracts with PSAA.

• Almost all of the approved firms have reservations about remaining in the market.

• Firms perceive that that their risks have increased since bids were submitted for the 
current contracts.

• The timing of local audits is problematic. 

Key issues for the next procurement round include:

• Number of lots and lot sizes.

• Lot composition.

• Length of contracts.

• Price:quality ratio.

The report notes that “PSAA will need to balance the views of the firms with wider 
considerations including the needs of audited bodies and the requirement to appoint an 
auditor to every individual body opting in to its collective scheme”.

15

The full report can be obtained from the PSAA website:

https://www.psaa.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/PSAA-Future-
Procurement-and-Market-Supply-Options-Review.pdf

P
age 149

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 
and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 
for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 150

A
genda Item

 19
A

ppendix 1



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020

External Audit Plan

 
Report from:  Grant Thornton

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 This report presents the External Audit Plan for the year ended 31 March, 2020.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

External Audit Plan for the year ended 31 March 2020.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The External Audit Plan for the year ended 31 March, 2020, is detailed at 

Appendix 1.

3.2 There is an addendum at Appendix 2 which focuses on COVID-19.

3.3 Grant Thornton will present the plan to Members.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 The report is not subject to formal consultation.

4.2 The Director of Resources has been consulted.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options to consider.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

Page 151

Agenda Item 20



7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resources or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report concerns the 

external audit process.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
The appointed auditor is 
unable to obtain sufficient 
assurance in relation to the 
Council’s finances and value 
for money arrangements.

The appointed auditors’ 
opinion does not 
adequately reflect the 
Council’s arrangements.

The audit cannot be 
concluded.

The appointed auditors’ 
annual plan is agreed 
and the audit fee reflects 
the resources required.

Internal resources are 
insufficient.

The audit plan is 
delayed.

Planning and 
coordination between 
key officers.

Contact Officers 
S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 External Audit

Annual Plan
2 External Audit

Annual Plan Addendum

Page 152

Agenda Item 20



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2020

Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council

March 2020

P
age 153

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Introduction & headlines                                                                                                     3

2. Key matters impacting our audit                                                                                              4                                                        

3. Significant risks identified      5 

4. Other risks identified 7

5. Other matters 8

6. Materiality                                                                                                                  9

7. Value for Money arrangements                                                                                                 10

8. Audit Logistics & Team                                                                                                       11

9. Audit Fees                                                                                                                   13                                           

10. Independence & non-audit services 14

Appendix

A. Audit quality – national context 16

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the
Council or all weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor
intended for, any other purpose.

Your key Grant Thornton 
team members are:

Gareth Kelly

Engagement Lead

T:  0141 223 0891 or 07880456154

E: Gareth.Kelly@uk.gt.com

Richard Anderson

Engagement Manager

T: 0141 223 0753 or 07920021291

E: Richard.J.Anderson@uk.gt.com

Hebe Dyson

Engagement In-charge

T: 0141 223 0738

E: Hebe.R.Dyson@uk.gt.com

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members 
is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Council. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

P
age 154

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 3

1. Introduction & headlines
Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory
audit of Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council (‘the Council’) for those charged with
governance.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin
and end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities
are also set out in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities
issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for
appointing us as auditor of Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council. We draw your
attention to both of these documents.

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

• Council’s financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight
of those charged with governance (the Audit committee); and

• Value for Money arrangements in place at the Council for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit Committee of
your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for. We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is risk
based.

Significant risks Those risks requiring special audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have been 
identified as:

• Valuation of land, buildings and dwellings

• Improper recognition of revenue on contract income

• Valuation of net pension fund liability

• Management override of controls

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit 
Findings (ISA 260) Report.

Materiality We have determined planning materiality to be £0.896 m (PY £0.942m) for the Council, which equates to 1.95% of your prior year gross 
expenditure (adjusted for £0.610m HRA reversals) for the year. We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other 
than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. Clearly trivial has been set at £0.045 m (PY £0.047 m). 

Value for Money arrangements Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money has identified the following VFM significant risks:

• Medium Term Financial Plan and financial sustainability 

• Procurement and contract management arrangements. 

Audit logistics Our interim visit is taking place in March. We will discuss the timing of our final accounts visit with management and the Audit Committee in 
due course. Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and our Audit Findings Report. Our audit approach is detailed in this report.

Our fee for the audit will be £49,362 (PY: £47,362) for the Council, subject to the Council meeting our requirements as set out on page 14.

Independence We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are 
independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements..

P
age 155

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 4

2. Key matters impacting our audit

Factors

Our response

.

The wider economy and political uncertainty

Local Government funding continues to be stretched with increasing cost pressures and  
demand from residents. The Council’s current budget strategy (2016 to 2020) aimed to 
eliminate a forecast £2.7 million deficit by 2019-2020. The current projection identifies 
that £2.8m may be achieved by the 31st March, 2020. The Council’s financial 
settlement for 2020-2021 consists of Revenue Support Grant of £1.272m and Business 
Rate Retention Baseline of £3.129 m, totalling £4.402m.  This settlement is a rollover 
from the 2019-2020 figures, with the settlement beyond 2021-22 is unknown. Since 
2010 the Council’s financial settlement, which funds recurring services has reduced 
from £9.1m to an equivalent of £3.6m; a 60% reduction of £5.5m. 

In January 2020, the UK government and the EU ratified the Withdrawal Agreement 
and the UK’s membership of the EU formally ceased on 31 January. The existence of a 
‘transition period’ to 31 December 2020 means that there will be little practical change 
for the Council until at least 2021. However, the nature of the future relationship 
between the UK and the EU is still to be determined and considerable uncertainty 
persists. The Council will need to ensure that it is prepared for all outcomes, including 
those with any impact on contracts, on service delivery and on its support for local 
people and businesses.

• We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial 
resources as part of our work in reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

• We will follow up on the recommendation in our 2018/19 audit findings report 
around Budget Strategy delivery.

• We will consider whether your financial position leads to material uncertainty about 
the going concern of the Council and will review related disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

• We will continue to monitor the impact of the UK leaving the EU on the Council. 

Financial reporting and audit – raising the bar 

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has set 
out its expectation of improved financial reporting 
from organisations and the need for auditors to 
demonstrate increased scepticism and 
challenge, and to undertake more robust testing 
as detailed in Appendix 1.  

Our work in 2018/19 has highlighted areas 
where local government financial reporting, in 
particular, property, plant and equipment and 
pensions, needs to be improved, with a 
corresponding increase in audit procedures. We 
have also identified an increase in the complexity 
of local government financial transactions which 
require greater audit scrutiny.

Preparing for IFRS 16 
Implementation

The Authority will need to undertake 
initial preparatory work on its leases 
to prepare for the full introduction of 
IFRS 16 for 2020-21.

Procurement and Contract 
Management

Our prior year Value for Money 
work and the work of Internal Audit, 
has identified weaknesses in the 
Council’s procurement and contract 
management arrangements.

 As a firm, we are absolutely committed to 
meeting the expectations of the FRC with 
regard to audit quality and local government 
financial reporting. Our proposed work and 
fee, as set further in our Audi Plan, has been 
agreed with the Director of Resources and is 
subject to PSAA agreement. 

• We will assess the adequacy of 
your disclosure about the 
financial impact of implementing 
IFRS 16 – Leases in your 2019-
20 financial statements.

• We will follow up on the VfM 
recommendation in our 2018/19 
audit findings report around 
procurement and contract 
management.

• We will include a significant 
financial statements risk in 
relation to income from contracts. 

P
age 156

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 5

3. Significant risks identified
Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, 
the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The revenue 
cycle includes 
fraudulent 
transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to
the improper recognition of revenue.

Our prior year Value for Money work and the work of Internal Audit, has identified weaknesses
in the Council’s procurement and contract management arrangements. For Barrow-In-Furness
Borough Council we have concluded that the greatest risk of material misstatement relates to
income from contracts.

We have therefore identified the occurrence and accuracy of income from contracts as a
significant risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

We have rebutted this presumed risk for the other revenue streams of the Council because:

• Other income streams are primarily derived from grants or formula based income from
central government and tax payers

• There is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• Opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• The culture and ethical framework of local authorities, including Barrow-In-Furness Borough
Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

We will:

• evaluate the Council’s accounting policy for recognition of
contract income for appropriateness

• gain an understanding of the Council's system for accounting
for contract income and evaluate the design of the associated
controls

• agree on a sample basis amounts recognised as income from
contracts to supporting evidence.

Management
over-ride of 
controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of management over-
ride of controls is present in all entities. The Council faces external scrutiny of its spending and 
this could potentially place management under undue pressure in terms of how they report 
performance.

We therefore identified management override of control, in particular journals, management 
estimates and transactions outside the course of business as a significant risk, which was one 
of the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

We will:

• evaluate the design effectiveness of management controls 
over journals

• analyse the journals listing and determine the criteria for 
selecting high risk unusual journals 

• test unusual journals recorded during the year and after the 
draft accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration

• gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and 
critical  judgements made by management and consider their 
reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, 
estimates or significant unusual transactions.

P
age 157

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 6

Significant risks identified
Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of land, 
buildings and dwellings

The Council revalues its land, buildings and dwellings on a rolling 
basis. This valuation represents a significant estimate by 
management in the financial statements due to the size of the 
numbers involved and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes 
in key assumptions. Additionally, management will need to 
ensure the carrying value of buildings and dwellings not revalued 
in year in the Council financial statements is not materially 
different from the current value or the fair value (for surplus 
assets) at the financial statements date.

We therefore identified valuation of land, buildings and dwellings, 
particularly revaluations and impairments, as a significant risk, 
which was one of the most significant assessed risks of material 
misstatement.

We will:

• evaluate management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the
estimate, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work

• evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert

• discuss with the valuer the basis on which the valuation was carried out

• challenge the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess
completeness and consistency with our understanding

• test revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly into the
Council’s asset register; and

• evaluate the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during 
the year and how management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially 
different to current value at year end.

Valuation of the 
pension fund net 
liability

The Council’s pension fund net liability,
as reflected in its balance sheet as the net defined benefit
liability, represents a significant estimate in the financial 
statements. 

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant estimate 
due to the size of the numbers involved and the sensitivity of the 
estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Council’s pension fund 
net liability as a significant risk, which was one of the most 
significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

We will:

• update our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by management 
to ensure that the Council’s pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and 
evaluate the design of the associated controls

• evaluate the instructions issued by management  to their management expert (an 
actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work

• assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the 
Council’s pension fund valuation

• assess the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the Council to 
the actuary to estimate the liability

• test the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in the 
notes to the core financial statements with the actuarial report from the actuary;

• undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions 
made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and 
performing any additional procedures suggested within the report; and

• obtain assurances from the auditor of Cumbria Local Government Pension Scheme 
as to the controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data; 
contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and the 
fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

P
age 158

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 7

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

International 
Financial Reporting 
Standard (IFRS) 16 
Leases – (issued 
but not adopted) 

The public sector will implement this standard from 1 April 2020. It will replace IAS 
17 Leases, and the three interpretations that supported its application (IFRIC 4, 
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15, Operating Leases 
– Incentives, and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the 
Legal Form of a Lease). Under the new standard the current distinction between 
operating and finance leases is removed for lessees and, subject to certain 
exceptions, lessees will recognise all leases on their balance sheet as a right of 
use asset and a liability to make the lease payments. 

In accordance with IAS 8 and paragraph 3.3.4.3 of the Code disclosures of the 
expected impact of IFRS 16 should be included in the Council’s 2019/20 financial 
statements. The Code adapts IFRS 16 and requires that the subsequent 
measurement of the right of use asset where the underlying asset is an item of 
property, plant and equipment is measured in accordance with section 4.1 of the 
Code. 

We will:

• evaluate the processes the Council has adopted to assess the impact 
of IFRS16 on its 2020/21 financial statements and whether the 
estimated impact on assets, liabilities and reserves has been disclosed 
in the 2019/20 financial statements.

• assess the completeness of the disclosures made by the Council in its 
2019/20 financial statements with reference to The Code and 
CIPFA/LASAAC Local Council Leasing Briefings.

4. Other risks identified

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report.

P
age 159

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 8

5. Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other
audit responsibilities, as follows:

• We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement and any other 
information published alongside your financial statements to check that they are 
consistent with the financial statements on which we give an opinion and consistent 
with our knowledge of the Council

• We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual 
Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued by CIPFA

• We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government 
Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions

• We consider our other duties under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 
Act) and the Code, as and when required, including:

• Giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2019/20 
financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in 
relation to the 2019/20 financial statements

• Issue of a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the 
Council under section 24 of the Act, copied to the Secretary of State

• Application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary 
to law under Section 28 or for a judicial review under Section 31 of the Act 
or

• Issuing an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Act.

• We certify completion of our audit.

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material 
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each 
material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material 
balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will 
not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the 
appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is 
a material uncertainty about the Council's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA 
(UK) 570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption 
and material uncertainties, and evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements. 

P
age 160

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 9

6. Materiality
The concept of materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and 
the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure 
requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. 
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in 
the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes

We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross 
expenditure of the Council for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same 
benchmark. Materiality at the planning stage of our audit is £0.896 m (PY £0.942 million) 
for the Council, which equates to 1.95% of your prior year gross expenditure for the year 
(adjusted from £0.610 m HRA reversals). We design our procedures to detect errors in 
specific accounts at a lower level of precision which we have determined to be £4,000 for 
senior officer remuneration.

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we 
become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a different 
determination of planning materiality.

Matters we will report to the Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to 
our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit 
Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are 
identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with those charged with 
governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than 
those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK) defines 
‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in 
aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria. In the context of 
the Council, we propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be 
clearly trivial if it is less than £0.0045 m (PY £0.047 m). 

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the 
audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the Audit 
Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Prior year gross expenditure

£45.937 million

(PY: £49.601 million)

Materiality

Prior year gross expenditure

Materiality

£0.896 million

Council financial 
statements materiality

(PY: £0.942 million)

£0.045 million

Misstatements reported 
to the Audit Committee

(PY: £0.047 million)

P
age 161

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 10

7. Value for Money arrangements

Background to our VFM approach

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work in November 2017. The
guidance states that for Local Government bodies, auditors are required to give a
conclusion on whether the Council has proper arrangements in place to secure value for
money.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Significant VFM risks

Those risks requiring audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that 
proper arrangements are not in place at the Council to deliver value for money.

Medium Term Financial Plan and financial sustainability

The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan for 2020-2024 identifies deficits for
2021-2022 (£0.118 m), 2022-2023 (£0.263 m) and 2023-2024 (£0.429 m). The
Council’s General Fund balance as at March 2021, is projected to be £2.3 m,
above the minimum balance of £1.9 m. Other general fund earmarked reserves
are projected to fall from £7.784m as at March 2019 to £5.090m as at March
2024. The Council’s funding position beyond 2020-21 is unknown and
projections beyond this are based on the 2020-21 settlement.

Given the uncertainties around the future funding settlement, projected deficits 
and future run rate on reserves, the medium term financial plan and financial 
sustainability of the Council represents a significant risk to our VFM conclusion. 
In response to the risk we will; review progress on delivery of the medium term 
financial plan, review arrangements for developing the medium term financial 
plan and challenge key assumption in the plan.

Procurement and contract management arrangements

The 2018/19 Annual Governance Statement, the work of internal audit and our
own 2018/19 Audit Finding Report identified the need for the Council to
strengthen its procurement and contract management arrangements. In the prior
year, we were unable to conclude that the Council had adequate arrangements
in place in this area and issued an ‘except for’ VFM conclusion opinion. Our
review of the work of Internal Audit and discussions with management and those
charged with governance in 2019/20 suggest that weaknesses in the Council’s
arrangements in this area remain.

In view of this, the adequacy of the Council’s procurement and contract
management arrangements, continues to represent a significant risk to our VFM
conclusion. We will review the Council’s procurement and contract management
arrangements to determine whether they ensure the Council can demonstrate
procurement processes and contracts ensure overall value for money. The audit
team will convene an internal national quality panel to moderate on what our
VFM conclusion is.

Informed 
decision 
making

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

Working 
with partners 
& other third 

parties

Value for 
Money 

arrangements 
criteria P

age 162

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 11

8. Audit logistics & team 

Client responsibilities

Where clients do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that this does not 
impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, thereby 
disadvantaging other clients. Where the elapsed time to complete an audit exceeds that 
agreed due to a client not meeting its obligations we will not be able to maintain a team on 
site. Similarly, where additional resources are needed to complete the audit due to a client 
not meeting their obligations we are not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit to the 
agreed timescales. In addition, delayed audits will incur additional audit fees.

Our requirements 

To minimise the risk of a delayed audit, you need to ensure that you:

• produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed with 
us, including all notes, the narrative report and the Annual Governance Statement

• ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in 
accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with 
you

• ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are 
reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples

• ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise 
agreed) the planned period of the audit

• respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

Gareth Kelly

Engagement Lead

Gareth will lead the engagement. He will direct the audit 
team, attend Audit committees and be your first point of 
contact for any issue in relation to the audit process. 
Gareth will be responsible for issuing our opinion on 
your financial statements. 

Richard Anderson

Engagement Manager

Richard will be responsible for the management of the 
audit. He  will supervise and co-ordinate the team and 
ensure our audit work is delivered to the agreed 
timetable. Richard will meet regularly with the finance 
team to discuss audit issues.

Hebe Dyson

Engagement In-Charge

Hebe will be responsible for the day to day delivery of 
our audit fieldwork. She will work with your finance team 
to ensure an efficient and quality audit is achieved. 

Planning and
risk assessment 

Interim audit
March 2020

Year end audit
TBC

Audit
Committee
March 2020

Audit
Committee
June 2020

Audit
Committee

TBC

Audit Findings Report

Audit Opinion

Annual Audit Letter

Audit 
Plan

Interim Progress Report

Audit Plan

P
age 163

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 12

9. Audit fees

Actual Fee 
2017/18

Actual Fee 
2018/19

Proposed fee 
2019/20 

Council Audit scale fee set by PSAA £51,119 £39,362 £39,362

Audit fee variations – additional work required, see page 15 £0 £8,000 £10,000

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £51,119 £47,362 £49,362

.

Assumptions:
In setting the above fees, we have assumed that the Council will:
- prepare a good quality set of accounts, supported by comprehensive and well-presented working papers which are ready at the start of the audit
- provide appropriate analysis, support and evidence to support all critical judgements and significant judgements made during the course of preparing the financial statements
- provide early notice of proposed complex or unusual transactions which could have a material impact on the financial statements.

Relevant professional standards:
In preparing our fee estimate, we have had regard to all relevant professional standards, including paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of the FRC’s Ethical Standard which stipulate that the Engagement Lead 

(Key Audit Partner) must set a fee sufficient to enable the resourcing of the audit with staff of appropriate skills, time and abilities to deliver an audit to the required professional standard.

Planned audit fees 2019/20

Across all sectors and firms, the FRC has set out its expectation of improved financial reporting from organisations and the need for auditors to demonstrate increased scepticism and challenge 
and to undertake additional and more robust testing. Within the public sector, where the FRC has recently assumed responsibility for the inspection of local government audit, the regulator 
requires that all audits achieve a 2A (few improvements needed) rating. 

Our work across the sector in 2018/19 has highlighted areas where local government financial reporting, in particular, property, plant and equipment and pensions, needs to be improved. We 
have also identified an increase in the complexity of local government financial transactions. Combined with the FRC requirement that 100% of audits achieve a 2A rating this means that 
additional audit work is required. We have set out below the expected impact on our audit fee. The table overleaf provides more details about the areas where we will be undertaking further 
testing. 

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of the FRC with regard to audit quality and local government financial reporting. Our proposed work and fee for 2019/20 at the 
planning stage, as set out below and with further analysis overleaf, has been agreed with the Director of Resources and is subject to PSAA agreement. 

P
age 164

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 13

Audit fee variations – Further analysis 
Planned audit fees

The table below shows the planned variations to the original scale fee for 2019/20 based on our best estimate at the audit planning stage. Further issues identified during the 
course of the audit may incur additional fees. In agreement with PSAA (where applicable) we will be seeking approval to secure these additional fees for the remainder of the 
contract via a formal rebasing of your scale fee to reflect the increased level of audit work required to enable us to discharge our responsibilities. Should any further issues 
arise during the course of the audit that necessitate further audit work additional fees will be incurred, subject to PSAA approval. 

Audit area 2019-20 £ Rationale for fee variation

PSAA Scale fee : 39,362

Property, plant and 
equipment

3,000 We have increased the volume and scope of our audit work to ensure an adequate level of audit scrutiny and 
challenge over the assumptions that underpin PPE valuations. 

Increased challenge and 
depth of work

2,500 The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has highlighted that the quality of work by all audit firms needs to improve 
across local audit. This will require additional supervision and leadership, as well as additional challenge and 
scepticism in areas such as journals, estimates, financial resilience and information provided by the entity

Value for Money Conclusion 2,000 In view of the 2018/19 except for Vale for Money conclusion opinion, the audit team will require input and moderation 
from an internal national quality panel to determine whether sufficient progress has been made to remove the ‘except 
for’ Value for Money Conclusion. 

Pensions – valuation of net 
pension liabilities under 
International Auditing 
Standard (IAS) 19

1,750 We have increased the granularity, depth and scope of coverage, with increased levels of sampling, additional levels 
of challenge and explanation sought, and heightened levels of documentation and reporting.

Complex accounting issues 
and new standards

750 You are required to respond effectively to new accounting standards and we must ensure our audit work in these 
new areas is robust. This year we will both be responding to the introduction of IFRS16. 

Revised scale fee 49,362 (Still subject to Council and PSAA approval)

P
age 165

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 14

10. Independence & non-audit services
Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm 
or covered persons relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us.  We will also discuss with you if we make 
additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters. 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 
statements. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered 
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit 
Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 and PSAA’s Terms of Appointment which set out supplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local 
public bodies. 

Other services provided by Grant Thornton

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following other services were identified :

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are consistent with the Council’s 
policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Audit Committee. Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and 
non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion 
of the audit.
None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.
The firm is committed to improving our audit quality – please see our transparency report - https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-
reports/interim-transparency-report-2019.pdf

Service £ Threats Safeguards

Audit related:

Certification of Housing 
Benefit Subsidy grant

TBC Self-Interest (because 
this is a recurring fee)

The fee for this work in 2018/19 was  £27,700. This recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant 
threat to independence relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee (based on 
an agreed day rate) and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest 
threat to an acceptable level.

Certification of Housing 
Capital Receipts Grant

2,500 Self-Interest (because 
this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee  
for this work is £2,500 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £49,362 and in particular relative to Grant 
Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These 
factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

P
age 166

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20

Appendices

A. Audit Quality – national context

P
age 167

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20 16

Appendix A: Audit Quality – national context

What has the FRC said about Audit Quality?

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) publishes an annual Quality Inspection of our firm, 
alongside our competitors. The Annual Quality Review (AQR) monitors the quality of UK 
Public Interest Entity audits to promote continuous improvement in audit quality.

All of the major audit firms are subject to an annual review process in which the FRC 
inspects a small sample of audits performed from each of the firms to see if they fully 
conform to required standards.

The most recent report, published in July 2019, shows that the results of commercial audits 
taken across all the firms have worsened this year. The FRC has identified the need for 
auditors to:

• improve the extent and rigour of challenge of management in areas of judgement

• improve the consistency of audit teams’ application of professional scepticism

• strengthen the effectiveness of the audit of revenue

• improve the audit of going concern

• improve the audit of the completeness and evaluation of prior year adjustments.

The FRC has also set all firms the target of achieving a grading of ‘2a’ (limited 
improvements required) or better on all FTSE 350 audits. We have set ourselves the same 
target for public sector audits from 2019/20.

Other sector wide reviews

Alongside the FRC, other key stakeholders including the Department for Business, Energy 
and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) have expressed concern about the quality of audit work and 
the need for improvement. A number of key reviews into the profession have been 
undertaken or are in progress. These include the review by Sir John Kingman of the 
Financial Reporting Council (Dec 2018), the review by the Competition and Markets 
Council of competition within the audit market, the ongoing review by Sir Donald Brydon of 
external audit, and specifically for public services, the Review by Sir Tony Redmond of 
local Council financial reporting and external audit. As a firm, we are contributing to all 
these reviews and keen to be at the forefront of developments and improvements in public 
audit.

What are we doing to address FRC findings?

In response to the FRC’s findings, the firm is responding vigorously and with purpose. As 
part of our Audit Investment Programme (AIP), we are establishing a new Quality Board, 
commissioning an independent review of our audit function, and strengthening our senior 
leadership at the highest levels of the firm, for example through the appointment of Fiona 
Baldwin as Head of Audit. We are confident these investments will make a real difference. 

We have also undertaken a root cause analysis and put in place processes to address the 
issues raised by the FRC. We have already implemented new training material that will 
reinforce the need for our engagement teams to challenge management and demonstrate 
how they have applied professional scepticism as part of the audit. Further guidance on 
auditing areas such as revenue has also been disseminated to all audit teams and we will 
continue to evolve our training and review processes on an ongoing basis.

What will be different in this audit?

We will continue working collaboratively with you to deliver the audit to the agreed 
timetable whilst improving our audit quality. In achieving this you may see, for example, an 
increased expectation for management to develop properly articulated papers for any new 
accounting standard, or unusual or complex transactions. In addition, you should expect 
engagement teams to exercise even greater challenge management in areas that are 
complex, significant or highly judgmental which may be the case for accounting estimates, 
going concern, related parties and similar areas. As a result you may find the audit process 
even more challenging than previous audits. These changes will give the audit committee –
which has overall responsibility for governance - and senior management greater 
confidence that we have delivered a high quality audit and that the financial statements are 
not materially misstated. Even greater challenge of management will also enable us to 
provide greater insights into the quality of your finance function and internal control 
environment and provide those charged with governance confidence that a material 
misstatement due to fraud will have been detected.

We will still plan for a smooth audit and ensure this is completed to the timetable agreed. 
However, there may be instances where we may require additional time for both the audit 
work to be completed to the standard required and to ensure management have 
appropriate time to consider any matters raised. This may require us to agree with you a 
delay in signing the announcement and financial statements. To minimise this risk, we will 
keep you informed of progress and risks to the timetable as the audit progresses.

We are absolutely committed to delivering audit of the highest quality and we should be 
happy to provide further detail about our improvement plans should you require it. 

P
age 168

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 
firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 169

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20

DRAFT

Commercial in confidence

External Audit Plan update
Year ending 31 March 2020

Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council

April 2020

P
age 171

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 2



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20

DRAFT

Commercial in confidence

2

Introduction & headlines

Purpose

This document provides an update to the planned scope and timing of the statutory audit of Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council (‘the Council’) as reported in our Audit Plan dated March

2020, for those charged with governance.

The current environment

In addition to the audit risks shared with those charged with governance in our Audit Plan, recent events have led us to update our planning risk assessment and reconsider our audit and 

value for money (VfM) approach to reflect the unprecedented global response to the Covid-19 pandemic. The significance of the situation cannot be underestimated and the implications for 

individuals, organisations and communities remains highly uncertain. For our public sector audited bodies, we appreciate the significant responsibility and burden your staff have to ensure 

vital public services are provided. As far we can, our aim is to work with you in these unprecedented times, ensuring up to date communication and flexibility where possible in our audit 

procedures.

Impact on our audit and VfM work

Management and those charged with governance are still required to prepare financial statements in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and the Code of Audit Practice, albeit

to an extended deadline for the preparation of the financial statements up to 31 August 2020 and the date for audited financials statements to 30 November 2020, however we will liaise with

management to agree appropriate timescales. We continue to be responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the Council’s financial statements and VfM arrangements.

In order to fulfil our responsibilities under International Auditing Standards (ISA’s (UK)) we have revisited our planning risk assessment. We may also need to consider implementing changes to

the procedures we had planned and reported in our Audit Plan to reflect current restrictions to working practices, such as the application of technology to allow remote working. Additionally, it

has been confirmed since our Audit Plan was issued that the implementation of IFRS 16 has been delayed for the public sector until 2020/21.

Changes to our audit approach

To date we have:

• Identified a new significant financial statement risk, as described overleaf.

• Reviewed the materiality levels we determined for the audit. We did not identify any changes to our materiality assessment as a result of the risk identified due to Covid-19.

Changes to our VfM approach

We have updated our VfM risk assessment to document our understanding of your arrangements to ensure critical business continuity in the current environment. We have not identified any

new VfM risks in relation to Covid-19.

Conclusion

We will ensure any further changes in our audit and VfM approach and procedures are communicated with management and reported in our Audit Findings Report. We wish to thank

management for their timely collaboration in this difficult time.

P
age 172

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 2



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan addendum for Barrow-In-Furness Borough Council  |  2019/20

DRAFT

Commercial in confidence

3

Significant risks identified – Covid – 19 pandemic

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Covid – 19 The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to unprecedented uncertainty for all 

organisations, requiring urgent business continuity arrangements to be implemented. We expect 

current circumstances will have an impact on the production and audit of the financial statements 

for the year ended 31 March 2020, including and not limited to;

- Remote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to critical front line duties may impact 

on the quality and timing of the production of the financial statements, and the evidence we can 

obtain through physical observation

- Volatility of financial and property markets will increase the uncertainty of assumptions applied 

by management to asset valuation and receivable recovery estimates, and the reliability of 

evidence we can obtain to corroborate management estimates

- Financial uncertainty will require management to reconsider financial forecasts supporting their 

going concern assessment and whether material uncertainties for a period of at least 12 months 

from the anticipated date of approval of the audited financial statements have arisen; and 

- Disclosures within the financial statements will require significant revision to reflect the 

unprecedented situation and its impact on the preparation of the financial statements as at 31 

March 2020 in accordance with IAS1, particularly in relation to material uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus as a significant risk, which was 

one of the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

We will:

• Work with management to understand the implications the 

response to the Covid-19 pandemic has on the organisation’s 

ability to prepare the financial statements and update financial 

forecasts and assess the implications on our audit approach

• Liaise with other audit suppliers, regulators and government 

departments to co-ordinate practical cross sector responses to 

issues as and when they arise 

• Evaluate the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial 

statements  in light of the Covid-19 pandemic

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence using alternative 

approaches can be obtained for the purposes of our audit whilst 

working remotely

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence can be obtained to 

corroborate significant management estimates such as asset 

valuations and recovery of receivable balances

• Evaluate management’s assumptions that underpin the revised 

financial forecasts and the impact on management’s going 

concern assessment

• Discuss with management any potential implications for our 

audit report if we have been unable to obtain sufficient audit 

evidence. P
age 173

A
genda Item

 20
A

ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020

Consultation Model Member Code of Conduct

 
Report from:  Monitoring Officer

Report Author: Jon Huck/Debbie Storr

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 To consider and provide any feedback on the model Member Code of Conduct 

which is being consulted upon by the Local Government Association.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that Audit and Governance Committee:- 

(1) Note the consultation Model Member Code of Conduct and provide any 
feedback.

(2) Note that the Monitoring Officer is liaising with the Cumbria wide 
Monitoring Officers Group to provide a Cumbria Monitoring Officer 
response.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The Committee on Standards in Public Life published a Local Government 

Ethical Standards Report on 30 January 2019 on the subject of ethical standards 
in local government. This came before Audit Committee on 25 July 2019.  The 
report commented that there was considerable variation in the length, quality and 
clarity of codes of conduct which created confusion among members of the 
public and among Councillors who represent more than one tier of local 
authority.  It was considered that many codes of conduct failed to address 
adequately important areas such as social media use and bullying and 
harassment.  One of their recommendations was that the Local Government 
Association should create an updated model code of conduct, in consultation 
with representative bodies of councillors and officers of all tiers of local 
government.

3.2 The Local Government Association is now consulting on a draft model Member 
Code of Conduct.  The draft is attached as Appendix 1 to this report, together 
with the consultation questionnaire at Appendix 2. The Model Member Code is 
designed by the LGA to aid members in all tiers of local government model the 

Page 175

Agenda Item 21



behaviours and high standards that anyone would expect from a person holding 
public office.  It also articulates the behaviour which falls below the standards 
that would be expected of council members.  It is designed to help set a 
framework for public and councillor interaction, emphasising the importance of 
civility and that councillors should be protected from bullying, intimidation and 
abuse.

3.3 Within the draft items in square brackets [x] refer to recommendations made by 
the Committee on Standards in Public Life and may be part of a future 
Government consultation.  This includes possible future sanctions and appeals 
processes. 

3.4 The LGA is inviting comment on the consultation draft and would particularly like 
to know if it stands up to the new ways of working that have been introduced and 
whether it gives enough of a steer on social media and online activity.

3.5 Current Code – The Council’s current code (Appendix 3) was adopted in 2012 
following collaboration with the Cumbria Authorities, including County, Districts 
and the Parish Councils when a common code was agreed across Cumbria. The 
County Monitoring Officers have the consultation review of the code on their 
agenda and are to provide a County wide Monitoring Officer response to the 
consultation. 

4.0 Consultation 
The consultation on the Code launched on the LGA website on 8 June 2020 and 
will run for 10 weeks until Monday 17 August.  To facilitate consultation the LGA 
has produced an online consultation questionnaire designed for both officers and 
members; and an overview of the online questions is available to view on line 
and is attached as Appendix 2 to this report.  The questionnaire includes 
questions on the application of the code and the registration and declarations of 
interest. Following the consultation response the LGA will develop a final draft 
which will be reviewed by the LGA’s Executive Advisory Board before being 
presented to the LGA General Assembly.

 
5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 The Committee could choose not to provide any feedback.  By providing 

feedback, Members have an opportunity to raise any concerns and help shape 
the final model code.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 Good governance underpins the delivery of the Council’s Priorities.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report.

Page 176

Agenda Item 21



Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – this report considers a 

response to a LGA consultation.
.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
The Council is not aware or 
does not consider any 
recommendations arising from 
the LGAs work

 The Council would not 
be reviewing its 
governance 
arrangements and its 
code of conduct

.Further report back on 
outcome of consultation

Contact Officers 
dstorr@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 LGA draft model Member Code of Conduct
2 Consultation Questionnaire
3 Barrow Borough Council Member Code of Conduct

Background Documents Available
Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

1 Local Government 
Ethical Standards – A 
review by the 
Committee on 
Standards in Public Life 
published January 2019

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-
ethical-standards-report

2 Report to Audit 
Committee 25 July 2019

www.barrowbc.gov.uk

 

Page 177

Agenda Item 21

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-ethical-standards-report


This page is intentionally left blank



1          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

Local 
Government 
Association  
Model Member 
Code of Conduct

Consultation

Page 179

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



CLLr

The Local Government Association (LGA) is providing this Model Member Code of  Conduct as 
part of  its work on supporting the sector to continue to aspire to high standards of  leadership 
and performance.

The role of  councillor in all tiers of  local government is a vital part of  our country’s system of  
democracy. In voting for a local councillor, the public is imbuing that person and position with 
their trust. As such, it is important that as councillors we can be held accountable and all adopt 
the behaviours and responsibilities associated with the role. The conduct of  an individual 
councillor affects the reputation of  all councillors. We want the role of  councillor to be one that 
people aspire to and want to participate with. We want to continue to attract individuals from a 
range of  backgrounds and circumstances who understand the responsibility they take on and 
are motivated to make a positive difference to their local communities.

All councils are required to have a local Member Code of  Conduct. This Model Member Code 
of  Conduct has been developed in consultation with the sector and is offered as a template for 
councils to adopt in whole and/or with local amendments. The LGA will undertake an annual 
review of  the Code to ensure it continues to be fit-for-purpose, particularly with respect to 
advances in technology, social media and any relevant changes in legislation. The LGA can 
also offer support, training and mediation to councils and councillors on the application of  the 
Code, whilst the National Association of  Local Councils (NALC) and the county associations of  
local councils can offer advice and support to town and parish councils. 

As a councillor we all represent local residents, work to develop better services and deliver 
local change. The public have high expectations of  us and entrust us to represent everyone 
(in our ward/town/parish), taking decisions fairly, openly, transparently and with civility. 
Councillors should also be treated with civility by members of  the public, other councillors 
and council employees. Members have both individual and collective responsibility to 
maintain these standards, support expected behaviour and challenge behaviour which falls 
below expectations. This Code, therefore, has been designed to protect our democratic role, 
encourage good conduct and safeguard the public’s trust in local government.

Introduction

Councillor Howard Sykes MBE 
Leader, LGA Liberal Democrats Group

Councillor Marianne Overton MBE 
Leader, LGA independent Group

Councillor Izzi Seccombe OBE 
Leader, LGA Conservative Group

Councillor Nick Forbes CBE 
Leader, LGA Labour Group

Page 180

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1

dstorr
Sticky Note
imbuing - comment about plan english and terminology

dstorr_1
Highlight

dstorr_2
Highlight

dstorr_3
Sticky Note
not mandatory and potential for inconsistency?



3          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

CLLr

Purpose
The purpose of  this Code of  Conduct 
is to assist councillors in modelling the 
behaviour that is expected of  them, to 
provide a personal check and balance, 
and to set out the type of  conduct against 
which appropriate action may be taken. It 
is also to protect yourself, the public, fellow 
councillors, council officers and the reputation 
of  local government. It sets out the conduct 
expected of  all members and a minimum 
set of  obligations relating to conduct. The 
overarching aim is to create and maintain 
public confidence in the role of  member  
and local government.

Application of  the Code
The Code of  Conduct applies to you when 
you are acting [or claiming or giving the 
impression that you are acting]1 in [public 
or in]2 your capacity as a member or 
representative of  your council, although you 
are expected to uphold high standards of  
conduct and show leadership at all times. 
The Code applies to all forms of  member 
communication and interaction, including 
written, verbal, non-verbal, electronic and 
via social media, [including where you could 
be deemed to be representing your council 
or if  there are potential implications for the 
council’s reputation.] Model conduct and 
expectations is for guidance only, whereas the 
specific obligations set out instances where 
action will be taken.

The seven principles  
of  public life
Everyone in public office at all levels – 
ministers, civil servants, members, council 
officers – all who serve the public or deliver 
public services should uphold the seven 
principles of  public life. This Code has been 
developed in line with these seven principles 
of  public life, which are set out in appendix A. 

Model member conduct
In accordance with the public trust placed in 
me, on all occasions I will:

• act with integrity and honesty

• act lawfully

• treat all persons with civility; and 

• lead by example and act in a way that 
secures public confidence in the office 
of  councillor

In undertaking my role, I will:

• impartially exercise my responsibilities  
in the interests of  the local community 

• not improperly seek to confer an 
advantage, or disadvantage, on any person

• avoid conflicts of  interest

• exercise reasonable care and diligence; 
and

• ensure that public resources are used 
prudently and in the public interest

Specific obligations  
of  general conduct 
This section sets out the minimum 
requirements of  member conduct. Guidance 
is included to help explain the reasons for the 
obligations and how they should be followed. 
These obligations must be observed in all 
situations where you act [or claim or give the 
impression that you are acting] as a councillor 
[or in public], including representing your 
council on official business and when using 
social media.

Page 181

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1

dstorr_4
Highlight

dstorr_5
Sticky Note
could potentially lead to confusion and lack of consistency?

dstorr_6
Highlight

dstorr_7
Sticky Note
discuss wording?

dstorr_8
Sticky Note
suggest discussion needed around model conduct and expectations and how applied

dstorr_9
Highlight

dstorr_10
Sticky Note
myself or any person?



4          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

As a councillor I commit to:

Civility 
1. Treating other councillors and  

members of the public with civility. 

2. Treating council employees, employees 
and representatives of partner 
organisations and those volunteering 
for the councils with civility and 
respecting the role that they play. 

Civility means politeness and courtesy in 
behaviour, speech, and in the written word. 
Debate and having different views are all part 
of  a healthy democracy. As a councillor you 
can express, challenge, criticise and disagree 
with views, ideas, opinions and policies 
in a civil manner. You should not subject 
individuals, groups of  people or organisations 
to unreasonable or excessive personal attack.

In your contact with the public you should 
treat them courteously. Rude and offensive 
behaviour lowers the public’s expectations 
and confidence in its elected representatives. 

In return you have a right to expect courtesy 
from the public. If  members of  the public are 
being abusive, threatening or intimidatory you 
are entitled to close down any conversation 
in person or online, refer them to the council, 
any social media provider or if  necessary, the 
police. This also applies to members, where 
action could then be taken under the Member 
Code of  Conduct.

Bullying and harassment 
3. Not bullying or harassing any person. 

Bullying may be characterised as offensive, 
intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, 
an abuse or misuse of  power through means 
that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or 
injure the recipient. The bullying might be 
a regular pattern of  behaviour or a one-off  
incident, happen face-to-face, on social 
media, in emails or phone calls, happen in the 
workplace or at work social events and not 
always be obvious or noticed by others. 

The Equality Act 2010 defines harassment 
as ‘unwanted conduct related to a relevant 
protected characteristic, which has the 
purpose or effect of  violating an individual’s 
dignity or creating an intimidating, hostile, 
degrading, humiliating or offensive 
environment for that individual’. The relevant 
protected characteristics are age, disability, 
gender reassignment, race, religion or belief, 
sex, and sexual orientation.

Impartiality of  officers  
of  the council
4. Not compromising, or attempting to 

compromise, the impartiality of anyone 
who works for, or on behalf of, the 
council. 

Officers work for the council as a whole 
and must be politically neutral (unless they 
are political assistants). They should not be 
coerced or persuaded to act in a way that 
would undermine their neutrality. Although you 
can question officers in order to understand, 
for example, their reasons for proposing to 
act in a particular way, or the content of  a 
report that they have written, you must not try 
and force them to act differently, change their 
advice, or alter the content of  that report, if  
doing so would prejudice their professional 
integrity.

Confidentiality and  
access to information
5. Not disclosing information given to me 

in confidence or disclosing information 
acquired by me which I believe is of 
a confidential nature, unless I have 
received the consent of a person 
authorised to give it or I am required  
by law to do so.

6. Not preventing anyone getting 
information that they are entitled  
to by law.

Local authorities must work openly and 
transparently, and their proceedings and 

Page 182

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1

dstorr_11
Highlight

dstorr_12
Sticky Note
any? does this suggest some personal attack is acceptable behaviour?   difference between critical challenge and personal abuse?

dstorr_13
Highlight

dstorr_14
Sticky Note
tense seems to change within the document, e.g. you/me



5          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

printed materials are open to the public 
except in certain circumstances. You should 
work on this basis but there will be times 
when it is required by law that discussions, 
documents and other information relating 
to or held by the council are treated in a 
confidential manner. Examples include 
personal data relating to individuals or 
information relating to ongoing negotiations. 

Disrepute
7. Not bringing my role or council  

into disrepute. 

Behaviour that is considered dishonest 
and/or deceitful can bring your council into 
disrepute. As a member you have been 
entrusted to make decisions on behalf  of  your 
community and your actions and behaviour 
are subject to greater scrutiny than that of  
ordinary members of  the public. You should 
be aware that your actions might have an 
adverse impact on other councillors and/or 
your council. 

Your position 
8. Not using, or attempting to use,  

my position improperly to the 
advantage or disadvantage of myself  
or anyone else.

Your position as a member of  the council 
provides you with certain opportunities, 
responsibilities and privileges. However, 
you should not take advantage of  these 
opportunities to further private interests. 

Use of  council resources 
and facilities
9. Not misusing council resources. 

You may be provided with resources and 
facilities by the council to assist you in 
carrying out your duties as a councillor. 
Examples include office support, stationery 
and equipment such as phones, and 
computers and transport. These are given 

to you to help you carry out your role as a 
councillor more effectively and not to benefit 
you personally. 

Interests
10. Registering and declaring my interests.

You need to register your interests so that 
the public, council employees and fellow 
members know which of  your interests might 
give rise to a conflict of  interest. The register 
is a document that can be consulted when (or 
before) an issue arises, and so allows others 
to know what interests you have, and whether 
they might give rise to a possible conflict of  
interest. The register also protects you. You 
are responsible for deciding whether or not 
you should declare an interest in a meeting, 
but it can be helpful for you to know early on 
if  others think that a potential conflict might 
arise. 

It is also important that the public know 
about any interest that might have to be 
declared by you or other members, so that 
decision making is seen by the public as 
open and honest. This helps to ensure that 
public confidence in the integrity of  local 
governance is maintained. Discuss the 
registering and declaration of  interests with 
your Monitoring Officer/Town or Parish Clerk 
and more detail is set out in appendix B.

Gifts and hospitality 
11. Not accepting significant gifts or 

hospitality from persons seeking to 
acquire, develop or do business with 
the council or from persons who may 
apply to the council for any permission, 
licence or other significant advantage. 

12. Registering with the monitoring officer 
any gift or hospitality with an estimated 
value of at least £25 within 28 days of 
its receipt.

You should exercise caution in accepting 
any gifts or hospitality which are (or which 
you reasonably believe to be) offered to you 

Page 183

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1

dstorr_15
Highlight

dstorr_16
Sticky Note
discussion - should disrepute be wider than this?  Not just dishonesty and deceitfulness - other behaviours?

dstorr_17
Highlight

dstorr_18
Sticky Note
existing code makes provision to not using for political purposes and publicity code - would we seek to retain reference here?



6          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

because you are a member. However, you 
do not need to register gifts and hospitality 
which are not related to your role as a 
member, such as Christmas gifts from your 
friends and family, or gifts which you do not 
accept. However, you may wish to notify your 
monitoring officer of  any significant gifts you 
are offered but refuse which you think may 
have been offered to influence you.

Breaches of  the  
Code of  Conduct
Most councillors conduct themselves 
appropriately and in accordance with these 
standards. Members have both individual 
and collective responsibility to maintain these 
standards, support expected behaviour 
and challenge behaviour which falls below 
expectations.

Section 27 of  the Localism Act 2011 requires 
relevant authorities to promote and maintain 
high standards of  conduct by members and 
co-opted members of  the authority. Each local 
authority must publish a code of  conduct, 
and it must cover the registration of  pecuniary 
interests, the role of  an ‘independent 
person’ to advise on and investigate alleged 
breaches, and sanctions to be imposed on 
any councillors who breach the Code. 

The 2011 Act also requires local authorities 
to have mechanisms in place to investigate 
allegations that a member has not complied 
with the Code of  Conduct, and arrangements 
under which decisions on allegation may be 
made. 

Failure to comply with the requirements to 
register or declare disclosable pecuniary 
interests is a criminal offence. Taking part in 
a meeting or voting, when prevented from 
doing so by a conflict caused by disclosable 
pecuniary interests, is also a criminal offence. 

Political parties may have its own internal 
standards and resolution procedures in 
addition to the Member Code of  Conduct  
that members should be aware of.

Note – items in square brackets [x] refer to 
recommendations made by the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life and may be part of  a 
future Government consultation. This includes 
possible future sanctions and appeals 
processes.

Page 184

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1

dstorr_19
Highlight

dstorr_20
Sticky Note
so is this suggesting including in the initial template or not?



7          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

Example  
LGA guidance and  
recommendations
Internal resolution 
procedure
Councils should have in place an internal 
resolution procedure to address conduct that 
is in breach of  the Member Code of  Conduct. 
The internal resolution process should 
make it clear how allegations of  breaches 
of  the Code of  Conduct are to be handled, 
including the role of  an Independent Person, 
the appeals process and can also include 
a local standards committee. The internal 
resolution procedure should be proportionate, 
allow for members to appeal allegations and 
decisions, and allow for an escalating scale 
of  intervention. The procedure should be 
voted on by the council as a whole.

In the case of  a non-criminal breach of  the 
Code, the following escalating approach can 
be undertaken. 

If  the breach is confirmed and of  a serious 
nature, action can be automatically escalated. 

1. an informal discussion with the monitoring 
officer or appropriate senior officer

2. an informal opportunity to speak with  
the affected party/ies

3. a written apology

4. mediation

5. peer support

6. requirement to attend relevant training

7. where of  a serious nature, a bar on 
chairing advisory or special committees 
for up to two months

8. where of  a serious nature, a bar on 
attending committees for up to two 
months.

Where serious misconduct affects an 
employee, a member may be barred from 
contact with that individual; or if  it relates to a 
specific responsibility of  the council, barred 
from participating in decisions or information 
relating to that responsibility.

Page 185

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1

dstorr_21
Highlight

dstorr_22
Sticky Note
or audit committee depending on where arrangements lie



8          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

Endnotes
1. CSPL recommend that “Section 27(2) 

of  the Localism Act 2011 should 
be amended to state that a local 
authority’s code of  conduct applies to 
a member when they claim to act, or 
give the impression they are acting, 
in their capacity as a member or as a 
representative of  the local authority”. 

2. CSPL recommend that “councillors should 
be presumed to be acting in an official 
capacity in their public conduct, including 
statements on publicly accessible social 
media. Section 27(2) of  the Localism Act 
2011 should be amended to permit local 
authorities to presume so when deciding 
upon code of  conduct breaches.”

3. Subject to footnotes 1 and 2 above

4. See CSPL website for further details  
www.gov.uk/government/news/the-
principles-of-public-life-25-years

5.  ACAS’s definition of  bullying

Page 186

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



9          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

Code Appendix A 
The principles are :

Selflessness
Holders of  public office should act solely  
in terms of  the public interest.

Integrity
Holders of  public office must avoid placing 
themselves under any obligation to people or 
organisations that might try inappropriately to 
influence them in their work. They should not 
act or take decisions in order to gain financial 
or other material benefits for themselves, their 
family, or their friends. They must declare and 
resolve any interests and relationships.

Objectivity
Holders of public office must act and take 
decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the 
best evidence and without discrimination or bias.

Accountability
Holders of  public office are accountable to 
the public for their decisions and actions 
and must submit themselves to the scrutiny 
necessary to ensure this.

Openness
Holders of  public office should act and take  
decisions in an open and transparent manner. 
Information should not be withheld from 
the public unless there are clear and lawful 
reasons for so doing.

Honesty
Holders of  public office should be truthful.

Leadership
Holders of  public office should exhibit these 
principles in their own behaviour. They should 
actively promote and robustly support the 
principles and be willing to challenge poor 
behaviour wherever it occurs.

Code Appendix B
Registering interests
1. Within 28 days of  this Code of  Conduct 

being adopted by the council or your 
election or appointment to office (where 
that is later) you must register with the 
Monitoring Officer the interests which 
fall within the categories set out in Table 
1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) and 
Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests). 

2. You must ensure that your register of  
interests is kept up-to-date and within 
28 days of  becoming aware of  any 
new interest in Table 1 or 2, or of  any 
change to a registered interest, notify the 
Monitoring Officer. 

Declaring interests 
3. Where a matter arises at a meeting 

which directly relates to an interest in 
Table 1, you must declare the interest, 
not participate in any discussion or vote 
on the matter and must not remain in the 
room unless granted a dispensation. If  it 
is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to 
declare the nature of  the interest.

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which 
directly relates to an interest in Table 2, 
you must declare the interest. You may 
speak on the matter only if  members of  
the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting but otherwise must not take part 
in any discussion or vote on the matter 
and must not remain in the room unless 
you have been granted a dispensation. If  
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have 
to declare the nature of  the interest.

Appendices Page 187

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



10          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

5. Where a matter arises at a meeting which 
directly relates to your financial interest 
or well-being (and is not a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest) or a financial interest 
or well-being of  a relative or close 
associate, you must declare the interest. 
You may speak on the matter only if  
members of  the public are also allowed 
to speak at the meeting but otherwise 
must not take part in any discussion or 
vote on the matter and must not remain in 
the room unless you have been granted a 
dispensation. If  it is a ‘sensitive interest’, 
you do not have to declare the nature of  
the interest.

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which 
affects – 

a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of  a 
friend, relative, close associate; or 

c. a body covered by table 1 below 

you must disclose the interest.

7. Where the matter affects the financial 
interest or well-being to a greater extent 
than it affects the financial interests of  
the majority of  inhabitants of  the ward 
affected by the decision and a reasonable 
member of  the public knowing all the 
facts would believe that it would affect 
your view of  the wider public interest you 
must declare the interest. You may speak 
on the matter only if  members of  the 
public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting but otherwise must not take part 
in any discussion or vote on the matter 
and must not remain in the room unless 
you have been granted a dispensation. If  
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have 
to declare the nature of  the interest.

Page 188

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



11          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit  
or gain. 

[Any unpaid directorship.]

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of  any other financial benefit (other than from the 
council) made to the councillor during the previous 12-month period for 
expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, 
or towards his/her election expenses.

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the 
meaning of  the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 
1992.

Contracts Any contract made between the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner 
or the person with whom the councillor is living as if  they were spouses/civil 
partners (or a firm in which such person is a partner, or an incorporated 
body of  which such person is a director* or a body that such person has a 
beneficial interest in the securities of*) and the council —

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or  works are to be 
executed; and

(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of  the council.

‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land 
which does not give the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or 
the person with whom the councillor is living as if  they were spouses/
civil partners (alone or jointly with another) a right to occupy or to receive 
income.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of  the 
council for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s knowledge)—

(a) the landlord is the council; and

(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or his/her spouse or civil partner 
or the person with whom the councillor is living as if  they were spouses/
civil partners is a partner of  or a director* of  or has a beneficial interest in 
the securities* of. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of  a body where—

(a) that body (to the councillor’s knowledge) has a place of  business or 
land in the area of  the council; and

(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of  the securities* exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of  the total issued share capital of  that body; or

(ii) if  the share capital of  that body is of  more than one class, the total 
nominal value of  the shares of  any one class in which the councillor, or his/
her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the councillor is living 
as if  they were spouses/civil partners has a beneficial interest exceeds one 
hundredth of  the total issued share capital of  that class.

Page 189

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



12          Local Government Association Model Member Code of Conduct – consultation draft

*’director’ includes a member of  the committee of  management of  an industrial and provident 
society.

*’securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of  a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of  the Financial Services and Markets Act 
2000 and other securities of  any description, other than money deposited with a building 
society.

Table 2: Other Registerable Interests 

Any Body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to 
which you are appointed or nominated by the council;

Any Body— (a) exercising functions of  a public nature;

(b) directed to charitable purposes; or

(c) one of  whose principal purposes includes the influence of  public 
opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) 

of  which you are a member or in a position of  general control or management. 

Page 190

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



Page 191

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



Local Government Association 
18 Smith Square 
London SW1P 3HZ

Telephone 020 7664 3000 
Fax 020 7664 3030 
Email info@local.gov.uk 
www.local.gov.uk

For a copy in Braille, larger print or audio,  
please contact us on 020 7664 3000. 
We consider requests on an individual basis. 
 
REF 11.197

© Local Government Association, May 2020 

Page 192

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 1



THIS FORM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY - DO NOT COMPLETE 

PLEASE USE THE ONLINE SURVEY FORM TO SUBMIT YOUR RESPONSE 

 
LGA Consultation on Draft Model Member Code of Conduct 
 

Thank you for taking the time to complete this consultation. This Model Member Code of 

Conduct [Model Member Code of Conduct.pdf] aims to be concise, written in plain English and 

be understandable to members, officers and the public. The Model Member Code is designed to 

aid members in all tiers of local government model the behaviours and high standards that 

anyone would expect from a person holding public office.  Equally, it articulates behaviour which 

falls below the standards that would be expected of council members. It is designed to help set 

a framework for public and councillor interaction, emphasising the importance of civility and that 

councillors should be protected from bullying, intimidation and abuse.    

    

The LGA has reviewed the existing Model Member Code of Conduct and updated it here 

incorporating the recommendations from the Committee on Standard’s in Public Life’s 

recommendations on Local Government Ethical Standards and the representation from its 

membership. Part of the Committee’s recommendations were the introduction of sanctions for 

breaches of the code, alongside an appeals process. This aspect is out of scope of this 

consultation, as it requires legislative changes by Government, but the LGA has sought to 

reflect some of the possible changes by using square brackets where legal changes would be 

necessary. The LGA is continuing to take soundings from the sector on the issue of sanctions in 

anticipation of a Government response to the Committee’s recommendations.   

    

This consultation addresses key areas that the LGA would like a view on to help finalise the 

Code. It is aimed at councillors and officers from all tiers of local government. If you would like a 

wider discussion about the code, please do sign up to one of the forthcoming Webinars the LGA 

are holding as part of this consultation. Details will be posted on our LGA events website.    

  

Instructions and privacy notice 

 

You can navigate through the questions using the buttons at the bottom of each page.  Use the 

'previous' button at the bottom of the page if you wish to amend your response to an earlier 

question.  

 

All responses will be treated confidentially. Information will be aggregated, and no individual or 

authority will be identified in any publications without your consent. Identifiable information may 

be used internally within the LGA but will only be held and processed in accordance with 

our privacy policy. We are undertaking this consultation to aid the legitimate interests of the LGA 

in supporting and representing authorities. 

  

Please complete your response in one go - if you exit before submitting your response your 

answers may be lost. If you would like to see an overview of the questions before completing 

the consultation online, you can access a PDF here. 

  

  

Page 193

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 2

https://research.local.gov.uk/CP/File.php?F=F_3C1SVkKMNJlVi1T
https://www.local.gov.uk/events
http://www.local.gov.uk/privacy-policy-0


 

About you 

 

 

Your name ________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Are you... 

o A councillor  

o An officer  

o Answering on behalf of a whole council (Please provide council name below)  

________________________________________________ 

o Other (please specify below)  

________________________________________________ 

 

 

Please indicate your council type 

o Community/Neighbourhood/Parish/Town  

o District/Borough  

o County  

o Metropolitan/Unitary/London Borough  

o Other (please specify below)  

________________________________________________ 

 

 

Application of the Code   

    

Under the Localism Act 2012, the Code of Conduct applies to councillors only when they are 

acting in their capacity as a member. The LGA believes that because councillors are elected by 

the public and widely recognised by the public, it makes sense for them to continue to model 

these behaviours when they are making public comment, are identifying as a councillor and 

when it would be reasonable for the public to identify them as acting or speaking as a councillor. 

The Committee on Standards in Public Life supported this approach in their report into Local 

Government Ethical Standards. Whilst the LGA is waiting for Government’s response to these 

recommendations the option has been added in square brackets as it would need changes in 

legislation.  

 

Page 194

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 2



 

Q1. To what extent do you support the proposal that councillors demonstrate the 

behaviours set out in the Code when they are publicly acting as, identifying as, and/or 

giving the impression that they are acting as a councillor, including when representing 

their council on official business and when using social media? 

o To a great extent  

o To a moderate extent  

o To a small extent  

o Not at all  

o Don't know/prefer not to say  

 

 

Q1a. If you would like to elaborate on your answer please do so here: 

________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Q2. Is it sufficiently clear which parts of the Model Code are legal requirements, which 

are obligations, and which are guidance? 

o Yes  

o No  

o Don't know  

 

 

Q3. Do you prefer the use of the personal tense, as used in the Code, or would you prefer 

the passive tense? 

o Personal tense (“I will”)  

o Passive tense (“Councillors should”)  

o No preference  

 

 

Specific obligations   

    

The Code lists 12 specific obligations – these set out a minimum standard councillors are asked 

to adhere to.   

Page 195

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 2



 

Each obligation or group of obligations is put into a wider context to explain why that particular 

obligation is important. 

 

Q4. To what extent to you support the 12 specific obligations? 

 

 
To a great 

extent 
To a 

moderate 
extent 

To a small 
extent 

Not at all Don't know 
/ Prefer not 

to say 

1. Treating other councillors and 
members of the public with 
civility.  

     

2. Treating council employees, 
employees and representatives 
of partner organisations and 
those volunteering for the 
councils with civility and 
respecting the role that they 
play.  

     

3. Not bullying or harassing any 
person.  

     

4. Not compromising, or 
attempting to compromise, the 
impartiality of anyone who 
works for, or on behalf of, the 
council.  

     

5. Not disclosing information 
given to me in confidence or 
disclosing information acquired 
by me which I believe is of a 
confidential nature, unless I 
have received the consent of a 
person authorised to give it or I 
am required by law to do so.  

     

6. Not preventing anyone 
getting information that they are 
entitled to by law.  

     

7. Not bringing my role or 
council into disrepute.  

     

8. Not using, or attempting to 
use, my position improperly to 
the advantage or disadvantage 
of myself or anyone else.  

     

Page 196

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 2



 

9. Not misusing council 
resources.  

     

10. Registering and declaring 
my interests.  

     

11. Not accepting significant 
gifts or hospitality from persons 
seeking to acquire, develop or 
do business with the council or 
from persons who may apply to 
the council for any permission, 
licence or other significant 
advantage.  

     

12. Registering with the 
monitoring officer any gift or 
hospitality with an estimated 
value of at least £25 within 28 
days of its receipt.  

     

 

 

 

Q5. If you would like to propose additional or alternative obligations, or would like to 

provide more comment on a specific obligation, please do so here: 

________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Q6. Would you prefer to see the obligations as a long list followed by the guidance, or as 

it is set out in the current draft, with the guidance after each obligation? 

o As a list  

o Each specific obligation followed by its relevant guidance  

o No preference  

 

Page 197

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 2



 

Q7. To what extent to you think the concept of ‘acting with civility’ is sufficiently clear?  

o To a great extent  

o To a moderate extent  

o To a small extent  

o Not at all  

o Don't know/prefer not to say  

 

 

Q7a. If you would like to suggest an alternative phrase that captures the same meaning, 

or would like to provide a comment on this concept, please do so here:   

________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Q8. To what extent do you think the concept of ‘bringing the council into disrepute’ is 

sufficiently clear? 

o To a great extent  

o To a moderate extent  

o To a small extent  

o Not at all  

o Don't know/prefer not to say  

 

 

Q8a. If you would like to suggest an alternative phrase that captures the same meaning, 

or would like to provide a comment on this concept, please do so here:  

________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

Page 198

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 2



 

Q9. To what extent do you support the definition of bullying and harassment used in the 

code in a local government context? 

o To a great extent  

o To a moderate extent  

o To a small extent  

o Not at all  

o Don't know/prefer not to say  

 

Q9a. If there are other definitions you would like to recommend, please provide them 

here. 

________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Q10. Is there sufficient reference to the use of social media? 

o Yes  

o No  

o Don't know/prefer not to say  

 

 

Q10a. Should social media be covered in a separate code or integrated into the overall 

code of conduct? 

o Separate code  

o Integrated into the code  

o Don't know/prefer not to say  

 

 

Q10b. If you would like to make any comments or suggestions in relation to how the use 

of social media is covered in the code please do so here: 

________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 

Page 199

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 2



 

Registration and declarations of interests   

    

The law at present requires, as a minimum, registration and declaration of ‘Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interests’ - that is matters which directly relate to the councillor and their partner if 

applicable.   

    

The LGA is proposing that all councillors are required to declare interests where matters also 

relate to or affect other family members or associates. The LGA has broadened the requirement 

to declare interests beyond this current statutory minimum in line with a recommendation from 

the Committee on Standards in Public Life.  These specific provisions are set out in Appendix 

B of the Code. 

 

 

Q11. To what extent to you support the code going beyond the current requirement to 

declare interests of the councillor and their partner? 

o To a great extent  

o To a moderate extent  

o To a small extent  

o Not at all  

o Don't know/prefer not to say  

 

 

Q11a. If you would like to elaborate on your answer please do so here: 

________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Q12. Should the requirement to declare interests be in the main body of the code or in 

the appendix where the draft model code currently references it? 

o In the main body of the code  

o In the appendix  

o Other (please specify below)  

o Don't know/prefer not to say  

 

Page 200

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 2



 

Q12a. If you would like to make any comments or suggestions in relation to how the 

requirement to declare interests is covered in the code please do so here: 

________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

It is also suggested that more outside interests should be registered than is the current statutory 

minimum. These are set out in Table 2 of the Appendix and are designed to demonstrate to 

the community transparency about other bodies with which the councillor is engaged. 

 

Q13. To what extent do you support the inclusion of these additional categories for 

registration?  

 

 
To a 
great 
extent 

To a 
moderate 

extent 

To a 
small 
extent 

Not at 
all 

Don't know 
/ Prefer not 

to say 

Any organisation, association, society 
or party of which you are a member or 
in a position of general control or 
management and to which you are 
appointed or nominated by the council  

     

Any organisation, association, society 
or party that exercises functions of a 
public nature of which you are a 
member or in a position of general 
control or management  

     

Any organisation, association, society 
or party directed to charitable purposes  

     

Any organisation, association, society 
or party of whose principal purposes 
includes the influence of public opinion 
or policy (including any political party or 
trade union)  

     

 

 

Q13a. If you would like to propose additional or alternative categories for registration, please 

provide them here: 

________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 

Page 201

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 2



 

Q14. To what extent to you support the proposed requirement that councillors do not 

accept significant gifts as set out in Obligation 11? 

o To a great extent  

o To a moderate extent  

o To a small extent  

o Not at all  

o Don't know/prefer not to say  

 

 

Q14a. If you would like to elaborate on your answer please do so here: 

________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Q15. The draft code proposes £25 as the threshold for registering gifts and hospitality. Is 

this an appropriate threshold? 

o Yes  

o Yes, but the amount should be reviewed annually with the code’s review  

o No, it should be lower (please specify amount) ____________________ 

o No, it should be higher (please specify amount) ___________________ 

o Don't know/prefer not to say  

 

 

Q16. The LGA will be producing accompanying guidance to the code. Which of the 

following types of guidance would you find most useful? Please rank 1-5, with 1 being 

the most useful. 

______ Regularly updated examples of case law 

______ Explanatory guidance on the code 

______ Case studies and examples of good practice 

______ Supplementary guidance that focuses on specific areas, e.g., social media 

______ Improvement support materials, such as training and e-learning packages 

 

 

Page 202

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 2



 

Q16a. If you would like to suggest any other accompanying guidance please do so here: 

________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Q17. If you would like to make any further comments about the code please so here: 

________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Once you press the 'Submit' button below, you will have completed your response.   

    

Many thanks for taking the time to respond to this consultation. You are in control of any 

personal data that you have provided to us in your response. You can contact us at all times to 

have your information changed or deleted. You can find our full privacy policy here: click here to 

see our privacy policy 

Page 203

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 2

http://www.local.gov.uk/privacy-policy-0
http://www.local.gov.uk/privacy-policy-0


This page is intentionally left blank



Members’ Code of Conduct
for Members and Co-opted 
Members of the Authority

 

Page 205

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 3



1. Barrow-in Furness Borough Council (“The Authority”) has adopted the following 
code dealing with the conduct that is expected of members and co-opted 
members of the Authority (“Members”) when they are acting in that capacity as 
required by section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”).

2. The Authority has a statutory duty under the Act to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct by Members and the Code sets out the standards that the 
Authority expects Members to observe.

3. The Code is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all the obligations that are 
placed on Members.  It is the responsibility of individual Members to comply with 
the provisions of the Code as well as such other legal obligations as may apply 
to them from time to time. Failure to do so may result in a sanction being applied 
by the Authority.  Failure to take appropriate action in respect of a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest may result in a criminal conviction and a fine of up to £5,000 
and/or disqualification from office for a period of up to 5 years.  

4. The code is intended to be consistent with the seven principles as attached to 
this code and applies whenever a person is acting in his/her capacity as a 
Member of the Authority or co-opted member in the conduct of the Authority’s 
business or acting as a representative of the Authority.

5. When acting in your capacity as a Member  

(1) You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly 
confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain 
financial or other material benefits for yourself, your family, a friend, a 
close associate, an employer or a business carried on by you.

(2) You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to 
outside individuals or organisations that may influence you in the 
performance of your official duties. 

(3) You must not disclose any information given to you as a Member in 
breach of any confidence.

(4) You must not bring your office or your Authority into disrepute.

(5) You must treat others with respect and promote equality by not 
discriminating unlawfully against any person, and by treating people with 
respect, regardless of their sex, race, age, religion, gender, sexual 
orientation or disability.  You should respect the impartiality and integrity 
of the authority’s statutory officers and its other employees. 

(6) When carrying out your public duties you must make all choices, such as 
making public appointments, awarding contracts or recommending 
individuals for rewards or benefits on merit.

Page 206

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 3



(7) You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must co-
operate fully with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office.

(8) You must be as open as possible about your decisions and actions and 
the decisions and actions of your authority and should be prepared to 
give reasons for those decisions and actions.

(9) You must declare any private interests, both disclosable pecuniary 
interests and any other registrable interests, that relate to your public 
duties and must take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that 
protects the public interest, including registering and declaring interests 
in a manner which conforms with the procedures set out below.

(10) You must ensure, when using or authorising the use by others of the 
resources of your authority, that such resources are not used improperly 
for political purposes (including party political purposes) and you must 
have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made 
under the Local Government Act 1986.

(11) You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving 
in your office.

Registering and declaring disclosable pecuniary and other registrable interests

(1) You must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted member, 
notify your authority’s Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest as 
defined by regulations made by the Secretary of State, where the pecuniary 
interest is yours, your spouse’s or civil partner’s, or is the pecuniary interest of 
somebody with whom you are living with as a husband or wife, or as if you were 
civil partners. These interests and those at (2) below are shown attached to this 
code.

(2) In addition, you must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted 
member, notify your authority’s Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary 
or non-pecuniary interest which your authority has decided should be included 
in the register. 

(3) If an interest has not been entered onto the authority’s register, then the member 
must disclose the interest to any meeting of the authority at which they are 
present, where they have a disclosable interest in any matter being considered 
and where the matter is not a ‘sensitive interest' as described by the Localism 
Act 2011.

(4) Following any disclosure of an interest not on the authority’s register or the 
subject of pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the 
interest within 28 days beginning with the date of disclosure.

Page 207

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 3



(5) Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any discussion 
of, vote on, or discharge any function related to any matter in which you have a 
pecuniary interest as defined by regulations made by the Secretary of State.  
Additionally, you must observe the restrictions your authority places on your 
involvement in matters where you have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest as 
defined by your authority.

Page 208

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 3



SEVEN GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF CONDUCT

Selflessness

1. Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. They 
should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for 
themselves, their family, or their friends.  

Integrity

2. Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or other 
obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to influence 
them in the performance of their official duties.

Objectivity

3. In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, awarding 
contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards or benefits, holders of public 
office should make choices on merit.

Accountability

4. Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to the 
public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their 
office. 

Openness

5. Holders of public office should be as open as possible about the decisions and 
actions that they take.  They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict 
information only when the wider public interest clearly demands

Honesty

6. Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to 
their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that 
protects the public interest

Leadership

7. Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by 
leadership and by example, and should act in a way that secures or preserves 
public confidence.

Page 209

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 3



PECUNIARY AND OTHER REGISTRABLE INTERESTS

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (as defined by regulations)

1. Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2. Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
from the relevant authority) made or provided within the relevant period in 
respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or 
towards the election expenses of M. (This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3. Details of any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body 
in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority 
– 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(a) which has not been fully discharged. 

4. Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant 
authority.  

5. Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

6. Details of any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge) – 

(a) The landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) The tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial 

interest.

7. Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where

(a) That body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of the relevant authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that class. 

Page 210

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 3



OTHER REGISTRABLE INTERESTS

These interests are what the Council has determined should be entered into the 
authority’s register of interests

8. Details of any bodies of which I am a member, or in a position of general control 
or management, and to which I am appointed or nominated to by the District 
Council.   

9. Details of any bodies of which I am a member, or in a position of general control 
or management, and which:-

(a) Exercises function of a public nature;

(b) Is directed towards charitable purposes; or

(c) Is a body which includes as one of its principal purposes influencing 
public opinion or policy (this includes political parties or trade unions). 

10. Details of any persons from whom I have received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £50. (You must register any gifts or hospitality worth 
£50 or over that you receive personally in connection with your official duties). 

Page 211

Agenda Item 21
Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020

Going Concern

 
Report from:  Director of Resources

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 The Council is required to assess and determine that it is appropriate to prepare 

the financial statements on a going concern basis.

1.2 The review should take account of all available information about the future, 
which is at least, but not limited to the next twelve months from the end of the 
reporting period.

1.3 The accounts of the Council for the period 1 April, 2019, to 31 March, 2020, will 
be prepared on a going concern basis.

1.4 The going concern basis assumes that the Council will be able to realise its 
assets and liabilities in the normal course of business and that it will continue in 
business for the foreseeable future.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee agree with 

the going concern assessment.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 On the 25 February, 2020, Management Team considered the significant factors 

affecting the going concern assessment and determined that the concept does 
apply to Barrow Borough Council.

3.2 On the 13 July, 2020, Management Team considered the implications of COVID-
19 and updated the assessment where significant impacts needed to be 
recognised.

3.3 Management Team agreed that the going concern concept still applies.

Page 213

Agenda Item 22



3.4 The accounts of the Council for the period 1 April, 2019, to 31 March, 2020, will 
be prepared on a going concern basis; this basis assumes that the Council will 
be able to realise its assets and liabilities in the normal course of business and 
that it will continue in business for the foreseeable future.

3.5 Members are asked to consider the review (Appendix 1) that has been 
undertaken and agree that the going concern concept applies to the Council.

3.6 The factors assessed are:

 Forecasts and budgets
 Financial statements
 Working capital facility
 Contingency liabilities
 Risk management
 Medium and long term plans
 New legislations
 Cash flow timing
 Governance
 Political environment

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 Management Team are consulted in order to inform the assessment by the 

Director of Resources.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options; the going concern status has been determined. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 

Page 214

Agenda Item 22



7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 
information.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
The Council is no longer a 
going concern.

The accounts cannot be 
prepared on a going 
concern basis.

There are underlying 
issues if the going 
concern concept cannot 
be applied to the 
Council.

Going concern 
assessment established 
and verified with 
Management Team and 
the Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Contact Officers 
S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Going Concern Assessment

Page 215

Agenda Item 22



This page is intentionally left blank



Going Concern Assessment

COVID-19
Considerations Assessment Completed Date

Council approved the budgets for 2020-2021.
Budgets to be revised during 2020-2021.

Yes
No

February 2020
September 2020

Council approved Medium Term Financial Plan.
Medium Term Financial Plan to be revised.

Yes
No

February 2020
September 2020

Council approved a three year capital programme.
Active bids for Town Deal and Future High Streets Fund.

Yes
In progress

February 2020
July 2020

Forecasts and 
budgets

Budget Strategy to balance the budget by 2019-2020 approved by 
Council.
Some savings delayed – need to review.

Yes

In progress

September 2016

September 2020
External Audit provided an unqualified opinion on the accounts for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019. Yes September 2019

Changes in the Accounting Code of Practice are applied to accounting 
transactions and in the presentation of the financial statements. Yes Ongoing reviewFinancial 

statements
Awareness of emerging accounting policies and their application to local 
authorities.

Ongoing 
review Ongoing

Working capital 
facility

The Council’s income stream is assessed as sufficient to provide 
adequate working capital.  The Council’s banking arrangement is 
flexible and can provide temporary cover if required.

Ongoing 
review Ongoing

Contingent 
liabilities

The Council does not have any material contingent liabilities either at 
the present time or forecast which are not included in the accounts. Yes Ongoing review

Risk management The Council has a risk management process which focuses on the 
business critical areas of operations and management. Yes Ongoing review

P
age 217

A
genda Item

 22
A

ppendix 1



Considerations Assessment Completed Date

The annual budget process provides the following years’ budget as well 
as a three year forecast.

Under review as noted above.
Ongoing

Budgets; Treasury 
Management and 
Capital Strategy; 

Medium Term 
Financial Plan 

approved in February 
2020Medium and long 

term plans

Council Plan and associated documents refreshed.

Growing Forward report reflects COVID-19 impacts on priorities.
Yes

Council Plan agreed 
January 2020

Associated 
documents being 

refreshed
The HRA is now operating under the new self-financing arrangements. Yes April 2012
The Council has adopted a Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 
2020-2021. Yes October 2019

The Council is aware of the Welfare Reforms including Universal Credit. Yes
Ongoing impacts 

assessed as they are 
rolled out

The Council has signed up to the MHCLG Right to Buy receipt 
retainment scheme. Yes Revised agreement 

signed June 2013
New legislations

The Coronavirus Act 2020 is the government’s main legislative change in response to the pandemic.  
Most of its provisions came into effect on 25 March 2020 but detailed further legislation in the form of 
statutory instruments and government guidance have been issued since that date and continue to be 
published.  The Act has temporarily modified some local authority duties and powers. Other changes 
to existing legislation and statutory guidance continue to be monitored by the legal service.

Cash flow timing

A full assessment of projected cash inflows and outflows is carried out 
on daily basis, including the timing of receipts and settlement of all 
known liabilities.  There are no known factors which would result in a 
cash shortage during 2019-2020 or 2020-2021.  Business rate retention 
has been built in to the Council’s cashflow projections.

Ongoing 
review Ongoing

P
age 218

A
genda Item

 22
A

ppendix 1



Considerations Assessment Completed Date
The Council has undergone a review of governance arrangements and 
has created an improvement plan to identify key actions and decisions. In progress In progress

The Council has undergone a Peer Review organised by the Local 
Government Association. In progress In progress

The management structure of the Council has been reviewed with the 
Chief Executive title reintroduced and a new Director position replacing 
an Assistant Director position.

Yes December 2019Governance

New posts have been added to the establishment to address 
governance and other aspects of corporate need; legal, contracting, 
communications and Council Plan engagement.

Yes April 2020

Political 
environment

The Council has moved to a four yearly election cycle.  The May 2019 
elections resulted in a decisive majority for one political party.  This 
environment provides stability in the policy making areas relating to 
services and the overall direction of the Council.

Yes Whole Council 
election May 2023

P
age 219

A
genda Item

 22
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020

Accounting Policies

 
Report from:  Director of Resources

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 The Council’s Accounting Policies have been reviewed to ensure that they 

remain relevant, current and reflect best practice.

1.2 The changes made to the Accounting Policies relate to dating, there is a section 
to be deleted as no longer relevant, and a section that is clarified regarding the 
Housing Revenue Account.

1.3 Any further revisions coming from the closedown process will be reported with 
the Statement of Accounts at the Audit and Governance Committee in November 
2020.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee agree with 

the proposed accounting policies.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The Director of Resources is responsible for the selection of suitable accounting 

policies and ensuring that they are applied consistently.

3.2 Any significant changes in accounting policies are reported in the Statement of 
Accounts.

3.3 Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and 
practices applied when preparing and presenting financial statements.

3.4 The highlighted changes made to the Accounting Policies at Appendix 1 relate 
to dating; part of Section h (Termination Benefits) is marked as red text to be 
deleted as no longer relevant; and part of Section o (Overheads and Support 

Page 221

Agenda Item 23



Services) is marked as red to delete and green to add, this clarifies the treatment 
of support services and the Housing Revenue Account.

3.5 There are changes introduced by the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) each year and these are assessed 
against the Council’s existing policies.

3.6 The key accounting changes for local authorities in England from the 2019-2020 
edition of the Code have been assessed:

a. Statutory adjustment explanations – covered by existing policies
b. Improvements to the financial statements - covered by existing policies
c. Amendments to Landfill Allowances – no impact
d. Accounting treatment for the apprenticeship levy – covered by existing policies
e. Financial instrument prepayment amendments - no impact
f. Lender option borrower option clarifications - no impact
g. Group account amendments – no impact

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 There is some consultation with the Finance Department.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 Alternative treatments are considered when accounting policies are selected.

5.2 The Director of Resources has no specific alternative policies to propose. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the Council must be 

financially resilient and have good financial management.  The selection and 
consistent application of accounting policies is a key element of financial 
management.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 

information.

Risk

Page 222

Agenda Item 23



Risk Consequence Controls required 
The accounting polices are 
not applied consistently.

The accounts are 
misstated.

Segregation and 
checking of manual 
entries to the ledgers.

Quality control when 
compiling the Statement 
of Accounts.

Contact Officers 
S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Accounting Policies

Page 223

Agenda Item 23



This page is intentionally left blank



ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the authority’s transactions for the 2019/20 financial year and 
its position at the year-end of 31 March 2020.  The authority is required to prepare an annual 
Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  The Regulations require the 
Accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices.  These practices primarily 
comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 and the 
Service Reporting Code of Practice 2019/20, supported by International Financial Reporting 
Standards and Financial Reporting Standards.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

The accounting statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the 
authority will continue in operation for the foreseeable future.

b. Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received. In particular:

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the authority transfers the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the authority.

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the authority can measure reliably 
the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the authority.

 Revenue from leasehold properties is recognised on an averaged basis where leases contain 
rent free periods and the first year requires an adjustment of over £10k.

 Revenue from non-exchange transactions is recognised when it is probable that the benefit 
will flow and the amount can be measured reliably, further details are included in accounting 
policy d. Council Tax and Business Rate Transactions.

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption they are carried as inventories 
on the Balance Sheet.

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made.

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively 
as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected.  For housing benefit overpayments a full 
provision is made for the possible non-collection of this debt.  However, it is the authority’s 
policy to pursue all debtors where possible, however as the amounts and timing of recovery 
are not certain, they are not recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty 
on notice of not more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are investments that mature in three months 
or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with 
insignificant risk of change in value.

Page 225

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



d. Council Tax and Business Rate Transactions

As the billing authority, Barrow Borough Council accounts for its own share of the council tax and 
business rates transactions in the Balance Sheet and its share of the collection fund balance is held in 
the Collection Fund Adjustment Account.  The precepting authorities’ share of the council tax or 
business rate transactions as well as their share of the collection fund balance is accounted for as a 
debtor or creditor with those bodies.  The County Council and Government share of the business rate 
transactions as well as their share of the council tax is accounted for as a debtor or creditor with those 
bodies.  The Police & Crime Commissioner for Cumbria share of the council tax is also accounted for 
as a debtor or creditor.

e. Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, 
either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the 
accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the authority’s financial 
performance.

f. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 
material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, that is, in the 
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the 
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events 
and conditions on the authority’s financial position or financial performance.  Where a change is 
made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and 
comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

g. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services and support services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding 
fixed assets during the year:

 depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service
 revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.

The authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation or impairment 
losses.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in 
its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the 
authority in accordance with statutory guidance.  Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses are 
therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting 
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the 
difference between the two.

h. Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable During Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.  They 
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and 
non-monetary benefits (for example, cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense 
for services in the year in which employees render service to the authority.  An accrual is made for the 
cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, such as time off in lieu) earned by employees but 
not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year.  The 

Page 226

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the 
period in which the employee takes the benefit.  The accrual is charged to (Surplus) or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that 
holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the authority to terminate an 
officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary 
redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement when the authority is demonstrably committed to the termination 
of the employment of an officer or group of officers or making an offer to encourage voluntary 
redundancy.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
General Fund or Housing Revenue Account balance to be charged with the amount payable by the 
authority to the pension fund in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant 
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and 
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement 
termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any such 
amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.  The authority’s redundancy policy was amended by 
Council on the 16 March 2011 to introduce an enhanced redundancy payment, this ended on 30 June 
2015.  A subsequent variation was agreed by the Council with the 2016-2020 Budget Strategy, for the 
Borough Kennels and Playgrounds Team to access the enhanced scheme from the 7 September 
2016 until the 30 June 2017.

Post-Employment Benefits

Employees of the authority are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, run by Cumbria 
County Council.

The scheme provided defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as 
employees worked for the authority.

The Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

 The liabilities of the Cumbria pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the 
Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – that is an assessment 
of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by 
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates and other 
factors, and projections of projected earnings for current employees.

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using the applicable discount rate 
based on the indicative rate of return on AA rated corporate bonds.

 The assets of the Cumbria pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the 
Balance Sheet at their fair value:

o quoted securities – current bid price
o unquoted securities – professional estimate
o unitised securities – current bid price
o property – market value.

 The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
o Service cost comprising:

 current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service 
earned this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement to the services for which the employees worked

 past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme 
amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in 
earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 

Page 227

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non 
Distributed Costs

 net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), that is, net interest 
expense for the authority – the change during the period in the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time charged to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is calculated by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at 
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the 
beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit 
payments.

o Re-measurements comprising: 
 the return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the 

net defined benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as 
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

 actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise 
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last 
actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions 
– charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure

o contributions paid to the Cumbria pension fund – cash paid as employer’s 
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an 
expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund and Housing Revenue 
Account Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or 
directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards.  In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from 
the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable 
but unpaid at the year-end.  The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby 
measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement 
benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of 
staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same 
policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

i. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised 
for issue.  Two types of events can be identified those that provide evidence of conditions that existed 
at the end of the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and, 
those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of 
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material 
effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of 
Accounts.

Page 228

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



j. Financial Instruments

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried 
at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the 
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of 
the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the authority has, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according 
to the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement.  However, where repurchase has taken 
place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of 
existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised 
cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over future years. 
The authority has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan 
against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid, where it is 
material.  The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to 
or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Housing Revenue Account, regulations 
state that the impact on the Housing Revenue Account Balance must be spread over the term that 
was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it 
was repaid, restricted to a term of 10 years.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects the 
business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics.  There are three 
main classes of financial assets measured at:

 amortised cost
 fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and
 fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The authority’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows.  Financial 
assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are 
not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not take the form of a basic 
debt instrument).

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at 
fair value.  They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual credits to the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by 

Page 229

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  For most of the financial assets held by the authority, 
this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable 
(plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the 
loan agreement.

However, the authority has made interest free loans using Cluster of Empty Homes funding to two 
private landlords at less than market rate (soft loan).  When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (debited to the appropriate service) for the 
present value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower 
amortised cost than the outstanding principal.  Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at a higher 
effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the private landlord, with the difference serving 
to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet.  Statutory provisions require that the 
impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial year – the 
reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement to the net gain required against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or 
from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  Upon 
repayment, the Cluster of Empty Homes funding is recognised as a capital receipt.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.

The authority recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost, 
either on a 12-month or lifetime basis.  Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables 
(debtors) held by the authority.  Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the 
future cash flows might not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations.  Where 
credit risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are 
assessed on a lifetime basis.  Where credit risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses 
are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.

In accordance with the Treasury Strategy, the authority does not trade in stocks, shares or gilts.

k. Foreign Currency Translation

Where the authority has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the transaction 
is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was effective.  
Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot 
exchange rate at 31 March.  Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

l. Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the authority when there is reasonable 
assurance that:

 the authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
 the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution has been satisfied.  
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential 
embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the 
recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the 
transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried 
in the Balance Sheet as creditors.  When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited 
to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-

Page 230

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  Where the grant 
has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied 
Account.  Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.  Amounts in the 
Capital Grants Unapplied Account are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have 
been applied to fund capital expenditure.

m. Inventories and Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  The 
authority’s inventories are stocks purchased for internal issue and for sale as merchandise.

Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the (Surplus) or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the 
financial year.

n. Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee.  
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return 
for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on 
the use of specific assets.

The Authority as Lessee

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of 
the minimum lease payments, if lower).  The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the 
obligation to pay the lessor.  Initial direct costs of the authority are added to the carrying amount of the 
asset.  Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.  Contingent 
rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to 
write down the lease liability, and

 a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies 
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is 
shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the 
authority at the end of the lease period).

The authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment 
losses arising on leased assets.  Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds 
towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.  Depreciation and 
revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General 
Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Page 231

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased property, plant or 
equipment.  Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not 
match the pattern of payments (for example, there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the 
lease).

Vehicles and equipment that are contained within a contractual arrangement are deemed to be an 
operating lease where the Council does not significantly control the physical assets and where the 
term of the contract is less than the expected useful life of the assets.

The Authority as Lessor

Operating Leases

Where the authority grants an operating lease over a property, the asset is retained in the Balance 
Sheet.  Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.  Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the 
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (for example, there is a premium paid at 
the commencement of the lease).

All operating leases, including peppercorn leases, are recognised by the authority for disclosure 
purposes, building leases not less than 10 years and land leases not less than 50 years are assessed 
for evidence of a finance lease.  Vehicle and equipment operating leases are deemed to be 
immaterial.

o. Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance 
with the Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.  In accordance 
with the Code of Practice they are excluded from the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and associated notes, with the exception of a charge to the Housing Revenue 
Account.

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or 
service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 
2019/20.  

The total absorption costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support services are 
shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:

 Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the authority’s status as a multifunctional, 
democratic organisation.

 Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring 
early.

These two cost categories are defined in the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2019/20 and 
accounted for as separate headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: these 
now form part of the Corporate and Democratic Services heading which remains part of Net 
Expenditure on Continuing Services.

p. Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during 
more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Council holds a number of assets acquired to enhance the built environment, support the local 
economy and provide the type of property needed for business development in the Borough. 

Page 232

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



Collectively, these are regeneration assets and they continue to be held by the authority for the same 
purpose as at acquisition. Regeneration assets are recognised as Other Land and Buildings within the 
Balance Sheet. The rental stream from these assets is credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. Disposal proceeds from appropriate regeneration assets are subject to 
Government funding claw back consideration.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the authority and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver 
future economic benefits or service potential (repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense 
when it is incurred.  Acquisitions under £10,000 are de minimus and are not considered to create an 
asset.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

 the purchase price
 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management 
 the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 

which it is located.

The authority does not capitalise borrowing costs.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its current value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (which will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of 
the authority).  In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the 
acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the authority.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

 infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction – depreciated historical cost
 dwellings – current value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social housing 

(EUV-SH)
 surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and 

best use
 all other assets – current value – in existing use (EUV) or where the asset is of a specialist 

nature and has no active market, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate 
of fair value

Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low value (or both), depreciated historical 
cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that 
their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as a 
minimum every five years: in addition the valuations of major assets may be considered against 
property valuation indices to give additional assurance that the carrying value of any major assets, not 
revalued in year, are not materially different to their current value.  Increases in valuations are 
matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.  Exceptionally, gains 
might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from 
the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:

Page 233

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains)

 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of 
its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital 
Adjustment Account.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a value over £150,000 has major components 
whose cost is not less than 20% of the total cost of the asset, the components are treated as separate 
assets.  For existing assets the components are recognised on replacement until a revaluation is 
performed.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired.  Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the 
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains)

 where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, 
adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant, Equipment and Vehicle assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (such as freehold land and certain Community Assets) and 
assets that are not yet available for use (assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

 dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as 
estimated by the valuer

 plant, equipment and vehicles – straight-line allocation over the useful life of each class of 
assets in the Balance Sheet, as advised by a suitably qualified officer

 infrastructure – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the asset.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a value over £150,000 has major components 
whose cost is not less than 20% of the total cost of the asset, the components are depreciated 
separately.  For existing assets the components are recognised on replacement until a revaluation is 
performed.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account.

Page 234

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through 
a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale.  
The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount 
and fair value less the costs of sale.  Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value the loss is 
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised 
losses in the (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services.  Depreciation is not charged on Assets 
Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back 
to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as 
held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised 
had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision 
not to sell.

Council dwellings are available for sale to sitting tenants under the provisions of the Right to Buy 
legislation.  The authority does not classify these as held for sale unless there is a formal exchange 
date available at the year end.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of, decommissioned or derecognised, the carrying amount of the asset in 
the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to 
the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as 
part of the gain or loss on disposal.  Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal 
(that is netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation 
gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.  A 
proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% for land and other assets, 
net of statutory deductions and allowances) is payable to the Government.  The balance of receipts is 
required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital 
investment or set aside to reduce the authority’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing 
requirement).  Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully 
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are appropriated to the 
Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

q. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the authority a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement in the year that the authority becomes aware of the obligation, and are 
measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the 
obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.  
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than 

Page 235

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than 
anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from 
another party, this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received if the authority settles the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the authority.  Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances 
where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.  Contingent liabilities are 
not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the authority.  Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet 
but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic 
benefits or service potential.

r. Fair value measurement

The authority measures some of its non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and some of its 
financial instruments, at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to 
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market or, in the absence of the 
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The authority measures the fair value of an asset or liability on the same basis that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability; assuming those market participants were 
acting in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the authority takes into account a market 
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The authority uses appropriate valuation techniques for each circumstance, maximising the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.  This takes into account 
the three levels of categories for inputs to valuations for fair value assets at:

 Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
authority can access at the measurement date

 Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

 Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

s. Reserves

The authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it 
is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the (Surplus) or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  The reserve is then 
appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that 
there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.

Page 236

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, pensions and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the authority 
– these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.

t. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does 
not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant 
service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.  Where the authority 
has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a 
transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital 
Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of 
council tax.

u. VAT

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income.

v. Rounding

The Council accepts that minor rounding differences of between £1k and £2k may occur within its 
Statement of Accounts, these amounts are not material and the Council does not intend to alter any 
totals where this occurs.

Page 237

Agenda Item 23
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020
Assurance

 
Report from:  Director of Resources

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 The Chairman of the Audit and Governance Committee has provided the 

appointed auditor with details of how the Audit and Governance Committee gains 
assurance from management.

1.2 This report provides the response for Members to endorse.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee endorse the 

Chairman’s assurance response to the appointed auditors.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The appointed auditor requested that the Chairman of the Audit and Governance 

Committee explain how assurance from management is obtained.

3.2 The appointed auditors request is attached as Appendix 1.

3.3 The Chairman’s response is detailed at Appendix 2.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 The only consultation is with the Audit and Governance Committee.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options proposed, the Chairman has responded, 

however Members may propose alternative responses for the Chairman to 
consider.

Page 239

Agenda Item 24



6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the organisation must be 

sound in terms of internal control and governance and the Audit and Governance 
Committee is charged with that role.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications arising from this 

report. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report relates to 

internal governance.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
The Audit and Governance 
Committee receive inadequate 
assurance from management.

Governance and internal 
controls at risk.

Audit and Governance 
Committee work plan.

Internal Audit Annual 
Plan.

Senior Officers 
attendance at the Audit 
and Governance 
Committee.

Contact Officers 
S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Grant Thornton

Assurance Request
2 Chairman of the Audit and Governance Committee

Assurance Response

Page 240

Agenda Item 24



 

Commercial in confidence 

 

 

 

Councillor Mrs A Burns 
Chair of the Audit Committee 
Barrow Borough Council 
Town Hall 
Duke Street 
Barrow-in-Furness 
LA14 2LD 
 
13 March 2020 

 

 

Dear Anne 
 
Barrow Borough Council - Financial Statements audit for the year end 31 March 2020 
 
Understanding how the Audit Committee gains assurance from management 
 
To comply with International Auditing Standards, each year we need to refresh our understanding of how 
the Audit Committee gains assurance over management processes and arrangements. 
 
I would be grateful, therefore, if you could email to me your responses to the following questions: 
 
1 How does the Audit Committee oversee management's processes in relation to: 
 

• carrying out an assessment of the risk the financial statements may be materially misstated due to 
• fraud or error 
• identifying and responding to the risk of breaches of internal control 
• identifying and responding to risks of fraud 
• communicating and encouraging ethical behaviour of its staff and contractors? 

 
2 How does the Audit Committee gain assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been complied with? 
 
3 How has the Audit Committee satisfied itself that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 
financial statements? 
 
In addition to the above questions about how you gain assurance from management, I have included at Appendix 1, a 
series of questions about your views on fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. Your responses will inform our 
assessment of the risk of fraud and error within the financial statements, which in turn determines the extent of audit work 
we undertake. 
 
I would be grateful if you could provide a response by 31 March 2020. 
 
I have also provided a copy of this letter to Susan Roberts so that she is aware of my contact with you. Please do not 
hesitate to contact me if you wish to discuss anything in relation to this request. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
Richard Anderson 
Manager 
For Grant Thornton UK LLP 

Page 241

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 1



 

 
 

 

Commercial in confidence 

Appendix 1 – Questions of Audit Committee Chair of Barrow 
Borough Council 

Fraud risk assessment 

Auditor Question 
 

Response 

Has the Council assessed the risk of material 
misstatement in the financial statements due to 
fraud? 
 
 

 

What are the results of this process? 
 
 

 

What processes does the Council have in place to 
identify and respond to risks of fraud? 
 
 

 

Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a high 
risk of fraud, been identified and what has been 
done to mitigate these risks? 
 
 

 

Are internal controls, including segregation of 
duties, in place and operating effectively? 
 
 
 

 

If not, where are the risk areas and what mitigating 
actions have been taken? 
 
 
 

 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
override of controls or inappropriate influence over 
the financial reporting process (for example 
because of undue pressure to achieve financial 
targets)?  
 
 

 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
misreporting? 
 
 
 

 

Page 242

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 1



 

 2 

Commercial in confidence 

How does the Council exercise oversight over 
management's processes for identifying and 
responding to risks of fraud? 

 

What arrangements are in place to report fraud 
issues and risks to the Council / Audit Committee? 
 
 

 

How does the Council communicate and encourage 
ethical behaviour of its staff and contractors? 
 
 
 

 

How do you encourage staff to report their 
concerns about fraud?  
Have any significant issues been reported? 
 

 

Are you aware of any related party relationships or 
transactions that could give rise to risks of fraud? 
 

 

Are you aware of any instances of actual, 
suspected or alleged, fraud, either within the 
Council as a whole or within specific departments 
since 1 April 2019? 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 243

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 1



 

 3 

Commercial in confidence 

 

 

Law and regulation 

 
Auditor Question 
 

Response 

What arrangements does the Council have in place 
to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws 
and regulations? 
 

 

 

How does management gain assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been complied 
with? 
 

 

 

How is the Council provided with assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been complied 
with? 
 

 

 

Have there been any instances of non-compliance 
or suspected non-compliance with law and 
regulation since 1 April 2019? 
 
 

 

 

What arrangements does the Council have in place 
to identify, evaluate and account for litigation or 
claims? 
 
 

 

 

Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims 
that would affect the financial statements? 
 

 

Have there been any reports from other regulatory 
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 
indicate non-compliance? 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 244

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 1



 

 4 

Commercial in confidence 

 

 

Going Concern  

 
Auditor Question 
 

Response 

How will the Council / Audit Committee satisfy itself 
that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern 
basis in preparing the 2019/20 financial 
statements? 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 245

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 Our Ref: 

 Your Ref:   

Contact Name: Date: 

 

Executive Director 
Sam Plum 

Director of Resources 
Susan Roberts 

 

 

 
 

Richard Anderson  
Manager  
Grant Thornton UK LLP  
 
Sent by email 

 
 

Barrow Borough Council 
Resources Directorate 

TOWN HALL · DUKE STREET 
BARROW-IN-FURNESS · CUMBRIA LA14 2LD 

Tel: (01229) 876543 
DX 63917 BARROW-IN-FURNESS 

Email: customerservices@barrowbc.gov.uk 
www.barrowbc.gov.uk 

 SMR/AB  Susan Roberts  15/07/2020 
 - 
 

Dear Richard 
  
Barrow Borough Council - Financial Statements audit for the year end 31 March 2020 
 
Understanding how the Audit Committee gains assurance from management 
 
Thank you for your letter of the 13th March, 2020, regarding the above. I have set out my 
responses at Appendix 1. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 

Anne Burns 
  
 
Councillor Mrs A Burns 
Chairman of the Audit Committee 
 
Appendix 1 – Responses from the Chairman of the Audit Committee 

Page 247

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 2



 

 
 

 

Commercial in confidence 

Appendix 1 – Questions of Audit Committee Chair of Barrow 
Borough Council 

Fraud risk assessment 

Auditor Question 
 

Response 

Has the Council assessed the risk of material 
misstatement in the financial statements due to 
fraud? 
 
 

Yes.  All accounting entries that are created 
manually are checked and posted by a separate 
officer.   
 
The Statement is compiled by the Accountancy 
Services Manager and that is checked by the 
Accountants.   
 
The Statement is checked by the Director of 
Resources prior to being issued. 
 
Internal Audit reviews the financial systems as 
part of their work on internal controls and 
periodic checks are performed throughout the 
year. 
 
The basis of estimations is disclosed in the 
Statement along with accounting policies. 

What are the results of this process? 

 

 

The Finance Department uses a detailed 
timetable to log key tasks and checks.  Any 
fraud issues would be reported to the Director of 
Resources. 
 
Any fraud issues identified by Internal Audit 
would also be reported to the Director of 
Resources. 
 
An investigation and appropriate action would 
be initiated by the Director of Resources.  If the 
Director of Resources’ management override 
were suspected, the matter would be referred to 
the Chief Executive. 

Page 248

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 2



 

 2

Commercial in confidence 

Auditor Question 
 

Response 

What processes does the Council have in place to 
identify and respond to risks of fraud? 
 
 

A comprehensive Anti-Fraud, Theft, Bribery and 
Corruption Strategy and Response Plan, and a 
Whistleblowing Policy.   
 
The Internal Audit annual plan is risk-based and 
is intended to cover all significant risk areas.   
 
The Fraud Hotline provides an independent 
route for any concerns to be raised 
confidentially. 
 
A Code of Conduct for Members of the Council 
and a Code of Conduct for Officers.   
 
A Money Laundering Policy and controls around 
treasury activities through the Treasury 
Management Practices. 
 
The Finance Department control changes to 
supplier details and also authenticate any 
subsequent updates.   
 
Segregation of duties and management 
authorisations operate in the areas of the 
Council involving financial controls, such as 
ordering goods or services, payment of invoices 
or expenses, cash and banking reconciliations. 

Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a high 
risk of fraud, been identified and what has been 
done to mitigate these risks? 
 
 

No new fraud risks have become apparent. 
 
All financial transactions carry a degree of risk 
and that is assessed as part of the internal 
control framework when systems and processes 
are designed.  Any changes or adaptions to the 
existing systems and processes are thoroughly 
assessed before being implemented. 
 
The areas within the Council that operate with 
cash are always deemed as high risk for 
potential fraud.  There are specific controls 
designed to mitigate and detect any fraudulent 
activity; services that directly accept cash only 
handle low value transactions. 
 
Treasury management involves high value 
transactions and again specific controls are in 
place internally as well as externally – the 
brokers and counterparties all have fraud risk 
mitigation and detection built into their dealings 
process. 

Page 249

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 2



 

 3

Commercial in confidence 

Auditor Question 
 

Response 

Are internal controls, including segregation of 
duties, in place and operating effectively? 
 
 
 

Yes, the Council’s internal controls are reviewed 
and tested by Internal Audit and through 
management review.  Managers are sometimes 
part of an internal control process, but where 
this is not the case it is expected that checks 
are made to ensure the continued observance 
of the controls is occurring. 
 
Duties are segregated where necessary and 
dual authorisation applies to all financial 
transactions. 
 
The main source of assurance will always be 
Internal Audit. 

If not, where are the risk areas and what mitigating 
actions have been taken? 

This is covered in the previous response. 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
override of controls or inappropriate influence over 
the financial reporting process (for example 
because of undue pressure to achieve financial 
targets)?  
 
 

There are no areas where financial targets 
apply and there is no benefit in inappropriately 
influencing the financial reporting process. 
 
The quarterly reporting follows a similar process 
to the financial statements; the Finance 
Department create all the transactions for 
services, the Accountancy Services Manager 
compiles the budgetary movements and 
reserves, the Director of Resources prepares 
the overall monitoring report. 
 
Access to posting entries into the General 
Ledger is restricted.   
 
Access to update the sub-ledgers is restricted to 
the Finance Department where internal controls 
exist for each process and segregation of duties 
is observed. 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for 
misreporting? 
 
 
 

There are no areas where there is a potential for 
misreporting as the financial information is 
sourced from the General Ledger which is within 
a controlled environment as already explained 
in the previous response. 

Page 250

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 2



 

 4

Commercial in confidence 

Auditor Question 
 

Response 

How does the Council exercise oversight over 
management's processes for identifying and 
responding to risks of fraud? 

The Audit Committee receives reports from 
Internal Audit, the Director of Resources and the 
appointed external auditors.  Any issues relating 
to fraud would be reported to the Audit 
Committee. 
 
The Anti-Fraud Policies are approved and 
adopted by Full Council.  The Audit Committee 
are made aware of the process and any 
updates or revisions as the committee charged 
with governance. 

What arrangements are in place to report fraud 
issues and risks to the Council / Audit Committee? 
 
 

The Anti-Fraud Policies identify Internal Audit as 
the preferred route to report fraud issues and 
risks.  However, officers can report concerns to 
their managers or Management Team if they 
prefer. 
 
For Members, any potential issues are reported 
to the Monitoring Officer in the first instance. 

How does the Council communicate and encourage 
ethical behaviour of its staff and contractors? 
 
 
 

There is a comprehensive checklist completed 
as part of the induction process for new staff, 
which includes the way the Council operates 
and the policies and conditions of service that 
the officers are expected to work to. 
 
Policies, such as the Anti-Fraud Policies are 
available online to all staff with computer access 
and managers are asked to provide these in 
hard copy to other employees.  As and when 
policies change, an email is sent to all staff to 
make them aware that changes have occurred 
(usually with a brief summary of the changes 
included) and that a revised or updated policy 
has now been published. 
 
In February and March 2020 the Council’s 
“Values and Behaviours Framework” 
programme commenced with 2-day sessions for 
Managers.  The Staff and Member sessions will 
be delivered digitally through the autumn. 

How do you encourage staff to report their 
concerns about fraud?  
Have any significant issues been reported? 
 

The Whistleblowing Policy is promoted and a 
number of calls have been received, however 
no significant issues have been raised during 
2019-2020; non-fraud concerns are also 
reported to the Fraud Hotline. 

Page 251

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 2



 

 5

Commercial in confidence 

Auditor Question 
 

Response 

Are you aware of any related party relationships or 
transactions that could give rise to risks of fraud? 
 

There are no related party relationships or 
transactions that could give rise to risks of fraud 
that I am aware of. 
 
Declarations of interest are a standing agenda 
item for committee meetings. 

Are you aware of any instances of actual, 
suspected or alleged, fraud, either within the 
Council as a whole or within specific departments 
since 1 April 2019? 

There are no instances of actual, suspected or 
alleged fraud either within the Council as a 
whole or within specific departments since 1 
April 2019 that I am aware of. 

 

 

 

  

Page 252

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 2



 

 6

Commercial in confidence 

Law and regulation 

 
Auditor Question 
 

Response 

What arrangements does the Council have in place 
to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws 
and regulations? 
 

 

The Council relies on the Monitoring Officer to 
prevent and detect non-compliance with laws 
and regulations, and that senior officers will flag 
issues that require the Monitoring Officer’s 
opinion. 
 
The Monitoring Officer ensures compliance with 
the Council’s Constitution. 
 
The Council also employs a number of 
professional, qualified officers in particular fields 
of expertise and also obtains external legal 
advice when required; generally for clarification 
in specific circumstances. 
 
The Executive Committee report template 
includes consideration of the legal aspects of 
any decision for Members. 

How does management gain assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been complied 
with? 
 

 

Management Team review the legal aspects of 
Executive Committee proposals at pre-agenda 
meetings and calls in the authoring officers 
where necessary; the Monitoring Officer attends 
the pre-agenda meetings.   
 
On occasion Management make use of a 
number of professional, qualified officers in 
particular fields of expertise including external 
legal advice when required. 
 
The Monitoring Officer attends a Cumbria-wide 
network meeting and attends training as 
available and appropriate. 

How is the Council provided with assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been complied 
with? 
 

 

The Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility 
for assuring management that all relevant laws 
and regulations have been complied with. 
 
The Council retained additional legal support 
during 2019-2020 and established a Head of 
Legal and Governance position which 
commenced in July 2020. 
 
The legal aspects of any decision for Members 
are disclosed in the reports presented at the 
Executive Committee. 

Have there been any instances of non-compliance 
or suspected non-compliance with law and 
regulation since 1 April 2019? 

There have been no instances of non-
compliance or suspected non-compliance with 
law and regulation since 1 April 2019. 

Page 253

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 2



 

 7

Commercial in confidence 

What arrangements does the Council have in place 
to identify, evaluate and account for litigation or 
claims? 

 

Claims against the Council are raised with 
Management Team and would be dealt with 
either by the Council’s insurers, retained 
solicitors or an alternate if specific expertise 
were required. 

Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims 
that would affect the financial statements? 
 

There are no actual or potential litigation or 
claims that would affect the financial 
statements. 

Have there been any reports from other regulatory 
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 
indicate non-compliance? 

There have been no reports from other 
regulatory bodies that indicate non-compliance. 

 

 

 

 

 

Going Concern  

 
Auditor Question 
 

Response 

How will the Council / Audit Committee satisfy itself 
that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern 
basis in preparing the 2019/20 financial 
statements? 

Management Team perform an annual review of 
financial, forward planning, legislative and 
political aspects of the Council and its 
environment to judge the going concern basis.   
 
This is reported for the Audit Committee to 
consider and endorse. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 254

Agenda Item 24
Appendix 2



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Audit and Governance Committee 
30 July 2020

2019-2020 Accounts Update

 
Report from:  Director of Resources

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 This report provides an update relating to the closure of the accounts for 2019-

2020.

1.2 The accounts will be closed by the 31 August, 2020, which is in line with the 
COVID-19 extension of statutory dates.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit and Governance Committee note the 

2019-2020 accounts update.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 Preparations for closing the 2019-2020 accounts and producing the assurance 

and governance documents began in March 2020.  

3.2 Accountants attended year-end training/briefing sessions regarding accounting 
requirements and changes.  

3.3 The timetable was published for Managers and other Officers who provide 
information required for closing 2019-2020.

3.4 The COVID-19 support package from Government included business support 
grants within a defined scheme and eligibility, and later discretionary business 
support grants.

3.5 When lockdown commenced, there were resource issues, homeworking was not 
available, and suddenly there were millions of pounds and hundreds of grants to 
administer and award.

Page 255

Agenda Item 25



3.6 The Director of Resources requested the Finance Department take on the 
compilation stage of the newly created grant application process.

3.7 The volume and complexity of the business grants process has absorbed all of 
the Accountancy resource from March to June.

3.8 The original grant schemes remain open but the Finance Department was 
intentionally excluded from the discretionary grant scheme process as the 
accounts closedown is a solid two month programme.

3.9 The Accountancy Services Manager retired mid-April and it has not been 
possible to recruit a replacement as yet.

3.10 Significant experience and knowledge is lost with any long-serving officer and 
due to COVID-19 and the business grants process, there was very little 
opportunity for the transfer of knowledge.

3.11 The Financial Services Manager is temporarily covering the Accountancy 
Services Manager management responsibilities and aspects of day-to-day work, 
but that was not intentional as both roles are fully occupied.

3.12 It is hoped that recruitment will recommence in August.

3.13 An interim resource is assisting with the year-end closedown but the remaining 
pressures of covering the senior vacancy are a challenge.

3.14 There is also a financial role in the major bids being developed, plus the new and 
developing COVID-19 emergency funding grant submissions and the 2020-2021 
budget revision to manage in light of COVID-19.

3.15 The need for additional resource, particularly for the major projects, has been 
established.

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 There is no relevant consultation, this report is only for noting.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There are no alternative options as the report is presented for noting. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 In order to be able to deliver Council Plan Priorities the Council must be 

financially resilient and have good financial management.  The opinion of the 
appointed auditor informs financial management and the value for money 
conclusion focusses on the Council’s use of resources.

7.0 Implications 

Page 256

Agenda Item 25



Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 The addition of a post in the Finance Department will initially be primarily funded 

from the major projects.  Any additional budget pressure will be reported to the 
Executive Committee.  The timing of the new post is not yet established. 

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, this report is for 

information.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
The accounts are not closed 
by the 31 August 2020.

The statutory deadline is 
missed.

Reputational risk.

Impact on budget setting 
for 2021-2022.

Plan and timetable.

Resource management.

Liaison with appointed 
auditors.

Contact Officers 
S M Roberts directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Page 257

Agenda Item 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 Confirmation of Minutes
	9 Terms of Reference
	A&G Terms of Reference

	10 Work Plan
	Work Plan 2020-2021

	11 Internal Audit Final Reports
	1 BarrowBC Infrastructure Mgt FINAL Report IT 73
	2 Housing Benefits FINAL report 19-02
	3 Council Tax and CTS FINAL report 19-03
	4 NNDR FINAL report 19-04
	5 FINAL report Budgetary Control 19-10
	6 Treasury Management FINAL report 19-11

	12 Internal Audit Progress Report
	April to March 2020 Progress Report V2

	13 Internal Audit Annual Report
	Barrow Annual Report 2019-20

	14 Internal Audit Annual Plan
	Audit Plan 2020-21 Proposed

	15 Restricted Assurance Monitoring
	16 Risk Management Report
	Corporate Risk Register

	17 Local Code of Corporate Governance
	Code of Corporate Governance 2020

	18 Update on Local Audit
	PSAA Update on audit matters
	Barrow Audit scope letter 2019-20 - local government audits for release 190220

	19 External Progress Report and Sector Update
	Progress Report and Sector Update July 2020

	20 External Audit Plan
	Barrow BC 1920 external audit plan
	Barrow BC 1920 - Audit Plan Addendum Covid19 (1st Draft)

	21 Consultation Model Member Code of Conduct
	Draft Model Member Code of Conduct with comments Appendix 1
	LGA_Consultation_on_Draft_Model_Member_Code_of_Conduct Appendix 2
	Members Code of Conduct Appendix 3

	22 Going Concern
	Going Concern Assessment 31032020

	23 Accounting Policies
	Accounting Policies 2019-2020

	24 Assurance
	Grant Thornton Assurance Request
	Letter to Audit committee assurance over mgmt - Barrow BC
	Audit Committee ChairTCWG inquiries - Barrow BC - Appendix1

	Assurance from Chair
	Anne to Richard 15072020
	Audit Committee Chair inquiries - Barrow BC - Appendix1


	25 2019-2020 Accounts Update



